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Business at a Glance cucradses

primary focus is on providing basic infrastructure - power generation,
communications, aviation and civil infrastructure - in Hong Kong and
mainland China. They are complemented by the distribution of motor

vehicles and consumer products, property and industrial manufacturing.

Based in Hong Kong with a deep knowledge of China, CITIC Pacific
consists of sound businesses that produce good cash flows, many of which
have the potential to grow. Our finance is well-structured and we have a

tradition of operating with excellent standards of corporate governance.

'ﬂzust, Reliability and Confidence.
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Power Generation CITIC Pacific builds, owns and operates power plants in
mainland China. Current total installed capacity in the power stations we have
an interest is 7,100MW and another 2,520MW is under construction.

Communications CITIC Pacific runs one of the largest game hosting
platforms in China and with the All-China Sports Federation and the Chinese
Olympic Committee promotes sports through e-platforms. CITIC Telecom 1616
is the leading 1pp wholesaler in Asia, cpcnet offers data services to customers
throughout Greater China, CITIC Guoan operates cable TV networks in
mainland China and ¢T™ is Macau’s communications provider of choice.

Aviation CITIC Pacific is a key participant in the aviation sector through
Cathay Pacific Airways, Hong Kong Dragon Airlines, air cargo provider HACTL
and Air China Cargo.

Civil Infrastructure CITIC Pacific is either an owner or involved in the
management of all three of Hong Kong harbour crossings - vital facilities that
connect Hong Kong Island to Kowloon.

tribution

Dah Chong Hong and Sims Trading serve the people of Hong Kong and other
parts of China by distributing an array of motor vehicles, consumer and food
commodities, and branded food, household and healthcare products.

Alone or with partners, CITIC Pacific develops, manages and owns properties
including Hong Kong’s CITIC Tower, Festival Walk, Discovery Bay, and
Shanghai’s New Westgate Garden, CITIC Square and Royal Pavilion.

Jiangyin steel plant is one of China’s leading manufacturer of specialty steels
such as bearing and gear steels. Wuxi Huada Motors produces electrical motors
for the domestic and European markets,

CrTIC Capital Markets Holdings, bio-pharmaceutical research and distance
learning are all developing businesses of the CITIC Pacific Group.
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Financial Highlights

HEBEEETHE in HK$ milion 2003 2002
5% B 4 3% Profit Attributable to Shareholders 1,305 3,875
TEERYLARZBRNER Major Businesses’ Contribution
eSS Power Generation 229 245
ESE Communications 234 553
= Aviation 421 1,263
EREHE Civil Infrastructure 635 1.,238
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 264 227
E S Property 508 894
Tx8E Industrial Manufacturing 178 126
REMFEER Investrment Properties Revaluation (587) -
FEEEZREER Cash Contributed from all Businesses 2,451 5,426
BESER Capital Employed 49,354 51,805
BRRES Shareholder’s Funds 38,826 42,538
BEREE Net Debt 5,017 6,722
HARAZEER Undrawn Loan Facilities 6,368 9,300
KRBT E in HK$
SREBF Earnings per Share 0.60 1.77
SRER Dividends per Share
TR Regular 1.00 1.00
Sl Special - 1.00
EI#A Staff 12,174 11,643

HIEEFLHEISGR

Please see page 159 for definition of terms used
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Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders

FEREEEZFZERMNAERT =&
LEEL: BoFE 7%=+ EtF
TEELTTH®G6% - TEFREALS LB

MEBE L ERARE  SiZEANTS®REAERR
BEME EEBHEEERABEATLEE L -
EERRENE FHEARMARE Y LK
BLCREIRTE - BB Z AT 2
AR I EREE R MR =6 -
%%@@%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂﬂ?i%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%‘
0.77% : B EE 4R -

BRERTEREZFERZIEER - =
FEREBRTRLT RFRE

(1

NRIHEEGTZABER  EEEHE
EHZIEE - —EF=FFEZHWE0ET
REEREEET, TR - ETRERE -
FUMMEc0E TRRARMFIR " TTLE
BE - UMBZRETHOMER - PERE
I RE T A ERE - R 9%
i MEREMECSY - MAELEZHME
MR R TG 2 73% -

Wit FERECEGTRE - EEREE
E708 TR ZHKEREH ZRHEESF
e o

BEE~A > FEEALTHEEE AT

(TFTEH D BRZ— > BH20%MKHE - b
HEARAREREEHEEAERER431E
TR - ZEFFMEFFHEESERER02E
TR -Hba@BHEIRARREENRE
LNE] - PRIFEEEBMEERE - NELEE
YUEGERAR RERREREE M
BTEEZERERAERK  FTRAEE
M RFI BT - L7 ENTERKEEF
AAEAEEHEERE > BRATE AT
REBREEEL — -

\\\\\\\\\ iy

////

\\\\

CITIC Pacific’s net profit for 2003 was HK$1,305 million, a decrease of 66%
compared with the HK$3,875 million in 2002. This decline is due to the
loss of income from the three bridges and two tunnels in Shanghai, which
were sold, a decrease in aviation’s contribution, and a HK$587 million
provision against the value of investment properties. Fortunately the sARs
affected businesses recovered quickly, and a detailed analysis of their
performance can be found in the Business and Financial Review sections
of this report. The Board recommends maintaining the final dividend at
the same level as 2002 of HK$0.7 per share.

Power
A key business of CITIC Pacific is the generation of electric power, and 2003
has provided CITIC Pacific with the following excellent opportunities:

The Ligang Power Station in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province is the flagship of our
Company’s power business. Construction of its third 2x600MW phase
began in 2003 and operation is planned for 2006. The fourth phase, also
2x600MW, is expected to be operational in 2007. Equipment for both
phases has already been ordered. CITIC Pacific recently acquired an
additional 9% of the Ligang Power Station Phases I and II and now

owns 65%. Our shareholding in Phases IIT and IV will be higher at 73%.

Also in Wuxi, an application to build a Pumped Storage facility with a
capacity of 700MW is being considered by the relevant authorities.

In January 2004 we became a 20% owner of the North United Power
Corporation, which has an attributable generating capacity of 4,310MW,
all in Inner Mongolia. Another 920MW of attributable capacity is being
planned for 2004. North United Power Corporation is now a partnership
between Inner Mongolia Electric Co. and two other major power
companies China Huaneng Group and Shenhua Group. Inner Mongolia
has substantial coal deposits making it an ideal location for power
generation, both for the requirements in the autonomous region, and to
supply electricity to North and Northeast China through the grid.

In coming years North United Power will continue to build additional
capacity with the aim of becoming one of the largest power generation

companies in mainland China.
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Mainland China is short of power both today and in the long run as
prosperity will continue to increase, so CITIC Pacific is confident that
there will be opportunities to expand our power generation business in

the coming years.

Communications

In November CITIC Pacific established a 20-year exclusive cooperative
relationship with the All-China Sports Federation and the Chinese
Olympic Committee to develop, operate and maintain an interactive
platform for broadband digital sports using the brand Chinese Interactive
Sports. Three websites are in operation: sport.org.cn providing accurate
and authoritative sports reports; olympic.cn the official site of the Chinese
Olympic Committee presented in English and Chinese, and sport.cn which
integrates four existing sites: China Sports on-line, China E-Sports, China
Sports Lottery and On-line Sports Goods. The China Sports Federation
lists 99 ‘official’ sports, and interest in them is intense throughout
mainland China, so the opportunities presented to CITIC Pacific

through these ventures are immense.

During 2003, steps have been taken to develop data and e-commerce
platforms, and a profitable on-line internet game has been marketed
throughout mainland China which attracted over 10 million subscribers,
and on occasions up to 210,000 simultaneous players. Having proved the

operational aspects of the system, more products will be launched in 2004.

CITIC 1616’s profit was reduced in 2003 as margins came under pressure,
but margins have now stabilised, and the advantage of being Asia’s largest

1DD wholesaler will be seen in the coming years.

Steel )

Over the last 10 years, CITIC Pacific has developed a very successful
business manufacturing steel for specialised uses such as ball bearings,
gears and automobile springs. In 2003, a record 1.7 million tonnes was
produced, of which 145,000 tonnes was exported. Jiangyin Xing Cheng
has the highest production of bearing steel in mainland China. In
partnership with Sumitomo Metals, a one million tonne expansion will
begin shortly. Building on this experience, in February 2004 CITIC Pacific
entered into an agreement to purchase 95% of the Daye Special Steel Mill

—
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at Huangshi, Hubei Province which in 2003 manufactured 1.3 million
tonnes of specialty steel, and plans 2 million tonnes in 2004. In January
2004 CITIC Pacific increased its ownership in its existing Jiangyin Special
Steel Plant to 79% by purchasing shares from our partner. We plan to
reorganise and expand our enlarged steel interests and become the market

leader in specialty steel in mainland China.

Property

The 1st phase of the New Westgate Garden residential development in
Shanghai is targeting for pre-sale in 2004, and completion 2005/2006.

We also own a parcel of land with a site area of about 4.7million sq. feet
near the Shanghai Pudong airport for future development for logistics
purposes. Qur investment properties of CITIC Square and Royal Pavilion
are doing well. A number of other development opportunities in different
locations are under negotiation, and we are confident of the continued
opportunities that the growth of the Chinese economy will present in the
property sector.

Aviation

Both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair had a difficult time in the first half of
2003, but by early 2004 record numbers of passengers were being carried.
Cathay Pacific and Dragonair’s success depends on a healthy economy in
China delivering more passengers from the mainland China, and in this
expanding market both airlines should do well. CITIC Pacific’s joint
venture with Air China Cargo officially began operation in January 2004,
and we are confident that it will benefit from the increasing economic

activities in mainland China.

Environmental

A major breakthrough was made in extending our waste treatment
businesses in Hong Kong to Shanghai when the Shanghai government
awarded our joint venture the contract to design, construct, operate and
maintain the Phase 4 of Laogang Municipal Waste Landfill. There should
be many more such opportunities in the future as Chinese cities focus on

environmental issues.
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Marketing and Distribution

Dah Chong Hong and Sims Trading had good results even though the
business in Hong Kong was disappointing, this was more than offset by
the performance in other parts of mainland China. Throughout mainland
China, both DcH and Sims will continue their systerhatic expansion
building markets and sales networks and modernising operating facilities

while building sophisticated control systems alongside.

Capital Markets
CITIC Capital Markets had an exceptional and profitable year in its first
full year of operation, and has established a fine reputation in asset

management and investment banking in a very short time.

Our Future

CITIC Pacific is taking new opportunities to expand through mainland
China where we expect continued economic growth to create more
opportunities in the future. CITIC Pacific’s overriding objective is to
increase shareholder value, and I am confident that the new projects, in
combination with the stable and profitable current businesses, will do so.
We will remain focused mainly in areas of greatest expertise - power
generation, communications, special steel manufacturing, aviation,

property and trading.

CITIC Pacific is financially robust with low leverage and ample cash and
unused financial facilities, giving sufficient resources to execute our

expansion plans.

On behalf of all the directors, I would like to thank our bankers and
investors for their continued support; and to thank the staff of CITIC
Pacific and its subsidiaries and associates who have worked so hard in the
last year. Their commitment to CITIC Pacific and its future is the basis of

our success.

Larry Yung Chi Kin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 March 2004
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Infrastructure
BT Power
LUEEEBTHE in HK$ million 2003 2002
BREB Contribution 229 245
{h#ER T B 5 Proportion of total contribution 9% 5%
FEE Net assets 1,508 1,449
-ENGE Capital expenditure 144 120
% E & & H 4 #4 B Power Stations in Mainland China
-/
EHH Jilin © )
60% / 200MW pf/
/
~
L HBESEBH - o FHER Hohhot // //
North United Power 35% / 400MW.~
\ ' N -
20% / 4,310MW N c “}ﬁjﬁ Weihai
¥ Shouguang © /49%/36MW
49% / 24MW .
o BE Kaifeng\\
BB M Zhengzhou < 50% / 125MW
50% / 600MW ’
* 50% / 400MW F58 Ligang =
65% / 1,400MW
* 73% / 1,200MW \/\
§/ % = {E% FE &2 CITIC Pacific Ownership
/{J /\‘ MW EBAR Capacity
/ / ;" * 2328 % Under Construction
v
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CITIC Pacific’s team of power professionals are actively involved in every
aspect of power stations, from identifying new investment opportunities,
supervising the construction to actively managing the operation of

the plants.

In 2003, increased demand for electricity and the operation of newly

completed units contributed to an increase of 20% in total electricity
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generated, which reached 16,847 million kwh. However, profits were lower
than that of 2002 primarily because during its first year of operation, the
tariff at Jilin plant was low, resulting in a loss. The timing of dividend

payments from some plants, in particular Ligang, is also a factor.

BRHBRENHEAER Electricity and heat generated by all power plants

zrRs BEE Electricity Generated #H# & Heat Generated
EEERX (JkF)
Installed 21t B4t
Capacity 2003 2002 | change 2003 2002 | change
Type (MW} (M Kwh) (M Kwh) % (KGJ) (KGJ) %
& PREgE
Ligang Coal fired 1,400 8,944 8,505 5 - - -
& yer: Tl
Kaifeng Coal fired 125 696 679 3 - - -
Bh N HEH
Zhengzhou Ce-generation 600 3,232 3,085 5 5,944 5,380 10
Hohhot Cc-generation 400 2,638 1,492 77 883 * -
HH VE g E
Jilin Co-generation 200 965 v - 243 - -
BE REBHE
Weihai Co-generation 36 174 85 105 2,575 2,380 8
B REHE | 14EEK | 1288
Shouguang Co-generation 24 201 200 0.5 | 1.4m tonnes | 1.2m tonnes 17
* A& ZE not in operation
TERESRANERLARHAERERTE IR MW
CITIC Pacific's Total and 12,000
Attributable Installed Capacity T
10,000 _
8,000
6,000
4,000
]
2,000 ﬂi_JTW N “\
OD.J @]DEJJUIL B U
93 94 95 98 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06

T BEEE S Total Installed Capacity

FT Bl R E Planned Total Installed Capacity

B A FEEEE Attributable Capacity

COEtEESEH A E Planned Attributable Capacity
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Power generation is an important area of expansion for CITIC Pacific,
based on years of experience, expertise and knowledge of the Chinese
power industry. As the Chinese economy develops and peoples’ standard
of living rises, electricity demand and consumption will continue to grow.
Currently, mainland China’s economic growth rate is among one of the
highest in the world, yet its per capita installed capacity and electricity
consumption per capita is low. The ongoing reform in the power industry
in mainland China has presented many attractive opportunities for
independent power producers such as CITIC Pacific and significant

progress has been made in expanding our power portfolio.

In May 2003, the State Council approved the 3rd phase of the Ligang
power station, now one of the most efficient in China. Ligang is located
in Jiangsu Province, one of the fastest growing provinces in mainland
China where consumption of electricity grew by 21% compared with
2002. Construction of Ligang 3rd phase, which consists of two 600MW
units, is currently underway, and commercial operation is expected in
2006. An RMB3.8 billion 20-year project finance loan has been arranged
for this 3rd phase, which represents 75% of the total investment. Phase 4
of another two 600MW units is scheduled for completion in 2007.
Equipment has been ordered for both phases. In October, CITIC Pacific
reached an agreement with the CITIC Group in Beijing to acquire an
additional 9% stake in Ligang Power Station, increasing its holding in
Ligang Phase I and II to 65% and 73% in Phase III and IV.

The expansion of the Zhengzhou plant, a 3rd phase 400MW (2x200MW),
was also approved in 2003. Construction is progressing as planned and

commissioning is expected in 2006.

B8
Electricity Generated
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In January 2004, CITIC Pacific, together with Inner Mongolia Power
Investment Corporation, China Huaneng Group and Beijing Guohua
Power of the Shenhua Group, formed North United Power Corporation,
to jointly develop the power generation business in Inner Mongolia. The
joint venture aims to utilise the abundance of coal in this autonomous
region to build North United Power into one of the most efficient and first
rate power companies in mainland China, and to supply electricity to
Inner Mongolia and through the grid to Beijing, North and Northeast
China. North United Power’s operating power plants currently have
attributable installed capacity of 4,310MW. An additional attributable
capacity of 920MW is expected to become operational in 2004. The
Company has plans to expand its power production in Inner Mongolia in
the future. The joint venture’s registered capital is RMB10 billion. CITIC
Pacific, a 20% partner in North United Power, will contribute cash and a
20% holding in Hohhot power plant. North United Power officially began

operation in January 2004.

In November 2003, CITIC Pacific entered into a joint venture agreement
with Wuxi Power to build a 700MW pumped storage hydraulic power
plant in Ma Shan, Wuxi City in Jiangsu Province. Application for this
project is being reviewed by the relevant authorities. Currently there exists
a huge difference between electricity demand for the peak and non-peak
time in Jiangsu Province. A pumped storage power station will capture
this demand difference as it uses off-peak electricity to provide peak
power. Ma Shan is next to Tai Lake, which will provide the water supply

necessary for such a power plant.

As all of our power plants are coal fired, ensuring sufficient supply of

coal, managing coal costs and transporting coal efficiently is of great
importance and our power team is skilled at this task. CITIC Pacific is
actively studying the possibility of building power stations next to existing

large coalmines in provinces with abundant coal supplies.
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Communications

HEh Location BB Ownership
P{EER1616 CITIC Telecom 1616 &8 Hong Kong 100%
CPCNet CPCNet s Hong Kong 100%
FEE%E CITIC Guoan S Beijing 50%
RP9ER CTM (Macau Telecom) SRPY Macau 20%
LEETETTHE in HKS mifion 2003 2002
EHTE Turnover 1,590 2,887
HAFER Contribution 234 553
BT A B LA Proportion of total contribution 9% 12%
FEE Net assets 2,384 2,260
EXRME Capital expenditure 185 216
BEFHE E-Commerce
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The focus of CITIC Pacific’s communications business is on providing
value-added services. Working through partners and group entities, a
number of e-commerce initiatives and products were launched. In
November 2003, CITIC Pacific, together with the All-China Sports
Federation and the Chinese Olympic Committee, formed a 20-year
exclusive alliance to promote sports and sports related commerce, in
particular the 2008 Olympics. On the related ‘China Interactive Sports’
platform, leveraging on advanced, integrated 1T technologies, three
flagship websites - Olympic.cn, Sport.org.cn and Sports.cn - were built.
The All-China Sports Federation lists 99 official sports and there is intense
interest in them throughout mainland China, which presents tremendous
opportunities for CITIC Pacific.

CITIC Pacific is also running one of the largest game hosting platforms
in China. Currently, a profitable internet game ‘Legend of Mir 3 has been
marketed throughout mainland China that attracted over 10 million
subscribers with an average of approximately 200,000 concurrent users.
CITIC Pacific plans to work closely with game developers throughout

the world to continue to source games that can be catered to the

Chinese market.
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CITIC Telecom 1616

CITIC Telecom 1616 (www.citic1616.com) is a leader in Asia’s IDD
wholesale market, serving more than 150 international telecom and
mobile carriers in over 80 countries. Approximately 55% of Hong Kong’s
total monthly 1pD traffic is now handled by 1616, and about 50% of the
calls are mainland China traffic where 1616’ primary customers are
China Unicom and China Mobile.

In 2003, total traffic volume grew 64% from 2002. However, margins were
lower, partially affected by sARrs as higher margin mobile traffic was
substituted by lower margin fixed line calls, which resulted in decreased
profitability. 1616 is seeking ways to continue to expand its customer base

particularly serving destinations where margins are better.

FEEH1616EAREER
CITIC Telecom 1616 Traffic Volume Growth
B & 778 Million Minutes
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CPCNet
With the granting of a Fixed Carrier License by the Hong Kong

- telecommunications authority in 2003, cpcNet Hong Kong

(www.cpcnet-hk.com) has transformed from an Internet services

provider to a telecommunications carrier.

Through a significantly strengthened network and enhanced alliances and
partnerships, cpcNet is able to offer world-class communications services,
from traditional Internet connectivity to private networks based on the
latest technologies, to regional small and medium enterprises and global

multinational corporations.

With “TrueConnect’, the first Multiprotocol Label Switching based
Internet Protocol Virtual Private Network built in Greater China coupled
with customer service excellence, cPCNet has established itself firmly

as a key new generation carrier in Greater China and Asia. In 2003, the
customer base of ‘TrueConnect’ increased by more than 100% to over 700
connections. It has 13 self-owned Point of Presence (POPs) connecting

to over 40 cities in Greater China with service coverage spanning Asia,

Usa and Europe.

CITIC Guoan

CITIC Guoan’s primary business is its 62% interest in CITIC Guoan
Information Industry Co., Ltd. (‘Guoan Information’), a Shenzhen

Stock Exchange listed company whose primary business is operating cable
TV networks in mainland China. At the end of 2003, Guoan Information
had approximately 4 million subscribers in 17 cities in mainland China.
In addition to its CATV networks, Guoan Information has interests in
systemn integration, software development, hotel management and
property development. CITIC Guoan also owns the CITIC Building in
Beijing, which had 95% occupancy at the end of 2003.

CTM

20% owned by CITIC Pacific since 1991, Companhia de Telecomunicacoes
de Macau s.A.R.L. (‘cTM’) (www.ctm.net) is the provider of choice of
fixed line, mobile telephone and internet access services to the people

of Macau saRr. In 2003, cTM™’s profit rose 10% to HK$410 million.

The customer base for mobile decreased 2% due to competition, and

internet customer base increased 27%.
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HEh Headquarters FEH# Ownership
BEME B Cathay Pagcific Hong Kong 25.7%
M EBE Dragonair Hong Kong 28.5%
EETERY BE HK Air Cargo Terminals Hong Kong 10%
REEREE b= Air China Cargo Beijing 25%
LERBEETHE in HK$ miliion 2003 2002
BEFEMzE Cathay Pacific 330 1,023
BEEM Dragonair 20 154
BRTERN HACTL 71 86
PEREREE Air China Cargo = FEYE— FEI5E R operation began in January 2004
EHEB Contribution 421 1,263
ST B LBl Proportion of total contribution 16% 26%
FEE Net assets 12,880 13,305
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Cathay Pacific (www.cathaypacific.com) is an international passenger
and freight carrier based in Hong Kong serving 87 destinations around
the world. CITIC Pacific is the second largest shareholder and, through
participation on the board, the executive and other committees, has been
actively involved in its management since it first became a shareholder
in 1991.

In 2003, Cathay Pacific’s revenue was severely affected by the outbreak

of sARS, which reduced passenger numbers dramatically in the second
quarter. 2003 revenue declined 11% compared with 2002. Profits fell 67%
to HK$1.3 billion. Total revenue passenger carried decreased by 18% to
10 million. Passenger load factor decreased 6% points to 72%. Yield fell by
5%. Cargo tonnage carried set a record of 874,724 tonnes, 3% higher than
that of 2002, but yield fell marginally. A rapid improvement in the second
half of 2003 occurred after the SARS outbreak was contained, and in

January 2004 a record number of passengers per day were carried.

In December, Cathay Pacific renewed its service to Beijing after a 13-year
absence, with three roundtrips a week. It has applied to increase its
frequency to Beijing to twice daily, and to fly to Shanghai and Xiamen.
On 1 July 2004 Cathay Pacific will begin a non-stop flight between

Hong Kong and New York.

Dragonair (www.dragonair.com) operates passenger services to 28
destinations in Asia, of which 20 are to mainland Chinese cities. It began
its service to Bangkok in November 2003, and flights to Tokyo are also
expected in April 2004. Freighter services are offered to Shanghai,
Xiamen, Europe via the Middle East, and Osaka. In 2003, Dragonair saw
net revenue decrease 1.3% to HK$5,868 million and profit also decreased
87% to HK$71 million. In the 2nd quarter of 2003, saRrs had a heavy
effect on Dragonair as Greater China was most affected by the virus.
Revenue passengers carried were down 32% in the 1st half of 2003. Since
then, due to the recovery in travel and tourism stimulated in particular
by tourists from mainland China, Dragonair’s passenger numbers came
back strongly. In 2003, a total of 3 million revenue passengers were

carried - a drop of 11%, while passenger yield decreased 8.6%.
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an increase of 40%, due to strong demand and an additional freighter,

which entered into service at the end of 2002.

HACTL (www.hactl.com) is the operator of the largest air cargo terminal in
the world. Total tonnage handled exceeded 2 million tonnes for the first
time in 2003, an increase of 5.6% compared with 2002 - a result of strong
growth in exports, in particular to Europe. SuperTerminal 1 has a
potential capacity of 3.5 million tonnes per annum, providing adequate
capacity to support a robust growth of air cargo in Hong Kong and

mainland China into the future.

Air China Cargo, a joint venture in which CITIC Pacific has a 25% interest,
began operation in January 2004. It handles all of Air China’s international
and domestic cargo and related ground service businesses. The company
has 5 freighter planes and the belly space in Air China’s 123 passenger
planes, to carry cargo. Currently it flies to 266 domestic and 56

international destinations.
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Civil Infrastructure

Location HE# Ownership
RREERE BE Eastern Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong
— - Road 71%
— #i8 - Ralil 50%
aRsERE B Western Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong 35%
MERRRETHE EE Four waste treatment facilities Hong Kong 20% — 50%
ZHBIEIBISER i Laogang Phase 4 Landfil Shanghai 30%
UBREETHE in HKS million 2003 2002
BEAER Contribution 635 1,238
b yily-yerya gt Proportion of total contribution 24% 25%
FEE Net assets 2,113 7,923
BARRE Capital expenditure 5 156
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Average daily traffic at Eastern Harbour Tunnel (‘eHT’)

(www.easternharbourtunnel.com.hk) decreased 3% in 2003 to 71,284
vehicles due primarily to a drop in traffic in the second quarter when
SARS was at its peak, after which traffic has recovered. CITIC Pacific is

a controlling shareholder in the road with a 71% interest. Our

shareholding in the rail tunnel is 50%. EHT is entitled to a toll increase

according to the principles established by an independent arbitrator
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in March 1997, but as an application for increase from 1 January 2004 was
rejected by the Hong Kong Government, another arbitration has been set

for September 2004.

CITIC Pacific has a 35% interest in a 30-year franchise that operates the
Western Harbour Tunnel (‘WHT’) (www.westernharbourtunnel.com),

a key section of the Route 3 highway which links Hong Kong Island,
mainland China and Chek Lap Kok Airport. Daily average traffic for 2003
dropped by 7% compared with 2002 to 37,261 vehicles due to the effect of
SARS. WHT’s traffic growth is limited by the delay in the completion of
access roads, particularly the Central-Wanchai bypass and competition
from the low tolls at the government-owned Cross Harbour Tunnel.

CITIC Pacific also has a 35% interest in the company that manages the
Cross Harbour Tunnel. The management contract has been extended
through 2006.
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Environmental

CITIC Pacific has interests in four waste treatment facilities in Hong Kong,
including a chemical waste treatment plant and two refuse transfer
stations, with a total of 4,000 tonnes of daily waste processing capacity,
and we also operate a landfill site with a 43 million cubic metre capacity.
In 2003, a total of 4 million tonnes of waste was processed. Profits

generated from these businesses totalled HK$278 million.

In December 2003, a joint venture formed by CITIC Pacific, Onyx Asia and
Shanghai Chengtou Environment Industry Development Co., Ltd. was
awarded a contract for Phase 4 of Laogang Municipal Waste Landfill in
Shanghai. The jv will be responsible for the design, construction and
operation of this Phase 4 landfill for a 20-year period. Total investment of
the project is approximately RMB900 million. CITIC Pacific is a long-term
partner of Onyx, a wholly owned subsidiary of Veolia Environment,

having worked on Hong Kong environmental projects for over 10 years.
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Marketing and Distribution

B Location REE Ownership
AETT & Dah Chong Hong Hong Kong 100%
28 &% Sims Trading Hong Kong 100%
HEEBETHE in HK$ million 2003 2002
BEE Turnover 12,136 11,212
A E B Contribution 264 227
G AR T B B fF) Proportion of total contribution 10% 5%
FEE Net assets 3,234 2,871
BERMEE Capital expenditure 211 272

K E 47 (www.dch.com.hk) A7 55 E -
HEGRRBHER AT - HEETLEMG
REERTEXE > AEOEBF - FiNH
BmERBERER -

Dah Chong Hong (www.dch.com.hk) is a major distributor of motor
vehicles and consumer and food commodity products with substantial
operations in Hong Kong and mainland China, and businesses in Japan,

Singapore and Canada.

KEFTARE DCH Motor

B E BT E in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
B “Turnover 7,083 6,219
& A B B Contribution 188 196

KRETREERKHNRESHEZ - - H
CTEECEEREBETHBEAER26% - KB

In Hong Kong, DCH Motor is one of the largest distributors of motor

vehicles with a 26% market share in 2003. It distributes a wide range

TRAREMRERES of vehicles:
Z L& E Units sold

REER) ke Type Brands 2003 2002
FLERE Bm - BE- B2 Passenger cars Acura, Audi, Bentley, Honda,

AH-BE-ELT Nissan, Volkswagen 4,695 7,184
= K& A+8 - B¥ - Commercial vehicles  DAF, Isuzu, MAN,

UDAKE UD Nissan Diesel 2,310 2,489
20
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DCH Vehicle Sales in Hong Kong
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In 2003, vehicles sales in the territory dropped 24%, negatively impacted
by the increase in Vehicle First Registration Tax (FRT), the ou’tbreak of
SARS, and the weakening of US dollar against the Yen and Euro. Total
vehicles sold by bcH in Hong Kong decreased 28% compared with 2002
of which its mass volume passenger cars (small-to-medium size and Mpv
models) had a bigger drop, as those market segments shrunk over 30%.
However, DCH expanded its market share of truck and coach sales to 58%,
maintaining its leading position in that market. DCH also provides an
extensive range of motor related services such as after sales service and
inspection, parts retail and distribution, leasing and fleet management,
and aviation ground supporting services. DCH Motor Service Centre in

Kowloon Bay is the largest one in Hong Kong.
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In other cities in mainland China, bcH distributes both imported and
domestically manufactured vehicles through local partners where, unlike
Hong Kong, distributorships are not exclusive. In 2003, pcH supplied a
total of 9,689 vehicles to mainland China while its local partners
distributed an additional 4,414 units. DCH’s commercial vehicle sales were
a particular feature with an increase of 87% from 2002 due to robust
demand for construction vehicles. DCH’s passenger car sales, however,
declined 59% primarily due to shifting of interest to high-end imports

and increasing domestic supplies of mass-market models.




EHEE Units sold

REER Rk (KETRAEER) Type Brands (DCH & partners) 2003 2002
FRHE AQ: B BF - @A Passenger cars Imports: Audi, Bentley, GM, Honda,
AE-BE - B AR Nissan, Renault, Volkswagen 2,083 7,919
EHEE  EMNAR - Domestic: Guangzhou Honda,
BEERE BERAE Hainan Mazda, Dongfeng Nissan 3,188 1,515
£¥  AD:AT#  UDKES  Commercial vehicles  Imports: Isuzu, UD Nissan Diessl 6,586 3,556
AupEE B HREBEE Domestic: Qingling, DND 1,346 750
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Working with local partners, DCH now has over 14 outlets including
integrated sales, service and spare parts centres, regional parts distribution

centres, and traditional service centres covering more than 13 cities.

In 2003, the Chinese auto market expanded and 4.6 million units were sold,
a growth of 34% from 2002, and out of which 96% was domestically

manufactured. According to industry estimates, the sales volume of PRC
motor market for 2004 could approach 5 million units, in particular the

passenger car market is projected to grow further by 20%. This presents

‘tremendous opportunities for distributors such as DCH, which has the

industry and local knowledge as well as the experience and expertise

in distributing motor vehicles. bcH will continue to systematically develop
the mainland China market with the aim to build up a balanced portfolio
of both imported and domestic brands. The Closer Economic Partnership
Arrangement (‘CEPA’) between Hong Kong and the Central Government will
enable DCH to expand the mainland China network quicker than foreign

competitors, and to establish greater direct control over its operations.

RETHEIPEAEZRS
DCH Vehicle Sales to Mainland China

RETZEBRPERESEHEE
DCH Hong Kong vs Mainland China
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REYINZHES Non-Motor Trading

LEBEEETE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
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DCH Trading: pcH distributes consumer and commodity food products
including provisions, rice and cereal, edible oils, Chinese foodstuffs and
meat, cosmetics, building materials, and home electric appliances, etc., and
is involved in E&M engineering projects and maintenance services. DCH
has an extensive global sourcing network, and through its efficient logistics
support and nationwide distribution network, enables it to cater a variety
of products to its customers. Despite SARS, DCH was able to sustain its
sales and profit through a better mix of products (e.g. basic food necessity
with widened product variety and price range) and diversified sales
channels (e.g. the self-managed FoodMarts frozen food specialty chain
leveraged on people’s dine-in tendency during saRrs period and attained
satisfactory results). In mainland China, the nationwide distribution
network covers over 40 major cities. DCH’s trading business plan is to
enhance its existing sourcing network, continue to extend product variety
to suit the needs of different market segments, and to transform itself from
the role of middleman to a fully integrated, one-stop supply chain service

provider with primary development focus on mainland China.

Sims Trading: Sims Trading (www.simshk.com) specialises in the
distribution of branded food, beverage, household and healthcare
products in Hong Kong, Macau, and mainland China for the retail and
catering markets. The company’s brands include Pocari Sweat, Ovaltine,
Kikkoman, Hunt, Barilla, Paul’s, Heinz and Almond Roca for the Hong
Kong Market, and Ferrero, Martell, Campbell’s, MeadJohnson and
Ovaltine for the mainland China market. Sims is extensively involved

in providing third party logistics services to major companies such as

Heineken, Gillette, Pizza Hut and Unza Cathay.
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Property

BB EEM
EET (FEHR)
Approximate GFA
gl Type Ownership ('000 sq. ft.)
ERYE Properties in Hong Kong
REY* Investment Properties
PERE [GES CITIC Tower Commercial 40% 562
X4 [SES Festival Walk Commercial 50% 1,200
RETEEHL BE DCH Commercial Centre Commercial 100% 389
=LV T¥ Wyler Centre Industrial 100% 393
BERL I Broadway Centre Industrial 100% 342
WMHRIFEHRL IE Yee Lim Industrial Centre Industrial 100% 320
Hit =) Others Various 100% 549
BEHEE Development Properties
m=2 FEE Discovery Bay Residential township 50% 3,000
Het F= Others Residentizl 100% 1,100
LiEYpE Properties in Shanghai
REYF Investment Properties
PEREES [EES CITIC Square Commercial 80% 1,137
2005 F=E Rovyal Pavilion Residential 100% 374
REEE Development Properties
EFPIHR (e New Westgate Garden Residential 100% 3,000
SHRESHE MREEER Near Pudong Airport Logistic Development 100% 4,740
(HyRE M site area)
LB EETHE in HK$ mition 2003 2002
-t Turnover 401 480
HHE R Contribution 508 894
TEuRMEE L F Proportion of total contribution 19% 19%
FEE Net assets 18,986 18,708
BEAREX Capital expenditure 104 2,803

FEEENIEYERROHAETERLE
HbhBEREEERHAREYERERE
B AATHA - UERUENEERESH
PEEEHRRE aYeRIRe2ETE
EHLUZEZAENYEE LG EEE -

of the property to managing the completed development.

CITIC Pacific’s major property investments are located in Hong Kong
and Shanghai. They consist of large-scale residential and commercial

" investment properties and development projects. The Company’s
experienced property team is actively involved in every aspect of a project,

from identifying investment opportunities and managing the construction
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In Hong Kong, CITIC Pacific has a land bank of about 4.1 million sq. ft.
gross floor area available for development, of which about 3 million sq. ft.

is in Discovery Bay.

Discovery Bay, 50% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a large residential
development jointly developed with HKR International Ltd. Since its
commencement in 1973, Discovery Bay has grown from a holiday resort
to a fully integrated, self-contained suburban multinational residential
community of both locals and expatriates. Its planning is based on the
concept of a private car free, green town development with a
comprehensive range of educational, community and social facilities to
serve the Discovery Bay population. Situated on the Northeastern shore
of Lantau Island, Discovery Bay is endowed with ample open space,
recreational and leisure facilities including a private beach, a central park,

scenic promenade, golf courses and a marina.

The current Yi Pak Bay development is located in the northern part of
Discovery Bay with a total gross floor area of approximately 2.34 million
sq. ft., of which 0.98 million sq. ft. has been developed as Siena One
{Phase 11) and Siena Two (Phase 12). Siena One, with a gross floor area
of 0.34 million sq. ft., has all been sold. Siena Two, with a gross floor
area of 0.64 million sg. ft., was about 52% sold at the end of 2003.

The superstructure works for Phase 13, which has a gross floor area of

0.53 million sq. ft., will commence in the second quarter of 2004.

In addition, another 1.67 million sq. ft. gross floor area is available for

further residential development at Discovery Bay.

CITIC Tower, 40% owned by CITIC Pacific, is our headquarters and a
landmark on the Hong Kong waterfront comprising 562,000 sq. ft. of
offices, retail shops and restaurants, and linked to the Admiralty MTR
station with a footbridge. The building is currently 94% occupied. Due

to over supply of office space, rentals were soft in 2003.

Festival Walk, a 1.2 million sq. ft. of shopping and office complex, is 50%
owned by CITIC Pacific. Jointly developed with Swire Group, it is located at

the interchange of the Kowloon Canton Railway and Mass Transit Railway

- in Kowloon Tong. Completed in 1998, Festival Walk is one of the most

successful shopping centres in Hong Kong where vacancies are rare and

rentals are firm.
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In Shanghai, CITIC Pacific has been active in acquiring land. Phase I of
New Westgate Garden residential project is progressing well and pre-sale
is scheduled for the second half of 2004. This development, located in
Huangpu District, is adjacent to Xizang Nanlu and Jianguo Donglu, within
walking distance from a future subway station of the new Metro Line 8.
New Westgate Garden will comprise residential towers, a multi-storey
commercial complex with retail shops and a basement carpark, with a

gross floor area of approximately 3 million sq. ft.

CITIC Square, 80% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a Grade A office tower in
Nanjing Xi Lu, Shanghai. Its rental continues to do well with occupancy
of 99%. Royal Pavilion, 100% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a luxury service

apartment, with occupancy of 87%, and its rental income is stable.

CITIC Pacific also owns a site of about 4.74 million sq. ft. near Shanghai

Pudong Airport for accommodating future logistic development.
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Industrial Manufacturing

LB E BT E in HK$ miliion 2003 2002
BER Turnover 4,842 3,581
BT E R Contribution 178 126
G Rl Proportion of total contribution 7% 3%
FEE Net assets 1,494 1,212
EARRX Capital expenditure 545 280

WZEZNE—F > PERERCHHRAYK
EEEBMH24% 7 I - AT RSENE
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HER38% -

In January 2004, CITIC Pacific entered into agreements to increase its
shareholding in Jiangyin Special Steel by purchasing an additional 24%
from its joint venture partner. Subject to completion, CITIC Pacific’s
shareholding in Jiangyin Special Steel will be increased to 79%. Jiangyin
Special Steel produces high-grade steel used in bearings and gears using
high quality production lines. In 2003, total production was 1.7 million
tonnes, an 11% increase from 2002. Approximately 9% of the output was

exported to South Korea and Southeast Asian countries.

In February 2004, CITIC Pacific entered into an agreement to purchase a

95% interest in Daye Steel, which is located in Huangshi, Hubei Province,
which in 2003 produced 1.3 million tonnes of specialty steel for uses such
as bearings, gears and steel pipes. The acquisition will make CITIC Pacific

one of the market leaders in specialty steel production in mainland China.

Wuxi Huada Motors Company produces low noise, low vibration and
high torque electrical motors for the domestic and European markets.
In 2003, production was 2.1 million KW, an increase of 38% from 2002.

At 28 %5

Other Businesses

LOEH B BT E in HK$ million

gRE Turnover

BEREB Contribution -

1 B R & AL A Proportion of total contribution
REEE Net assets

EARAX Capital expenditure
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Other Businesses continued
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CiTic Capital Markets

50% owned by CITIC Pacific, CITIC Capital Markets Holdings
(www.citiccapital.com) focuses on cross-border China-related investment
banking services, including corporate finance and advisory, debt capital

markets, asset management and brokerage. In 2003, the first full year of

~ its official operation, ccMH achieved excellent results in terms of both

performance and profitability.

CCMH’s investment banking business gained market recognition through
some well structured and executed deals in 2003 such as the US$180
million convertible bond offering for CITIC International Financial
Holdings and the HK$908 million privatisation of Pacific Concord
Holdings. The asset management business launched four new funds in the
past year and also provided discretionary investment services, all of which
achieved satisfactory performance. In particular the two flagship funds
(Global Macro Fund and China Plus Fund) have recorded excellent
investment returns. On the brokerage front, significant inroads have been
made during the year in expanding coverage both for institutional and
retail clients, capitalising upon the investment sentiment especially in the
second half. Additional market share, enhanced industry ranking and

improved profitability have been achieved as a result.

Developing Businesses

In January 2003, CITIC Pacific formed a 50/50 joint venture with
Adaltis-Picchio of Canada to engage in research and manufacture of
various diagnostic test kits such as those for sars, Aids and Hepatitis
among others. A manufacturing plant is being built in Shanghai and

completion is expected in late 2004.

The joint venture Shanghai CP Guojian Pharmaceutical continues its
research into various medicines including the current clinical trial of new
drugs. A manufacturing plant is being constructed with completion in the
third quarter of 2004.

CITIC Pacific’s joint venture with Fudan University continues to develop
distance learning in mainland China. At the end of 2003, approximately
5,800 students were enrolled studying about 21 courses. In addition,

training programs to corporations are also offered.
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of the Consolidated Financial Results for 2003

Introduction

CITIC Pacific’s 2003 Annual Report includes a letter from the Chairman
to shareholders, the annual accounts and other information required by
accounting standards, legislation, and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
This Financial Review is designed to assist the reader in understanding
the statutory information by discussing the contribution of each business

segment, and the financial position of the company as a whole.

Pages 82 to 88 of the Annual Report contain the Consolidated Profit and
Loss Account, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity. Following these financial statements, on pages 89 to
154 of the Annual Report, are Notes that further explain certain figures

presented in the statements.

On page 155 is the report of CITIC Pacific’s auditor - PricewaterhouseCoopets -
of their independent audit of CITIC Pacific’s annual financial report.

Basis of Accounting

CITIC Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. Hong Kong accounting standards broadly follow
International Accounting Standards. In preparing its 2003 annual
accounts, the Group has adopte‘d sSAP No. 12 (Revised) ‘Income Taxes’
which becomes effective for the current accounting year. ssap No, 12
(Revised) requires that taxation whose payment is deferred into the
future should be calculated at the current tax rate rather than the rate
when the deferred tax account was set up. As a result, the profit for 2002,
captial reserve and retained profit as at 31 December 2002 are reduced
by HK$42 million, HK$49 million and HK$107 million respectively.
The figures for years 2001 and before have not been adjusted for effects
on the adoption of ssap No.-12 (Revised).




AR 3R B 14 3E 7 Profit Attributable to Sharehclders
“ERZHEZRREERAAEETZERE  The net profit attributable to shareholders for 2003 was HK$1,305 million,
B MOFFTHEZER=1/ELTHE  adecrease of 66% compared with HK$3,875 million achieved in 2002. The

HITRD66% o HHED ZFRFR T reasons for the decrease in profit are described below.
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EBoERFER Business Segment Conftribution
RIRBEBNAETEZFZWMAEM - 8 The contribution made by major business units in 2003, and compared
ZEEFUBWT with 2002, were:
a2 ¥ B R Contribution
EHEET HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 - 2002
£ Power Generation ) 229 245 (16)
ETERE Civil Infrastructure 635 1,238 (603)
ERE Communications 234 553 319)
m= Aviation 421 1,263 (842)
HERSH Marketing & Distribution 264 227 37
mEt Property 508 894 (386)
TEBE Industrial Manufacturing 178 126 52
REYEER Investment Properties Revaluation (587) - (587)
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Compared with the contribution for 2002:

o Power Generation: the increased demand for electricity and the full
commercial production of the plant in Inner Mongolia resulted in
higher profit but this was offset by the pre-operating expenses in the
newly commissioned plants. The Ligang power plant is accounted on a
dividends received basis so a portion of its good performance in 2003
will be recorded in 2004,

o Civil Infrastructure: the decreased contribution was due to the sale of
bridges, tunnels and a road in Shanghai to the Shanghai Municipal
Government in the first half year. The operating profit of the Eastern
and Western Tunnels reduced due to the reduction in annual traffic

volume due to SARS.

e Communications: CITIC Telecom 1616’s call volume increased but the
margin in 2003 were reduced most notably by the switch from mobile
to fixed line usage in the sARS period. cPcNet’s performance was
affected by investment in new products. Operating results at cT™ and
CITIC Guoan were better than 2002.

o Aviation: a dramatic reduction in passenger traffic at both Cathay Pacific
and Dragonair while SARS was active caused losses in the first half of
2003 but in the second half traffic recovered rapidly.

o Marketing & Distribution: The passenger car market in Hong Kong
contracted due to saRs and the increased First Registration Tax, but this
weakness was offset by the sales of commercial vehicles to other parts of
China and the Hong Kong Motor Service Centre’s catalytic converter
installation works. The other trading businesses of DcH and Sims made

significant improvements.

o

Property: Compared with 2002, the sale of units at Discovery Bay
reduced 70%, this in combination with related provisions, the cost of
financing unsold units and amortisation costs, resulted in a loss in the
area of property development. Rental income in Hong Kong decreased
in some office and warehouse properties but was resilient at the Festival

Wialk shopping centre and at the Shanghai properties.
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o Industrial Manufacturing: the increased contribution was due to a 11%

increase in the volume of steel sold at higher prices per tonne than 2002.

o Property Revaluation: Professionally qualified valuers - Knight Frank
and Tekko Building Co Ltd ~ assessed the value of our investment
properties as at 31 December 2003 and as a result HK$587 million was
charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

Further details of the performance of each business can be found in the

Business Review on pages 5 to 29.

T A B B
Contribution

B B T HKS million

1,500-
1,000~
500-
0-
-500-
- BR LRGN BRR ks HORAE ko)-4 IgME BAMERE
Power Civil Communications  Aviation Marketing & Property Industrial Invesiment
Generation Infrastructure Oistrioution Manufacturing  Properties

Revaluation

3 2002 2003

FEREBHEREF MR EEE (B99HZ
MrEE2) RERTGF (BB100H 2 M3 3) B2k
BEZeER  AFAEHEBERBEEAA K
¥R OB EERABZHE#B(EI127EZ
BtaE25).

The annual accounts contains business segment information for
turnover (Note 2 on page 99) and pre-tax profit (Note 3 on page 100)
and detail of segment assets and liabilities from consolidated activities,
jointly controlled entities and associated companies (Note 25 on

page 127).
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Geographical Distribution

The division of contribution and assets between Hong Kong, mainland
China and Overseas is shown below based on the market location of each
business. There was a substantial decline for the amount contributed by
the mainland China components following the disposal of the bridges and

tunnels in Shanghai in mid-year.

Geographical Distribution

—EEZF+-A=+-HEE
Year ended 31 December 2003

BB %
Contribution %*

—BE=F+-A=+—8BKE
As at 31 December 2003

REBEME%
Assets at Book Value %

R =B R7TEE Heng Kong SAR
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L% E Mainland China

E5h Overseas

* For certain business, the total contribution is allocated to a geographic area based
on the proportion of the turnover of that geographic area to the corresponding
total turnover, '

Interest Expense
The Group’s interest expense decreased from HK$490 million to HK$400
million because average borrowings in 2003 were lower than 2002. The

interest rate on the borrowings was little changed between 2003 and 2002.

Amortisation

Accounting standards require certain major adjustments that are unrelated
to the cashflow of our businesses. Goodwill - the amount paid for buying
a business that exceeds the value of its physical and identifiable assets -
must be amortised to the profit and loss account over its useful life not
exceeding 20 years. In 2003, HK$202 million of goodwill was amortised to
the profit and loss account, a HK$2 million decrease compared to the year
of 2002.
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Taxation
Taxation decreased from HK$424 million in 2002 to HK$371 million in
2003. The components of taxation charge for the year are set out in Note 6

of the annual accounts.

Shareholders’ Returns

CITIC Pacific’s primary objective is to increase shareholder value for
which it has used earnings per share as a proxy. The Company expects its
businesses to provide returns on investment over their lives that will

provide shareholders with an adequate return on equity.

Earnings per Share

Earnings per share were HK$0.60 for 2003, a decrease of 66% compared
with HKS$1.77 for 2002. The number of shares outstanding in the two
years was substantially the same so all the decreases in earnings per share

was attributable to the decrease in profit.
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BRERES Shareholders’ Funds per Share
CEEZF+_A=+—HZERBRHESLE Shareholders’ funds per share at 31 December 2003 was HK$17.7, less than
L1770 BOEFZEFTA=T-HZ the HK$19.4 at 31 December 2002 mainly due to a special dividend of
194 hHEY > FERR-FE=HDIH  HKSI per share paid to sharcholders on 12 May 2003.

T HIRERFAREGREWITTRR -

BRBERES SRES

Shareholders’ Funds per Share Dividend per Share
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1 E38% 2 Interim Dividend

EZE K Hif% & Final Dividend

AR 8 Special Dividend
SREER Dividend per Share

TEEZEZERERAAREAERER  Same as 2002, a final dividend of HK$0.70 per share is proposed for 2003.
0.707T - HETEZHHMF -
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Turnover

The largest component of Turnover is the sale of goods and services, but
other items such as sales of assets are included. Only the turnover from
businesses included as Consolidated Activities is reported - they
contributed HK$812 million to the net profit before taxation - not

turnover in jointly controlled or associated companies.

Marketing & Distribution turnover increased 8% in the year 2003
compared with 2002. Motor trading turnover increased 15%, Other
trading and distribution turnover increased slightly by 3%. Industrial
Manufacturing turnover increased 35% mainly due to increased sales of
specialty steel, while communications turnover increased 27% mainly
due to the growth of business of CITIC Telecom 1616.

Other turnover in 2002 included the sale of the 80% interest in mainland
China Express No. 1 Backbone Network at a consideration of HK$1.6
billion while 2003 includes HK$6.2 billion for the sales of bridges, tunnels

and a road in Shanghai.

=21
Turnover
‘ _ 30-
BIERET
HKS billion
25-
20 - ;
15-
10- |
N
.
5-1
||
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B 74 & Power Generation

112 8% Communications

T #5% & 5 8 Marketing & Distribution

[ ¥ 3 Property

[ TE 845 R Efh Industrial Manufacturing & Others

H & 57 Sale of Businesses
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EXMX Capital Expenditure

TREEXRHFE_TTHFR_FF=FZE  Capital expenditure in the Industrial Manufacturing business in 2002
AR S REBE—ERHMIKSE - 2R and 2003 was to construct a new processing plant, Marketing and
ERSHEEBE_TE=H2E4MX > A  Distribution purchased additional vehicles for its motor leasing activities
REREHEEHREEE - FEEHTME  in 2003, Communications installed equipment to match the growth in its
W& UReMEEEREZER - E-%F  traffic volume. In 2002, two properties were purchased in Shanghai for
E2E FEBAMALEYE  AEAEY  HKS2.7 billion.

ZHtEn

Include in ‘Other Sectors’ is investment in a pharmaceutical project.
[HAb#ES | @F - EEEREEE - £-F  In 2002, a 50% interest in CITIC Capital Market Holdings Limited was
ZE MIBATEEEATSHERAMATE  purchased for HK$510 million.
50%HEd > EEWRLE-TET -

EFXRX Capital Expenditure
B EET HKS million

ITHsE Industrial Manufacturing
HELSHE Marketing & Distribution
Ehi 5 Other Sectors '
EER Communications

BE Power Generation

M Property

EBR Civil Infrastructure
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Group Liquidity and Capital Resources

General Policies

The Group’s policy is to maintain a high degree of financial control and
transparency. Financing and cash management activities are centralised
at head office level to enhance risk management, control and the best

utilisation of financial resources of the Group.

Funding sources are diversified through utilisation of both the banking
and capital market. Financings are arranged to match business
characteristics and cash flows. Limited or non-recourse project finance

is employed when it is available.

CITIC Pacific conducts business mainly in Hong Kong and mainland
China, therefore is subject to market risk in the foreign exchange rate of
HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. To minimise currency exposure,
non Hong Kong dollar assets are usually financed in the same currency as
the asset or cash flow from it, either by borrowing or using foreign
exchange contracts. Achieving this objective is not always possible due to
limitation in financial markets and regulatory constraints, particularly on
investment into mainland China as Renminbi is not a free convertible
currency and the on-shore forward market has not been developed. In
addition, ‘Registered Capital’, which is usually accounts for about 25% to
30% of total investment amount, is required to be paid in US Dollar or HK
Dollar. As a result, CITIC Pacific has an increasing exposure to the
Renminbi. As of 31 December 2003, around 21% of the Group’s assets

were based in mainland China.

In order to stabilise interest costs despite rate movements, a suitable
mixture of fixed rate / floating rate borrowings is determined after taking
into consideration of the general market trend, the Group’s cash flow
pattern and interest coverage ratio. In addition to raise fixed rate debts,
the Group actively employs interest rate swap transactions to manage

long term interest cost.

The Company only uses derivative transactions for interest rate and
currency hedging purposes, speculative trading is prohibited.
Counterparties’ credit risk are carefully reviewed. In general, the
Company only deals with financial institutions with single A or above
credit rating, and the counterparties’ lending exposure to the Group is

also an important consideration as a means to control credit risk.
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RERE Cash Flow
B EE 2 K EEBERA AILH & By design, most of the Group’s debt is raised by the holding company, as
BREBATRTHERNHERE - J9EE  such the amount of cash flow from each business to the Company is an

AAFMREREEE N EEEE - important measure as to the Company’s ability to service its debts.
BEEEZRERE Cash Contribution by Business Segment

AEEET HK$ million 2003 2002
HEEER Infrastructure

BE Power Generation 317 305
HEEEE Civil Infrastructure 283 2,323
E8% Communications 232 101
iz Aviation 334 361
L/E Property 1,090 1,732
HERTH Marketing & Distribution 123 334
A BEEHEGE_RE=ZCR-FE In addition, sale of business interests contributed HK$6.2 billion and
Al AR SE B Y%'ﬁﬁ‘f\‘i“f{%x&‘%“ﬁ@‘_ HK$2.4 billion in 2003 and 2002 respectively. Sale of marketable
THUETIZHEEZER - ERHEHFEES securities contributed HK$220 million and HK$2.3 billion in 2003 and

E_ZR=ZFR-FZ_FUNAALE 2002 respectively.
RUEEF - E_TEIRE® =Tz

R&EEM -
KB cRERE SRAERE
Cash Flow from Operations Cash Flow per Share
FERET 20- BT ©
HKS bilion _ HKS l
15-
!7
o < o
ol ey
M~
5 1—7 r S i
- - wll
| | { | i
| 1_J ‘ ~ el o Lo
o-— —e— ] bt~
98 Qo 01 02 03 29 00 01 02 03
T EFRER Infrastructure . IESUERHEM CIEEHRAZERESRE
Industrial Manufacturing From Regular Cash Flow per Share
BE HERDHE & Others
Marketing & Distribution EE LEEK s BRRSRE
T HEEE Sale of Businesses From Cash Flow per Share from the Sale of Businesses

)% Property
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Consolidated Cash Flow Summary

BYEETT HKS miflion 2003 2002
ReFEks Net Cash generated from
BAER consolidated activities 1,535 4,483
HEEIEE jointly controlied entities 23 (88)
/NS associated companies (266) 1,795
B&E investments 263 2,194
eSS REEE Sale of business interests and marketable securities 6,370 916
BRI RRIEBZRE Capital expenditure and investmeant in new businesses (1,207) (3,440)
¥ Tax (148) (228)
FMEEE Net interest (397) (545)
6,173 5,089
BuftEe Dividends paid 4,377) (1,971)
BEEn/(E) Increase / {Decrease) in borrowings 1,151 (5,188)
RERERRS 2R Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,226) (7,159)
2,947 (2,070)
SEBEERNDESE Group Debt and Liquidity

AHEERERBESRDMBE > LELA The Group’s cash flow remains very strong and stable and of particular
VIREl LB Ak SREBEEREZHE note was the receipt of HK$6.2 billion in early July from the sale of
PHEEAT BT BEZFF=F+"A4 Shanghai road, bridges and tunnels projects. As of 31 December 2003,
=t—H AEBZEEREAEY -ELTH  the Group’s total outstanding debt was HK$10.5 billion (31 December
B (ZFEH+-A=+—H #H®NL+  2002: HK$9.3 billion), cash and deposits with banks were HK$5.5 billion
=) MBERRTERMAERRL A giving a net debt of HK$5.0 billion compared to HK$6.7 billion at

B REFEABNAEMEL  M-FET 31 December 2002. Leverage, measured by the net debt to total capital
FHZAZT—BZBEFEBABER Tt  and net debt to shareholders’ funds, was 11% and 13% respectively
Br - MELERESESEILEFAEEL (31 December 2002: 14% and 16%).
FAEBHRIERRELFE > 25 H11%

BI3% (ZHFFZHFT_A=+0: 4% X

16%) -
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BRAH Total Debt
AEMENERFTEEMMY - R -FE= Total debt decreased due to the repayment of bank borrowings. The debt

F+A=+—H > WEREPZHEEIER  at 31 December 2003 that will be mature in 2 years’ time amounted to
BERE14%  MAEBRZHZIBRTERS 14% of the total debt and at that date the Group had deposits with banks
EELTIET BAR_FEET=FFMME  of HKS$5.5 billion exceeding the loans due for repayment in 2003.
BTG -

BEEHE
Total debt
HBRET 20-
HK$ billion
15-
10-
5 T 1—%EA In the first year
B T E A In the second year
|
b =
a BR-ZRER (REEERTE)
0- L | ‘—J In the third to fifth year inclusive
99 0o 01 02 03
BB T 1% After fifth year
REBABMZBIWSEE Maturity Profile of Cutstanding Debt

FEBRBEE R RER Y EHIBERE The Group actively manages and extends its debt maturity profile to ensure
LEREESFIHZABEAEBEASE  that the Group’s maturing debt each year will not exceed the anticipated
FHZHSREREREZEEAAMESE  cash flow and the Group’s ability to refinance the debt in that year:
ETEBEZRE

—EENE

UEEEBTHE R &t EH%
2009 and
in HK$ million 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Beyond Total Percentage
NS
Parent Company! 27 133 1,715 1,877 1,600 3,510 8,862 84%
oy NG
Subsidiaries 847 517 137 105 60 o) 1,666 16%
REERELRSR
Total Outstanding Debt 874 850 1,852 1,982 1,660 3,510 10,528 100%
ERE
Percentage 8% 8% 18% 19% 16% 33% 100%
1. BE—FBERASTENMK L 2ENBAR 1. Including a US$450 million global bond which was issued by a wholly owned
BB iTRENER TEET BRI ES - special purposes vehicle.
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Scurces of Financing

As of 31 December 2003, the Group’s undrawn available facilities consists
of HK$4.6 billion in committed long term loans and HK$1.8 billion of
money market lines. In addition, available trade facilities amounted to
HK$2.1 billion.

BxEE @ REEsEH BRER
EEEET in HK® million Total Facilities Qutstandings Available Facilities
BEREER Committed Facilities
WITER Bank Loans 10,346 5,744 4,602
2RES Global Bonds 3,510 3,510 0
ABRE Private Placement 780 780 0

14,636 10,034 4,602

FBEEER Uncommitted Facilities
HETBEESE Money Market Lines 2,243 477 1,766
B5EEE Trade Facilities 2,488 390 2,008
BMHERAL—E ‘Financial Position at a Glance

UTAARER _ZE=F+_A=+—H
Z R BRI - R BIER L RRE
T

The charts below show the type, interest rate, maturity and currency
profiles of borrowings of the Group as at December 31, 2003.

HBRBR
Available Facilities

EREENFOELTFET
Total HK$8.47 billion

54% 21% 25%

R SRITE R Term Loan B ™5 Money Market T8 5 Trade

AEEBAE
QOutstanding Debt

BREM—BBRRE=TET
Total HK$10.53 billion

54% 33% 7% 6%

B RTTEE Term Loan

CIFABLE Private Placement

,,,,,,

B H% Bond

&35 Money Market
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BRESIEREERE
Outstanding Debt by Currency

44% 43% 6% 7%

5 TEE HKD Loan 3 #tfdE UsSD Loan

B ARBEE RVB Loan B K5 TE(EE Other Currency Loans

BRIMERGIE-AHERE
Outstanding Debt by Maturity

8% 6% 53% 33%

Ml — 77 In the 1st Year B ME MW In the 2nd Year

1 =ZA%R 8rd to 5th years

& T 1% After 5th year

NEFEEE (BR—F)

Interest Rate Base (Over One Year)

19% 81%

63% 37%
BT &% Al Currencies | . :

35% 85%

T [EE Fixed 28 Floating
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e Business Sector

Debt / Cash in Jointly Centrolled \/emures and
Associated Companies

The following table shows the debt / cash of jointly controlled ventures
and associated companies which under Hong Kong generally accepted

accounting standards is not consolidated into the Group’s accounts.

T EREER
BEFE/(Re)

ERERERENE

RABERZBE
Amount of debt
guaranteed by

(fﬁﬁ) Z8

Proportion of Net Debt/

Total Net Debt/ {Cash) attributable CITIC Pacific or
BEEET HK$ million (Cash) to CITIC Pacific its subsidiaries
BEXER Infrastructure
BE Power Generation 2,700 1,327 674
EERE Civil Infrastructure 3,156 1,166
% Communications 631 438
W= Aviation 18,932 4136
HERSH Marketing & Distribution 793 400
LS Property (315) (121)
H : Others (193) (98)
25,704 7,248 674

X—REMFPEE2WH RS E > I &
EAMER BB E AR LG EAE (LRE
TLISh) BAGEBET 2B EHHBORE
EMERHE -

MEIR
FEHEEUAABAZEATA
TE) #AEMERLERER -

(EfEfTE

EVACIIVERUES CRU IR e RS S E
IS A8 R R B S R R R -
FREFEALRFENEH, FUEUHES
B EHSMERR o A0 ARG EAME
R/ WA B S E R -

Festival Walk and Discovery Bay are financed by their shareholders and
do not have external borrowings; other associated companies and joint
ventures (other than disclosed in the above table) raise debt to finance

their operational activities without recourse to their shareholders.

Derivative Products
CITIC Pacific employs a combination of financial instruments, including
derivative products, to manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest and

currency rates.

The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and
interest rate option contracts to hedge exposures or to modify the interest
rate characteristics of its borrowings. CITIC Pacific enters into cross
currency swap contracts to change the denomination of its borrowings as
part of its management to limit foreign currency exposures. Foreign
exchange forward / option contracts are also used to hedge foreign

currency exposure,
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As of 31 December 2003, the Company had interest rate swap agreements
outstanding with a notional amount of approximately HK$2.8 billion and
a fair value of around negative HK$94 million which is largely offset by
the change of economic value of the asset or liability being hedged. Under
these agreements, CITIC Pacific is to exchange fixed to floating or floating
to fixed interest with its counterparties, without the exchange of the
underlying notional amounts. Other financial instruments such as forward
rate agreements may be employed when deemed appropriate to stabilise

the overall cost of borrowings over time.

As of 31 December 2003, approximately 62% of the Group’s total
borrowings after swap bore interest at floating rates and the remaining
38% were at fixed rates with average period of 5 years. The weighted
average all-in cost of debt, including fees and hedging costs in 2003 was

about 4.6%, the same as a year before.

The denomination of the Group’s borrowings before and after currency

swap and deposits with banks at 31 December 2003 were:

Wi Denomination

s Ep AR =] Htt aF
EESETEE HK$ mifllion Equivalent HKS uUs$ Renminbi Yen Other Total
REEEBEEE Borrowings in original currency 4,634 4,505 597 614 178 | 10,528
EREBRECER Borrowings after Currency Swap 7,201 1,038 597 614 178 10,528
B Deposits : 292 4,117 905 156 41 5,511
HEEZIEE (3RS ) B%E  Net Borrowings (Cash) after Swap | 6,909 (2,179) (308) 458 137 5,017

MBERRREAEE

ROEEZH+"F=+—H RERB®E
TEREGAARZBRAMOERAELT
WAL EE A B R R
AEME BB SITRE R WRIER -

E_FZ=F+H=+—0 > BEE¥RET
CHELZEERENBEARRTFEZE
. TEHBRKEATZEHE SR -
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Financial Guarantees and Pledged Assets

The aggregate outstanding amount of guarantees issued by the holding
company CITIC Pacific Ltd which were not included in consolidated
borrowings was approximately HK$674 million as of 31 December 2003
primarily related to a several guarantee to support CITIC Pacific’s share

of the loan facilities at Jilin Power Station.

As at 31 December 2003, assets of HK$53 million were pledged to secure
banking facilities utilised by subsidiaries, mainly related to Dah Chong

Hong’s overseas trading business.




BHAEE
B EE=&E+"HA=+—8 > AEHZ
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Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2003, the Group’s contingent liabilities had not
changed significantly from the last year end.

Leverage
Net debt divided by total capital was 11% at 31 December 2003 compared
with 14% at the end of 2002.

Leverage

JBHEFR BT HKS bifion

60

40 4 12x
30 3
[
N 22% 20% 0% ) 6 8x
14% 5x
N 4x
10 \ 1
0 0
99 00 01 02 03 99 00 o1 02 03

FERZE
Interest Cover

BRI (BT HKS billion

6

B & A8 Total Capital
BEFHIEEAEHE% Net Debt/Total Capital %

B & (B 5 Net Debt

MEEH
BE_ZE=E+"_A=Z+—RALEE > 8
EWRBE - BE - TEREHEZ BB ER
UMBZHEA7.8, M_EF_HH5H11.7
FEAFERHEHEERF T%66% - EREXH
BERE18% -

ERTEEFSX L HE - IEREBHZATIFE EBITDA

COTeEfesE  BE  fERBHEMSEENEZE (k=)
EBITDA/Interest Expense {x = times)

B 7| E XY (nterest Expense

Interest Cover
EBITDA divided by interest expense for the year ended 31 December 2003
was 7.8 compared to 11.7 in 2002, due to the 66% decrease in profit but

only a 18% decrease in total interest expense in the year.
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Loan Covenants

Over the years, CITIC Pacific has developed a set of standard loan
covenants to facilitate the management of its loan portfolio and debt
compliance. The financial covenants are limited to minimum net worth
undertaking; a maximum ratio of total borrowings to net worth and a
limit on the amount of pledged assets as a percentage of the Group’s total
assets. As of 31 December 2003, CITIC Pacific is in compliance with these

requirements.

Credit Ratings

The Company has been assigned investment grade foreign currency long
term credit rating of Baa3 by Moody's Investor Service and BBB- by
Standard & Poor’s. For both ratings the credit outlook is stable, reflecting
CITIC Pacific’s strong financial profile including low leverage, diversified
business and strong cashflow. The Group’s leverage, measured by the net
debt to total capital was 11% while interest cover, defined as EBITDA
divided by interest expense, was 7.8 for the year ended 31 December 2003.
We believe that these financial indicators were stronger compared to
companies with the same credit rating grade. The Company’s objective is
to maintain its financial discipline aiming to improve its credit rating

going forward.

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains certain forward looking statements with
respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of
the Group. These forward looking statements represent the Company’s
expectations or beliefs concerning future events and involve known and
unknown risks and uncertainty that could cause actual results,
performance or events to differ materially from those expressed or

implied in such statements.

Forward looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties.
Readers should be cautioned that a number of factors could cause actual
results to differ, in some instances materially, from those anticipated or

implied in any forward looking statement.




T B

10 Year Statistics

FLR(EESET) At year end (HK$ million) 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
BRES Shareholders' funds 25,426 26,971 36,912 40,538 42,082 38,240 41,304 41,480 42,538 38,826
B (B T) per share (Hk$) 1261 13.40 17.30 18.06 19.76 17.98 18.81 18.95 19.44 17.74
8f& Debt
afE Debt 9,747 9,706 10,243 23,302 22,075 18,563 15709 14,639 9,267 10,528
BHEER Bank deposits 796 614 594 710 900 8,044 5201 4,631 2,545 5,511
BREGERER Net debt / total capital 26%  25% 21% 36% 34% 22% 20% 19% 14% 1%
MeEs(E) Interest cover {times) 9 10 19 8 4 4 5 5] 12 8

E5ER Capital employed 35,173 36,677 47,155 63,840 64,107 56,803 57,013 56,128 51,805 49,354

BEEEE Fixed assets 8,884 9,045 9,829 10,472 11,785 11,916 13,433 14,702 15,804 15,526

HEEHIER Jointly controlled entities 331 509 798 859 831 1396 2,019 2365 3,582 4,085

AN Associated companies 19,682 20,046 25,393 38,812 238,799 20,987 23,630 22,893 22,377 22,805

RE Investments 4,304 5,644 9,183 11,170 11,548 14,511 9,264 8,070 7,092 1,027

TE Stockmarket capitalisation 38,000 53,000 95,800 65,520 35,530 62,230 60,720 37,893 31,514 43,332

BREH Number of shareholders 7,256 6,545 6,215 8,642 14,987 13,506 9,808 11,044 12,260 12,198

8T Staff 10,000 11,500 11,750 11,800 11,871 10,490 11,354 11,733 11,643 12,174

EE (BEEET) For the year (HK$ millior)

RRiRE SRR Net profit after tax ‘
BBEEER Net profit after tax 977 2,963 6,768 7,201 2,628 2,735 3,281 2,110 3,875 1,305
B (BB per share (HK$) 0.50 147 318 3.38 1.24 1.29 1.49  0.96 1.77  0.60

FEERNEFEH Contribution by major

business

mzE Aviation 707 1,054 702 (11) 859 1,475 324 1,263 421
EREE Civil Infrastructure 467 800 1,099 1382 1,292 1,320 1,362 1,238 635
ERE Communications 974 648 322 85 51 92 295 553 234
B2E Power Generation 186 186 170 230 440 314 281 245 229
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 277 330 360 330 230 226 119 227 264
mE Property 734 602 1,587 270 740 422 633 894 508
TREE Industrial Manufacturing 39 21 2 18 22 29 95 126 178
HEEA Consumer Credit 78 89 84 167 - - - - -
REYRERFE Investment Properties

Revaluation Deficit - - - - - - - - (587)

TREFMSIH - HE -

WEREBEHZHNEE EBITODA 1,975 4,040 4,321 5,706 4,739 4,763 5,240 3,944 5,731 3,133

BRBE (EET) Dividends per share (HK$)
5B Regular 0.48 0.55 0.62 0.70 0.70 0.75 0.85 0.80 1.00 1.00
(533 Special - - 030 030 - 200 - - 1.00 -
BE(E) Cover (times) 1.0 27 2.7 2.7 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.2 1.8 0.6

Bist -

1 —AARFEHEEEBHRTTGHEHRE
2 ARFEBMEN TRIETIEBRIEREI2H (FRE] FA_FF-_FEIUFENRE ER-_BE—FERURNZET UBRIEEFHIRYETE
FHERITI(ELLIBIERE  HELE -

Note:

1. Information of contribution by major business for 1994 is not avaflable.
2. Figures have been adjusted in year 2002 following the adoption of revised accounting standard of SSAP 12 ‘Income Tax’
For comparative purposes, the figures for years 2001 and before have not been adjusted for effects on the adoption.
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Human Resources

EZZFE=ZF+"A=+—H > AEEMN  Asat the end of December 2003, the Group employed 12,174 staff (2002:
FHRIARF FEWBELALREAER 11,643) in its headquarters in Hong Kong and its principal subsidiaries
50%REN S ELESLBMAETLL2,174A  and joint venture companies with more than 50% equity stake. Employees
(ZFFE T 11,6430) - FEIAHES ABL working in mainland China increased to 7,827 (2002: 7,168) while those
EFE782TA(ZFETHE 0 7,168A) > working in Hong Kong decreased to 4,129 (2002: 4,255). The number of
HHEEBABMTHEZ4,129A(ZFE " employees in other countries remains steady at 218 (2002: 220).
04,2550 - BABE R Z B 8 NBAIMESTE

B (ZEE—F - 220 ) » The sars outbreak in Hong Kong and in the region produced many

challenges to our staff both in their daily life and in re-organising the
TEIMBEHEREFAZIMNAL > EEPESE  way business was conducted to ensure normal operations could continue
BETZHEEFREYEBENE  £FEHEFA  under all possible circumstances. Efforts to take new initiatives to improve
LB BLB AR IERMFERURT  efficiency with a view to attaining higher levels of performance continued.
M > NREHEEZ TIERS . |

BEERET OB ESAY 4,500-
Staff in Major Cities 4,000~ W
3,500~ \ m
t |
3,000-1 | ] |
| H
2500~ | b
i o
2,000-] | ‘
| F
1500-| | 1 '
1,000 ( L o
| \
500- 1 | 1 | FI I
: | B ; |
Nl =y N BN BN BN ="
& =R -3 TEE IR IEE 858 EEE &N ATBET  EREXR
Hong Kong Bejing Sharighal Jiangyin, Wuxi, Guangzhou, Other China Gities Other Countries
Jiangsu Jiangsu Guangdong
Province Province Province

12003 . 2002

REBDEZEEAY 6,000~
Staff in Business Segments
5,000- 1—7

4,000- l
3,000 I
|| [
| i
2,000~ | 1
a |
1,000- — .
b . ! }
| f i
. e \I d H BN g
BYER fagciin fER% 2R HEERSH R THME )
Head Office Gl Communications Power Generation Marketing & Praperty Industrial Others
Infrasiructure Distribuiion Manufacturing

2003 EE 2002

50




ANERERE
FEREENFER-BRLAEZ AN RRER
B SEERHATERREMEE - 240
TR XS EEARN - RALZE SRR
BUR « WHASBLETFHRRMEZER
i <F AR B P SR L W - A
MEE QB THAES TR MATAHME
ETAEEATRATMERERLETZ
B -

8 T #HEd _
PEREHAEE - %8RS AAA AR
e EBREEHNZ AT LSRR LHRER
AEMZ R - A2 RS WM - REEEA
FMEEBEM MEDFMIELARER
WP BIEAFEERETRAZER
MBS 383 - SR A BB S WM - &
FCERA BN AR - BLHERE R
LERBARECERNET  SEeELE
ERm -

EMALMERLZT » I L ERTEHRE
Mo S AEEERERG T UL A I
AT EE Z HFMECK - B EHFHECRYE
T—EERFR > NUB T2 RERHERZ
ERERERE T2 EE - BN FHHMAE
RAEFFBERHEMAGRRRLR - AEEE
BEMECLEHFHRALMEANREL

o Wi PEREEEIRFAIZHME
BAEE . LEREEGEHAATLE ¥
ShERSERS PR ALt M EF KA > I RERD B A
EHXBERRTE - AEAXHHRE LT
HaRIEHEK o

Human Resources Management

CITIC Pacific strives to be consistent and fair in administering its human
resources management practices to the mutual benefit of its employees
and the Group. The Group recognises and respects individual’s rights
and adheres to non-discriminatory employment policies and practices
and this is part of our Code of Conduct, which also covers many aspects
of business ethics. Every employee of the Group is required to follow this
Code and heads of business units are charged with the responsibility of

disseminating the Group’s requirements to the people concerned.

Employee Compensation

CITIC Pacific aims to attract, retain and motivate employees who have the
relevant skills, knowledge and abilities to develop, support and sustain the
continued success of the Group. Employee’s cash remuneration typically
comprises a base salary and a variable compensation, mainly in the form
of a performance-related discretionary bonus which is based on the
Company’s and the individual’s performance. Senior management of the
Group receives a substantially higher portion of their cash remuneration
in performance bonus, reflecting their ability to influence business

outcomes and financial performance.

Due to its diverse business activities and extended geographical coverage,
the Group is mindful of the unique characteristics of local culture and
endeavours to be flexible in its compensation policies. One fundamental
principle that underpins all compensation policies is the belief in
rewarding staff members in accordance with their performance and
contributions to the Group. In keeping with the world trend towards more
use of variable pay and expanded eligibility, the Group has in the past two
years undertaken to replace many forms of guaranteed and fixed bonuses
with variable compensation, which has the acceptance and support of staff
members. On an annual basis, the Group reviews the cash compensation
and benefit programs provided for its employees to ensure that the overall
compensation is internally equitable, consistent with local and industry
norms, as well as in support of the Group’s business strategy. Towards this

end, Group companies are largely in conformity with this policy.
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A review was conducted in 2003 of the market practice for directors’ fees
and a proposal will be made at the Annual General Meeting to increase

Directors’ fees as follows:

22eH BHERE
BT HK$ Proposed Current
= Director 150,000 | =& Chairman 120,000
EnEE Other directors 100,000
EMZEEKE Audit Committee Member 100,000 | £& Chairman 100,000
¥MEaexs Remuneration Committee Member 50,000 & Nil
RHZEE Remuneration Committee
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The Board established a Remuneration Committee at its meeting on

27 August 2003 and the first meeting was held on 8 December 2003 to
review and approve the salary and bonus of the executive directors and
certain key executives and also review the remuneration policy of the

Group. All members of the Remuneration Committee attended.

Details of the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 and the granting
of options are reported on pages 75 to 76. Total remuneration paid to
directors was HK$95.5 million (2002: 109.7 million) and further

information on Directors’ Emoluments can be found on page 107.

Retirement Benefits

In line with market trends in Hong Kong and to achieve administrative
efficiency, the majority of the members of The CITIC Group Retirement
Plan (‘oRrso Plan’) consented to its replacement by The CITIC Group
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (‘MPE Scheme’) - with a choice of
14 funds managed by the Fidelity Retirement Master Trust and the Hang
Seng Mandatory Provident Fund - SuperTrust. At the same time,
recognizing that employees have diverse career and personal goals, the
Group’s retirement age in Hong Kong was changed to 55 effective from 1
August 2003.

Retirement benefits for employees in mainland China and other locations

are based primarily on local mandatory requirements.
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Training & Development

CITIC Pacific is committed to providing a healthy organisational
environment conducive to each individual’s development. Employees

are encouraged to commit to continuous improvement by taking
responsibility for their own learning and self-development. Seminars,
courses by professional institutions and in-house training are organised
regularly to help employees improve job performance and prepare for
future development. Where applicable, the Group arranges external service
providers to conduct customised training programs on specific subjects
such as managerial development, work place safety and updates on new
technology. Despite the restricted interface between employees during the
SaRs outbreak, the Group undertook to ensure that essential product and

skill training were continued albeit on a limited scale.

To promote work place’s safety, the safety and health committees in Group
companies meet regularly to review related measures and recommend

appropriate training for staff.

CITIC Pacific also believes in investing in the training and development
of the younger members of society. The Group has put in place various
apprentice training programs in different industries of subsidiary .
companies. It also participates in the Hong Kong Government’s Youth

Pre-employment Training Program for young school leavers.
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The Group and its employees support the local communities it operates.
As in the past many years, the Group supports charitable work and the
promotion of education, environment protection, sports, culture and the
arts by sponsoring many activities in Hong Kong, mainland China and
overseas. Most notably, the Group and its subsidiary companies have been
long-term supporters of the Community Chest of Hong Kong and the Red
Cross by making donations and participating in their campaigns and
fund raising activities. To provide financial assistance to the victims of
SARS, the Group and its employees also donated generously to various
SARS support funds. The Group is also an active donor to various
charitable and educational funds in Beijing and Shanghai, and employees
in mainland China took part in activities such as tree planting, and other

cultural and charitable events in the community.
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CITIC Pacific is committed to excellent standards of corporate governance

-and first class business practices extending beyond compliance with the

mandatory requirements such as that of the Companies Ordinance,
accounting standards and the Stock Exchange. Our principles of corporate
governance emphasize transparency, independence, accountability,

responsibility and fairness.

The Boeard

The Board currently comprises ten executive and six non-executive
directors of whom four are ‘independent’ under the revised Stock
Exchange Listing Rules coming into force on 31 March 2004 (the
biographies of the directors are set out on pages 62 to 65). Independent
non-executive directors are one-quarter and the total non-executive
directors are 38% of the Board. All directors and committees established
by the Board have recourse to external legal counsel and other
professionals for independent advice at the Group’s expense if they
require it. Under the Company’s articles of association all directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and their re-election is subject to a vote

of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The Board meets four times in 2003 to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and other business units, and approve future
strategy. The number of meetings held and the attendance record of the

Board members at these meetings in the last five years are

FEEAT as follows:
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
EFEERAE Number of Board meetings 4 4 4 4 4
HEX Attendance
BITES Executive 84% 85% 89% 89% 100%
FEHITES Non-Executive 100% 100% 50% 75% 100%
BUFNTES Independent Non-Executive 100% 86% 96% 83% 96%
2RES All Board members 90% 86% 89% 86% 98%
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System of Internal Controls
The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
system of internal control and prompt and transparent reporting its

activities to shareholders and to the public.

The accounting system and internal controls of the Group are designed
to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against losses
from unauthorised use or disposition, that transactions are executed in
accordance with management authorisation, the financial records are

reliable and financial statements show a true and fair view of the business.

Board Committees
The Board has established an executive committee, an audit committee

and a remuneration committee.

Executive Committee

The Board has established an Executive Committee of executive directors
and senior managers with responsibilities for running the Group’s
business, including the implementation of major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board. The Executive Committee meets monthly to review

and make decisions on financial and operational matters of the Group.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established in 1995 to provide advice and

recommendations to the Board. Its current members include:

Mr Alexander Reid Hamilton - Chairman
Mr Willie Chang
Mr Hansen Loh Chung Hon

All Committee members are independent non-executive directors until
the revised Listing Rules become effective on 31 March 2004. As under the
revised Listing Rules, Mr Willie Chang will cease to be ‘independent’ due
to his professional work for CITIC Pacific.
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The Committee members possess diversified industry experience and the
Chairman is an expert on financial and auditing matters. The Committee
meets four times each year, together with senior management and

auditors, both internal and external.

The Audit Committee’s main responsibilities are to consider the
appointment of the external auditors, their audit fee, resignation or
dismissal; to discuss with external auditors their independence and the
nature and scope of the audit; to review the half-year and annual financial
statements, particularly judgmental areas, before submission to the Board;
to review the external auditors’ management letter and management’s
response; to review the Group’s internal control system; to review internal
audit programme and findings; and to review the Group’s adherence to

various Codes described below.

During 2003 part of a meeting was attended only by the Committee
members and the external auditors. The number of meetings held and the
attendance of the members of the Audit Committee at these meetings for

the last five years including the meeting to approve the 2003 accounts are

Bzeg® #BuT as follows:
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
EBIRE Number of meetings held 4 4 4 4 4
HEE Attendance
BUFRITES Independent Non-Executive Directors 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
BREKEEE Chief Financial Officer 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
SEMBBE Group Financial Controller 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
N ED R BT Internal auditor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
INRIZEE External auditors 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
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The Audit Commiittee of the Board has reviewed the 2003 financial
statements with management and the Company’s internal and external

auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2003 to review and
approve the salary and bonus of the executive directors and certain key
executives and also review the remuneration policy of the Group. The
first meeting was held on 8 December 2003 with the attendance rate

of 100%. All Committee members are independent non-executive
directors until the revised Listing Rules become effective on 31 March

2004 and its current members are:

Mr Norman Ho Hau Chong - Chairman
Mr Willie Chang
Mr Alexander Reid Hamilton

Details of CITIC Pacific’s remuneration policies are in the Human
Resources section on pages 51 to 52, directors’ emoluments and retirement
benefit, are disclosed in Notes 10 and 11 on pages 107 to 108.

Internal Audit

The Group Internal Audit Department supports management by carrying
out a systematic review of all levels of organization over a period that

is determined after an assessment of the risks involved. The Audit
Committee endorses the audit plan annually. The Group Internal Auditor
has unrestricted access to all parts of the business, and direct access to any
level of management including the Chairman, or the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, as he considers necessary. The Group Internal Audit
Department submits regular reports for the Audit Committee’s review

in accordance with the approved work programme.

To reinforce the Group’s business culture and the established corporate
initiatives, and to strengfhen the internal control system over business
nearby, the Group has set up an internal audit function, currently
comprising of three audit staff, in Shanghai in 2003, reporting directly
to the Group Internal Auditor based in Hong Kong.
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External Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed by the shareholders
annually as the CITIC Pacific’s statutory auditor since 1989 and their
report is on page 155. Approximately HK$6 million (2002: HK$5 million)
was charged to the accounts of the Company and subsidiaries for
PricewaterhouseCoopers’ statutory audit and tax compliance services.
The amount of non statutory audit service for the Company and
subsidiaries provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers during the year

was minimal. The fees for the audit of subsidiaries not performed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers amounted to approximately HK$6 million.

Codes

To ensure the highest standard of integrity in our businesses, in 1995
the Group adopted a Code of Conduct defining the ethical standards
expected of all employees, and the Group’s non-discriminatory
employment practices. Training courses on the Code are held regularly
for all employees and the Audit Committee receives a report on the

operation, and the need for revision, of the Code every year.

The Group has issued its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors that follows the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the ‘Listing Rules’). Throughout 2003 the Group has
complied with the Code of Best Practice contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules.

The Group has endorsed the guide to good employment practices issued
by the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong to promote good and

responsible employment standards.

Connected Transactions

During the period, CITIC Pacific has issued press announcements in
respect of a number of ‘connected transactions’, details of which have
been included in the Directors Report on pages 71 to 74 and the related
press announcements can be viewed in the Group’s website

(www.citicpacific.com).
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Fair Disclosure and Investor Relations

CITIC Pacific uses its best endeavours to distribute material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely as possible. When
announcements are made through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange the
same information will be on its way to journalists and investment analysts
where an e-mail address or fax number is known and will be available to

shareholders on the Company’s website shortly thereafter.

CITIC Pacific recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to those
with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. During 2003,
investors were regularly received and visited to explain the Group’s
business. Questions on the Company and its products and services
received from the general public, individual shareholders and investment
analysts were answered promptly. In all cases great care has been taken

to ensure that no price sensitive information is disclosed.

Information about CITIC Pacific can be found in the Group’s website
including descriptions of each business and the Annual Reports for last

five years.

Financial Reporting

CITIC Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Society

of Accountants. Hong Kong accounting standards broadly follow
international accounting standards. The Group has adopted ssap

No. 12 (Revised) ‘Income Taxes” which became effective for the current
financial year. Appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; judgments and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.
The directors endeavour to ensure a balanced and understandable

assessment of the Group’s position and prospects in financial reporting.
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Headquarters and Registered Office

32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2820 2111

Fax: 2877 2771

Website

www.citicpacific.com contains a description of CITIC Pacific’s business,
copies of both the full and summary reports to shareholders,
announcements, press releases and other information.

Stock Codes

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong: 0267
Bloomberg: 267 HK

Reuters: 0267. HK

American Depository Receipts: CTPCY
CUSIP Reference No: 17304K102

Share Registrars

Shareholders should contact our Registrars, Tengis Limited, Ground Floor,

Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong on 2980 1333, or by fax: 2810 8185, on matters such as transfer

of shares, change of name or address, or loss of share certificates.

Annual and Interim Reports

Shareholders may obtain printed copies of annual and interim reports
from the Registrars. Other should contact the Company Secretary

on 2820 2111 or fax: 2877 2771 or at contact@citicpacific.com for

a printed report.

Investor Relations

Investors, shareholders and research analysts may contact the Investor
Relations Department by telephone at 2820 2004, by fax: 2104 6632 or
at investor.relations@citicpacific.com.

Financial Calendar

Closure of Register: 4 May 2004 to 10 May 2004
Annual General Meeting: 10 May 2004, 10:30 a.m.
Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hotel
Two Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road

Hong Kong

Final Dividend Payable: 13 May 2004
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Executive Directors

Larry Yung Chi Kin (Chairman), aged 62, a Director since 1990, is the
Vice Chairman and Managing Director of CITIC Hong Kong (Holdings)
Limited (‘CITIC HK’) and an Executive Director of CITIC Group (‘CITIC
Beijing’). He worked for 14 years with the Ministry of Electric Power in
the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC’) before coming to Hong Kong in
1978, and had extensive management experience before establishing

CITIC HK in 1987. Mr Yung is a Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club.

Henry Fan Hung Ling (Managing Director), aged 55, a Director since
1990, is a Deputy Chairman of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (‘Cathay’),
a director of Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited (‘Dragonair’) and a
Deputy Managing Director of CITIC HK. He is a non-executive director
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. Before joining CITIC HK
in 1987, Mr Fan held senior management positions with a number of

corporations and also practised law as a barrister.

Vernon Francis Moore (Deputy Managing Director), aged 57, a Director
and the Group Chief Financial Officer since 1990, is a director of Cathay,
cLp Holdings Limited (‘cLp Holdings’) and Hong Kong Air Cargo
Terminals Limited, and the Chairman of the New Hong Kong Tunnel

 Company Limited (‘NHKTC’), Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways

Management Company Limited (‘HKTHMC’) and the Western Harbour
Tunnel Company Limited (‘WHT’). Mr Moore joined CITIC HK in 1987
as Executive Director after holding senior management positions with

a number of financial institutions.

Peter Lee Chung Hing (Deputy Managing Director), aged 50, is the

Vice Chairman of CITIC Guoan Co., Ltd. (‘CITIC Guoan’) and Air China
Cargo and a director of Dragonair and other Group companies concerned
with industrial, communications and trading businesses. Before joining
CITIC HK in 1988, Mr Lee was with major banking and shipping groups
in Hong Kong. He joined CITIC Pacific Limited (‘CITIC Pacific’) in 1990.
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Norman Yuen Kee Tong (Deputy Managing Director), aged 55, a Director
since 2001, is the Chairman of CITIC Pacific Communications Limited
(‘cpc’) and the representative of CITIC Pacific on the Board of Companhia
de Telecomunicacoes de Macau s.A.R.L. Mr Yuen was previously the
deputy chief executive officer of Pacific Century CyberWorks Limited

and had extensive experience in the telecommunications business. He
serves on several public bodies and advisory committees and is a Justice

of the Peace.

Yao Jinrong (Executive Director), aged 64, a Director since 2000, is the
Managing Director of CITIC Pacific China Holdings Limited. He joined
CITIC Beijing in early 1985 and once served concurrently as executive
secretary to CITIC Beijing’s former Chairman Mr Rong Yiren and director
of CITIC Beijing’s general office. From 1995 to 2000, Mr Yao was one

of CITIC Beijing’s Vice Presidents and Executive Directors. He is now

a director of CITIC Beijing.

Chang Zhenming (Executive Director), aged 47, a Director since 2000,
joined CITIC Beijing in 1983 and has extensive experience in finance,
banking and securities business. Mr Chang is an Executive Director
and Vice President of CITIC Beijing, Chief Executive Officer of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited, Executive Vice Chairman

of CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited and a director of CITIC HK.

Li Shilin (Executive Director), aged 54, a Director since 2000, is an
Executive Director and a Vice President of CITIC Beijing. He is also the
Chairman of CITIC Guoan Group, Xin De Telecom International Ventures
Co., Ltd., CITIC Guoan Information Industry Co., Ltd. and CITIC Offshore
Helicopter Co., Ltd.

Carl Yung Ming Jie (Executive Director), aged 35, is a director of Cathay
and other Group companies concerned with infrastructure and industrial
projects in the PrRc. He joined CITIC Pacific in 1993. He is the son of

Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.
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Liu Jifu (Executive Director), aged 60, a Director since 2001, is a director
of CITIC HK. Before joining CITIC HK in 2000, Mr Liu worked with the
Financial and Economics Research Institute in the China Academy of
Social Sciences for 5 years. Formerly, he was an Executive Director of
China Everbright Group Limited, the Chairman of China Everbright
Travel Inc and China PINGHE Import & Export Co., Ltd.

Non-Executive Directors
Willie Chang, aged 60, a Director since 1987, is the sole proprietor of
Willie Chang & Co., Solicitars, with over 34 years’ experience in legal

practice, including as a partner of Johnson, Stokes and Master. 1*

Hamilton Ho Hau Hay, aged 53, a Director since 1992, is a director of
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, an Alternate Director to Dr Ho Tim
for New World Development Company Limited, an Executive Director of
Honorway Investments Limited (‘Honorway’) and Tak Hung (Holding)
Company Limited (‘Tak Hung’). He is the brother of Mr Norman Ho Hau
Chong.*

Alexander Reid Hamilton, aged 62, a Director since 1994, was a partner
of PricewaterhouseCoopers where he practised for 16 years. He is a
director of a number of Hong Kong companies including cosco Pacific
Limited, Shangri-La Asia Limited, Esprit Holdings Limited and Octopus
Cards Limited.***

Hansen Loh Chung Hon, aged 66, a Director since 1994, is the Managing
Director of Wyler Textiles, Limited, Chairman of Farrington American

Express Travel Services Limited and a director of cLp Holdings.*!

Norman Ho Hau Chong, aged 48, a Director since 1994, is an Executive
Director of Honorway and Tak Hung, and a director of Hong Kong

Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited, Lee Hing Development Limited, and
a number of other quoted companies. He is the brother of Mr Hamilton
Ho Hau Hay.**
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André Desmarais, aged 47, a Director since 1997, is the President and
Co-Chief Executive Officer of Power Corporation of Canada. He is a
member of the Chief Executive’s Council of International Advisers of
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and

member of the CITIC International Advisory Council.

Peter Kruyt (Alternate Director to André Desmarais), aged 48, an
alternate director since 2003, is Vice President of Power Corporation
of Canada, Chairman of Power Pacific Corporation Limited and

Chairman of the Canada-China Business Council.

* Independent Non-Executive Director
T Member of the Audit Committee
+ Member of the Remuneration Committee

Senior Managers

Bi Yupu (General Manager, Power Project Department), aged 62,1s a
Deputy Managing Director of CITIC HK and the chief representative of
CITIC Pacific’s Beijing Office. Before joining the CITIC HK Group in 1987,
he worked for 20 years with the Ministry of Electric Power in the PRC

as a senior engineer and deputy director of North China Electric Power
Research Institute. He joined CITIC Pacific in 1993.

Chau Chi Yin (Director, Group Financial Control), aged 48, joined CITIC
Pacific in 1990, is a director of Hong Kong Resort Company Limited
(‘HK Resort’) and Group companies in the industrial sector projects.

He joined CITIC HK in 1987 after experience in public accounting and

in financial management with a major Hong Kong listed company.

Leslie Chang Li Hsien (Director, Group Finance), aged 49, is a director
of CITIC Guoan, HKTHMC and WHT. Before joining CITIC Pacific in 1994,
he was a partner at KPMG specialising in the financial services industry
and the Director of the firm’s Chinese Practice in the United States.
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Frances Yung Ming Fong (Director, Technology Development), aged 32,

is the Deputy Chairman of cPc and a director of NHKTC. She joined CITIC
Pacific in 1995 and is responsible for the development of technology-based
projects. She is the daughter of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.

Milton Law Ming To (Director, Business Development), aged 40, is a
director of Dragonair, NHKTC, WHT, HKTHMC, CITIC Guoan, Air China
Cargo and other Group companies in the infrastructure, environment,
trading and industrial sector. Before joining CITIC Pacific in 1992,

he worked in the banking industry.

Polly Lawrence (Director, Group Human Resources and Administration),
aged 57, was head of human resources and communications of a Hong
Kong listed company before joining CITIC Pacific in 1993.

Hui Ying Bun (Group Chief Executive, Dah Chong Hong), aged 57, is
also the Chief Executive - Motor, responsible for the overall management
of the Dah Chong Hong Group’s businesses in Hong Kong, the PRG,
Singapore, Japan, and Canada. He joined Dah Chong Hong in 1966,
obtaining extensive experience in executive management, motor
distribution, and China Trade.

Chu Hon Fai (Chief Executive - Trading, Dah Chong Hong), aged 58,
is responsible for the Dah Chong Hong Group’s trading business in Hong
Kong, the prc, Singapore, Japan, and Canada. He joined Dah Chong Hong

in 1964, obtaining extensive experience in global trading and distribution.

Peter Chan Kwong Choi (Managing Director, CITIC Telecom 1616
Limited), aged 40, joined CITIC Pacific in 2000, when CITIC Pacific
bought Telecom 1616 Limited where he gained extensive experience

in the telecommunications industry.
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Glenn Robert Sturrock Smith (Chief Executive, Sims Trading Company
Limited (‘Sims Trading’)), aged 51, joined CITIC Pacific in 2001 when
CITIC Pacific bought Sims Trading where he had many years of experience
in the marketing and distribution of consumer products. He is Chairman

of the Guangdong Jing Yun Distribution Co., Ltd.

Aaron Wong Ha Hang (General Manager - Projects, Property
Department), aged 45, is an Executive Director of HK Resort, a director
of NHKTC and other Group companies concerned with property and
environmental projects. Before joining CITIC Pacific in 1996, he worked
for an international consulting firm in the United Kingdom and in
Hong Kong. '

Cindy Kwan Kit Ying (General Manager - Sales & Marketing, Property
Department), aged 41, joined CITIC Pacific in 1996 after broad experience

in property sales, marketing, and leasing.

Stephen Ho Wai Chung (Chief Executive Officer, cpcNet Hong Kong
Limited), aged 45, is the Executive Vice-President, Operations of cpc.
He joined CITIC Pacific in 2001 after 19 years of experience in the
telecommunications industry.

Stella Chan Chui Sheung (Director, Company Secretariat), aged 41.
Before joining CITIC HK in 1988 and CITIC Pacific in 1990, she worked

in the company secretarial field.

Miranda Yip Siu Wai (Executive Director and the General Manager,
NHKTC), aged 40, joined NHKTC in January 1999 as Deputy General
Manager and was appointed as Executive Director and General Manager

in January 2004. She has extensive experience in public administration.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report for
the year ended 31 December 2003.

Principal Activities _

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary companies
and the principal activities of its subsidiary companies and associated
companies and their major areas of operation are set out in the Business

Review on pages'5 to 29.

Dividends

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.30 per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2003 which was paid on

23 September 2003. The Directors recommended, subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.70 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2003 payable on 13 May 2004 to shareholders on the
Register of Members at the close of business on 10 May 2004.

Reserves
The amounts and particulars of transfer to and from reserves during the

year are set out in Note 22 to the accounts.

Donations
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$21 million.

Fixed Assets

Movements of fixed assets are set out in Note 12 to the accounts.
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Major Customers and Suppliers
The percentage of purchases and sales with the Group’s suppliers and

customers are as follows:
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The aggregate percentage of sales to the Group’s five largest customers is
less than 30%.

No Directors, their associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) were

interested at any time in the year in the above suppliers or customers.

Subsidiary Companies
The names of the principal subsidiary companies, their principal places of
operation, their countries of incorporation and particulars of their issued

share capital are set out in Note 31 to the accounts.

Issue of Debt Securities

On 15 February 1996, the Company issued and sold US$100 million
aggregate principal amount of its 7.37% Senior Notes due 2006 (‘Senior
Notes’) to financial institutions pursuant to note purchase agreements
dated 15 February 1996. All of the Senior Notes remained outstanding
at the end of the year.

On 1 June 2001, CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued and sold a total of US$450 million
principal amount of 7.625% guaranteed notes due 2011 (‘Guaranteed
Notes’) for refinancing the indebtedness of the Company and for general
corporate purposes, to investors pursuant to the purchase agreements
dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001. All of the Guaranteed Notes remained
outstanding at the end of the year.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Company nor its subsidiary companies have

issued any debt securities.
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Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 23 to the

accounts.

Directors

With the exception Mr Robert Ernest Adams, who retired with effect
from 1 January 2004, the Directors of the Company whose names and
biographical details appear on pages 62 to 65 were the Directors in office
during the financial year ended 31 December 2003.

Pursuant to Article 104(A) of the New Articles of Association of the
Company, Messrs Larry Yung Chi Kin, Peter Lee Chung Hing, Norman
Yuen Kee Tong, Liu Jifu and Willie Chang shall retire by rotation in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and all, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

Management Contract

The Company entered into a management agreement with CITIC

Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (formerly China International Trust &
Investment Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited) (‘CITIC HK’)
on 11 April 1991 but with retrospective effect from 1 March 1990 in which
CITIC HK agreed to provide management services to the Company and
its subsidiary companies for a management fee calculated on a cost basis
to CITIC HK payable quarterly in arrears. The management agreement is
terminable by two months’ notice by either party. Messrs Larry Yung Chi
Kin, Henry Fan Hung Ling, Vernon Francis Moore, Chang Zhenming and
Liu Jifu had indirect interests in the management agreement as they are
directors of CITIC HK. A copy of the management agreement will be
available for inspection at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on 10 May 2004. »

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

None of the Directors of the Company has or at any time during the

year had, an interest which is or was material, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract with the Company or any of its subsidiary companies,
which was significant in relation to the business of the Company, and
which was subsisting at the end of the year or which had subsisted at

any time during the year.




HERS
RBEEBR GG AERAT ([BZFT]) &
HEMRWATHREZREZSNT :

LHBEBRA—ALANETANLBHEERAH -
TEHE - FEESEMALOT - HNEER
BITERL A (5 % 77 1) K Cheer First
Limited ([ Cheer First]) ®I2 2 Wik > &H
€ & Cheer First 2 ¢ 3 F] & & 23X F Cheer
First» IERFEEFEPEAEZSERE
FRAFTRUERRE - PEFEIALTZ
FTERR  BEHAEBEAL  TRFKHE
Cheer First 25% % - ZEERXIE—HH
R R E R Cheer FirstiF4 Z B #
HBITifE S - I EE EBK A S BELSEN
EREBBITRERE - BEZEE=F1+2
A=+—A1t > Cheer Firsttf R AN F 2
BRREHEEAER —+—ERTET -

28N AEEE LEREIERERAF
(TIMRDZH/TEEELER . FHAEE
BEBEZ AR —REEESE ZRARBAR
FHERZEEREES - HBEARLT
(T#HF] > AREESTEBAERAARER
60%FRIEZ WE AR HHRILER76.77% MK
R ERRENEBLE=ENE c REEL
BoEEREFIEBZERRETRASRE
MzBEEAL BE_EZ=F+_A=+—
Hib - ITERER TR OTERESLNE S
E EREBTEMEFBRES—SHEKE
5 FIER £ 60% & 40% 2 A R LR -

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions disclosed in accordance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(‘Stock Exchange’) are as follows:

1. Pursuant to the agreement dated 9 October 1996 made between the
Company, CITIC HK, Kerry Trading Co. Limited, The Development Bank
of Singapore Limited (collectively ‘the Parties’) and Cheer First Limited
(‘Cheer First’), the Parties being the shareholders of Cheer First agreed

to make loans to Cheer First for providing loan finance to Goldon
Investment Limited which owns the CITIC Tower, Hong Kong. CITIC HK
being a substantial shareholder of the Company and regarded as its
connected person holds 25% interest in Cheer First. The loan was made on
normal commercial terms and in proportion to each party’s shareholding
in Cheer First. It was with no fixed repayment date and was interest
bearing at the rate per annum equivalent to Hong Kong Inter-Bank
Offered Rate. As at 31 December 2003, the amount of shareholders’ loan
due from Cheer First to the Company was HK$2,150 million.

2. During the year, the Group executed a guarantee to a bank to
secure the facilities granted to Shanghai pcH Jiangnanfeng Co., Ltd.
(‘Tiangnanfeng’), a company engaged in the production and selling

of chickens and related food products, as its general working capital.
Jiangnanfeng was 76.77% owned by Regal Heights Limited (‘Regal
Heights’, a 60% subsidiary of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited)
with the remaining interest held by individual third parties which were
connected to the Group by virtue only of their substantial shareholding
in Jiangnanfeng. As at 31 December 2003, total facilities granted to
Jiangnanfeng was US$4 million secured by corporate guarantees,

of which 60% was given by Dah Chong Hong Group and 40% by the
remaining partner in Regal Heights.
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3. During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Company had entered into
business transactions with Swire Pacific Limited and its associate (as
defined in the Listing Rules}, being connected persons of the Company as
Swire Pacific Limited is a substantial shareholder of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company that partly owns CITIC Square, Shanghai.
Details of the transactions made for the year ended 31 December 2003
with annual amounts exceeding 0.03% of the Group’s consolidated net
tangible assets as disclosed in the Company’s 2002 annual report were as

follows (‘the Continuing Transactions’):

BT (4) HK$ (approximately)
EETERBREETH Repair of aviation containers and sale of parts 18,000,000
BERREMBDRBERESER Repair and maintenance of ground support equipment
and airport vehicles 32,000,000
50,000,000
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An independent committee of the Board (comprising only of independent
non-executive Directors) had reviewed the Continuing Transactions made
for the year ended 31 December 2003 and confirmed that the Continuing

Transactions had been entered into
o in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

o on normal commercial terms or, if there were no sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they were on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable than terms available to independent third

parties; and

o on terms that were fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the

Company were concerned.

The auditors of the Company had also confirmed to the Board that the
Continuing Transactions (a) had received the approval of the Board of the
Company; (b) had been entered into on normal commercial terms or, with
the terms of the agreement(s) relating to such transactions or, if there was
no such agreement, on terms no less favourable than terms available to
independent third parties; and (c) had not exceeded 3% of the Group’s

net tangible asset value as at 31 December 2002 as disclosed in its 2002

- annual report.
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4. Pursuant to (i) the agreement dated 13 October 2003 made between
Everwin Holdings Ltd. (‘Everwin’), a wholly owned subsidiary of

the Company, and CITIC Group (formerly China International Trust and
Investment Corporation) (‘CITIC Beijing’), being a substantial shareholder
of the Company, and (ii) the agreement dated 13 October 2003 made
between Everwin and CITIC Beijing, Everwin agreed to acquire from CITIC
Beijing (a) 65% of the registered capital of Sunburst Energy Development
Inc. (*Sunburst’), together with the benefit of a shareholder’s loan of
RMB46,890,000 due by Sunburst to CITIC Beijing and interest outstanding
thereunder (but excluding 51% of the registered capital of Shaanxi Xin Li
Power Generation Company Limited (‘Shaanxi Xin Li’) held by Sunburst)
and (b) 20% of the registered capital of Inner Mongolia Fengtai Electric
Power Generation Company Limited. Sunburst in turn beneficially

owns 13.44% of Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power Company Limited and
85% of Shenzhen Xiecheng Electric Industry Company Limited. The
consideration was RMB360,960,000. In addition, in relation to a banking
facility of RMB315,490,000 (extended by an independent third party)

to Shaanxi Xin Li under which CITIC Beijing has provided a guarantee to
the bank and Sunburst has provided the counter indemnity dated 29
December 1997, it was agreed that in relation to any claim against CITIC
Beijing under its guarantee to the bank, CITIC Beijing and Everwin will
share such claim equally and Everwin will indemnify CITIC Beijing

accordingly, up to a maximum amount of RMB50 million.

5. On 28 November 2003, Sunspark Power Investment Company Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Wuxi Local Electric
Power Company (‘Wuxi Power’) entered into the joint venture contract
and the articles of association for the establishment of a new joint venture
on 70:30 basis, to engage in the construction of pumped storage hydraulic
power plant in Ma Shan, Wuxi, Jiangsu in the People’s Republic of China
(‘PRC’). The total investment and the registered capital of the new joint
venture amount to US$28 million and US$20 million respectively. As
Wuxi Power is a subsidiary of #5 BE% & (/) FR L 5], being a
substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the Company, Wuxi

Power is a connected person of the Company.
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6. On 19 January 2004, the Company entered into a framework agreement
with Asset Management Office of Jiangyin Municipal Government and
Jiangyin Steel Mill. Pursuant to the framework agreement, Asset
Management Office of Jiangyin Municipal Government and Jiangyin Steel
Mill agreed to Jiangyin Steel Mill entering into the agreements in relation
to the Group’s acquisition of Jiangyin Steel Mill’s 55.55% interest in the
following companies involved in the steel industry in the PRC at the total
consideration of RMB549,377,184:

Jiangsu CP Xingcheng Special Steel Co., Ltd.

Jiangyin CP Xingcheng Special Materials Co., Ltd.
Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Works Co., Ltd.
Jiangyin Xingcheng Steel Products Co., Ltd.

Jiangyin Xingcheng Storage and Transportation Co., Ltd.

On the same day, five agreements in relation to the aforesaid acquisition
were entered into between wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and
Jiangyin Steel Mill. The acquisition of additional interests in the above
companies provided an opportunity for the Group to further expand its

steel manufacturing business in the Prc.

In addition, on 19 January 2004, two of the above companies being non-
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company entered into agreements with
Jiangyin Steel Mill for acquiring the land use rights of the following
properties which were occupied by them as their principal production

sites and head offices from Jiangyin Steel Mill:

i) 4 parcels of land for industrial use at 58 Xi Yan Shan, Chengjiang,
Jiangyin acquired by Jiangsu CP Xingcheng Special Steel Co., Ltd. at
RMB49,366,200; and

ii) a parcel of land for industrial use at 68 Renmin Dong Lu, Jiangyin
acquired by Jiangyin Xingcheng Steel Products Co., Ltd. at
RMB36,676,462.73.

Jiangyin Steel Mill is a connected person of the Company by virtue of its

being a substantial shareholder of several subsidiaries of the Company.
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Share Option Plan
The Company adopted the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000
(‘the Plan’) on 31 May 2000. The major terms of the Plan are as follows:

1. The purpose of the Plan is to promote the interests of the Company
and its shareholders by (i) providing the participants with additional
incentives to continue and increase their efforts in achieving success in
the business of the Company, and (ii) attracting and retaining the best
available personnel to participate in the on-going business operation of

the Company.

2. The participants of the Plan are any director, executive or employee

of the Company or its subsidiaries as invited by the Board.

3. The maximum number of shares over which options may be granted
under the Plan shall not exceed 10% of (i) the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time or (ii) the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of adopting the Plan, whichever is the lower.

As at 18 March 2004, the maximum number of shares available for issue
under the Plan is 207,456,016, representing approximately 9.47% of

the issued share capital.

4. No participant shall be granted an option which, if exercised in full,
would result in such participant’s maximum entitlement to exceed 25

per cent of the maximum aggregate number of shares subject to the Plan.

5. The exercise period of any option granted under the Plan must not be

more than ten years commencing on the date of grant.

6. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be made
within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 from the grantee.

7. The exercise price determined by the Board will be at least the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding

the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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8. The Plan shall be valid and effective till 30 May 2010.

On 28 May 2002 options to subscribe for a total of the 11,550,000 shares
in the Company listed in the table below representing 0.53% of the then
issued share capital, at the exercise price of HK$18.20 per share, were
granted under the Plan. The closing price of the Company’s share
immediately before the date of grant was HK$18.10. All options granted
and accepted can be exercised in whole or in part within 5 years from
the date of grant. All were accepted, and none were exercised, cancelled

or lapsed in the period up to 31 December 2003.

R-EBE=FTA=+—-RAZEREHE

Number of Share Options as at 31 December 2003

RAFER Directors of the Company 8,100,000
BRESNTEZREER Continuous Contract Employees 3,400,000
Hir Others* 50,000
Eh Total 11,550,000

CHERRNET S ERASHERLEE  HHEA
KogE=E+ = A=+—AFEAEH -
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* [t is in respect of the options granted to an employee under continuous contract,
who retired during the year ended 31 December 2003.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities

The interests of the Directors in shares of the Company or any associated

corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (‘sF0’)) as at 31 December 2003 as recorded in the register

required to be kept under section 352 of the sFo were as follows:

1. Shares in the Company and Associated Corporation

BRI #E
Number of Shares
Bk ERBITRAR
BAER EEE R ESicEi 3 HLER BHR
Personal Corporate Farmnily Trusts and Percentage to the
interests interests interests  similar interests issued share capital
%
PEEEERAHE CITIC Pacific Limited
R Larry Yung Chi Kin 400,381,000 18.295
BB Henry Fan Hung Ling 43,000,000 1.965
EiEgE Vernon Francis Moore 3,200,000 0.146
A Peter Lee Chung Hing 500,000 0.023
i = Norman Yuen Kee Tong 33,000 0.002
BEE Robert Ernest Adams 550,000 0.025
BiEs Liu Jifu 40,000 0.002
G332 Hansen Loh Chung Hon 1,050,000 500,000" 500,000 0.071
=EEE André Desmarais 89,765 100,242,0352 4.585
RIGeH IR Peter Kruyt
(BEEEAEL (alternate director to
BIES) Mr André Desmarais) 2,100 0.0001
BEHREERAR Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited
PReEE Hansen Loh Chung Hon 450,000 0.013
B Note:

1. R 75 500,000 R HiE B— M A HEERE
FERBZAGRE REREFRG2LEERER

2. EBE.2100,242,035 B G+ 12,088 R T5iE
B-EREAEFZY2%EHS - 7 100,230,000
RIEE— B EHEFLAERREBITRERZE
BRIRRE -

1. The corporate interests and the family interests of the relevant Director duplicate
each other as the 500,000 shares are held through a company in which the

relevant Director and his family are interested.

2. Qut of 100,242,035 shares, 12,035 shares are held by corporations controlled by
the relevant Director and 100,230,000 shares are held indirectly by a corporation
of which the relevant Director is the President and Co-Chief Executive Officer.
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2. ARG E 2 B R HE 2. Share Options in the Company

HARITE 2 R HEBTRETESE

= " Directors Number of Outstanding Percentage to the
Share Options issued share capital

%

LEfE Larry Yung Chi Kin 2,000,000 0.091
SEEEE Henry Fan Hung Ling 1,600,000 0.073
Rigs Vernon Francis Moore 1,000,000 0.046
EHE Peter Lee Chung Hing 1,000,000 0.046
Frac = Norman Yuen Kee Tong 500,000 0.023
BRiE Robert Ernest Adams 300,000 0.014
s g Yao Jinrong 300,000 0.014
EiRA Chang Zhenming 500,000 0.023
E Snaf) Li Shilin 300,000 0.014
AR Carl Yung Ming Jie 300,000 0.014
BE® Liu Jifu 300,000 0.014
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2003, none of the Directors of
the Company had nor were they taken to or deemed to have, under Part
XV of the sFo, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations or any
interests which are required to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the sFo or any interests which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiary companies a party or parties to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body

corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2003, the interests of the substantial shareholders,
other than the Directors of the Company or their respective associate(s),

in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests in

shares and short positions required to be kept under section 336 of the

SFO were as follows :

AREZBRDEE EEBITIRAESE

Number of Shares Percentage 10 the

278 Name ' of the Company issued share capital
%

Pl R CITIC Beijing 632,066,285 28.882
PEEE CITIC HK 632,066,285 28.882
Heedon Corporation Heedon Corporation 498,424,285 22.775
Honpville Corporation Honpville Corporation 310,988,221 14.210

FEFEERTI2EMBEAR  BiZAAA

CITIC HK is a substantial shareholder of the Company indirectly through

REAIZ EERRE the following wholly owned subsidiary companies:
FRAEEES EEBITRA
040z BRI E A ERES
Number of Shares of Percentage to the
REEEZMBRAREE Name of Subsidiary Companies of CITIC HK HK$0.40 each issued share capital
%
Affluence Limited Affluence Limited 43,266,000 1.977
Winton Corp. Winton Corp. 30,718,000 1.404
Westminster Investment inc. Westminster Investment Inc. 101,860,000 4.659
Jetway Corp. Jetway Corp. 22,500,000 1.028
Cordia Corporation Cordia Corporation 32,258,064 1.474
Honpville Corporation Honpville Corporation 310,988,221 " 14.210
Hainsworth Limited Hainsworth Limited 80,378,000 3.673
Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Southpoint Enterprises Inc. 10,000,000 0.457
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Affluence Limited » Winton Corp.

Westminster Investment Inc. ° Jetway
Corp. » Cordia Corporation * Honpville
Corporation Hainsworth  Limited &%
Southpoint Enterprises Inc. 7 Al & # £ £ &
Az gt - B - Honpville Corporation
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Westminster Investment Inc. * Jetway
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Each of Affluence Limited, Winton Corp., Westminster Investment Inc.,
Jetway Corp., Cordia Corporation, Honpville Corporation, Hainsworth
Limited and Southpoint Enterprises Inc. holds the shares of the Company
beneficially. Accordingly, Honpville Corporation is a substantial

shareholder of the Company.

CITIC Beijing is the direct holding company of CITIC HK. CITIC HK is the
direct holding company of Heedon Corporation, Hainsworth Limited,
Affluence Limited and Barnsley Investments Limited. Heedon Corporation
is the direct holding company of Winton Corp., Westminster Investment
Inc., Jetway Corp., Kotron Company Ltd. and Honpville Corporation

and Kotron Company Ltd. is the direct holding company of Cordia
Corporation. Barnsley Investments Limited is the direct holding company
of Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Accordingly, the interests of CITIC Beijing
in the Company duplicate the interests of CITIC HK in the Company.

The interests of CITIC HK in the Company duplicate the interests in the
Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as described
above. The interests of Heedon Corporation in the Company duplicate
the interests in the Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary
companies as described above. The interests of Barnsley Investments
Limited in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of its
direct subsidiary company as described above and the interests of Kotron
Company Ltd. in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of

its direct subsidiary company as described above.
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Share Capital

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended
31 December 2003. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary
companies has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the year ended 31 December 2003.

Service Contracts

As at 31 December 2003, there were no service contracts which were

not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation) between any company
in the Group and any Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting.

Auditors

The accounts for the year have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who shall retire and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for

re-appointment.

By Order of the Board,
Larry Yung Chi Kin Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 March 2004
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BEZFZZZF+THZ=+—H LK for the year ended 31 December 2003

93

WESBETHE in HK$ million Note 2003 2002
MER Turnover 2 26,180 22,316
REEEHBH Profit from Consolidated Activities 3 1,132 2,583
FrEBRBEE Share of Profits Less Losses of 4

REZ4IRE Jointly Controlied Entities 341 368

BHENE Associated Companies 769 1,887
BB HBE Net Finance Charges 5 (320) (434)
BR BT R F Profit before Taxation 1,922 4,504
B Taxation 6 (871) (424)
FERBR Profit for the Year 1,551 4,080
SBRRER Minority Interests (246) (205)
RERREGRR Profit Attributable to Shareholders 7 1,305 3,875
Be Dividends 8 (2,189) (4,377)
BARE Transfer to Reserves 22 (40) (5)
SREF (B¥R) Earnings per Share (HK$) 9 0.60 1.77
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

ZHEEZFFZHZ+—H I as at 31 December 2003

Ft 5%
UEEBETHE in HK$ miflion Note 2003 2002
BEEE Fixed Assets 12 15,526 15,804
HEZEHER Jointly Controlled Entities 14 4,085 3,582
BEQT Associated Companies 15 22,805 22,377
rE Investments 16 1,027 7,092
e Goodwill 17 223 235
BEBHAE Deferred Tax Assets 24 85 63
TBHEE Current Assets
HEME Properties held for sale 12 336 336
"H Inventories 18 1,880 1,866
FHiRE Listed investment - 24
FEUGETE - RIRER - 128 Debtors, accounts receivable,
REIE deposits and prepayments 19 4,248 3,088
BERBITER Cash and bank deposits 5,511 2,545
11,975 7,859
Py b =8t Current Liabilities
BITER  EGEFREX Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts
EER secured 49 83
EIE R unsecured 826 467
ERBEIR - BAER  BE Creditors, accounts payabla,
RERZIE deposits and accruals 20 3,912 2,995
BIERE Provision for taxation 108 95
4,895 3,620
REBEERHE Net Current Assets 7,080 4,239
BEERERRDAR Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 50,831 53,392
RIEEE Long Term Borrowings 23 (9,653) (8,737)
EERERE Deferred Tax Liabilities 24 (325) (299)
25 40,853 44 356
BaXE Financed by
.88 Share Capital 21 875 875
e Reserves 22 36,419 37,943
RERE Proposed Dividend 1,532 3,720
BRES® Shareholders’ Funds 38,826 42,538
SERERER Minority Interests 2,027 1,818
40,853 44,356
i Larry Yung Chi Kin
HH Director
ksl Henry Fan Hung Ling
X Director

83




EEAEER
Balance Sheet

ZEEZEVTZA=+—H1E4E asat 31 December 2003

Wi
KB EETHE in HK$ miflion Note 2003 2002
BEEE Fixed Assets 12 40 50
o] PG Subsidiary Companies 13 34,499 38,626
HEEH HEE Jointly Controlled Entities 14 137 45
BE LT Associated Companies 15 3,836 2,448
RBEE Current Assets
PEACERIE - AR B Debtors, accounts receivable,
RIBHRE deposits and prepayments 19 79 g0
Be RFIEH Cash and bank deposits 3,910 1,613
3,989 1,703
=R Current Liabilities
BITER  HEFREX Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts
il unsecured 26 -
FEERIE - ERERR - Bs Creditors, accounts payable,
RIERIE deposits and accruals 20 58 62
84 62
TBREERE Net Current Assets 3,905 1,641
EEHERNBAE Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 42,417 42,810
RERER Long Term Borrowings 23 (5,325) (4,246)
37,092 38,564
B2 X Financed by
. Share Capital
=1 Reserves
BRERE Proposed Dividend
REES Shareholders’ Funds
BEE Larry Yung Chi Kin
EE Director
o Henry Fan Hung Ling
HH Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEZFEEZHE+ZA=Z+—8ILEE for the year ended 31 December 2003

KEEFETHE in HK$ miltion 2003 2002
FEEBZRASRE Cash Flows from Consolidated Activities

GBS LEER 2 S EBEF Profit from Consolidated Activities after Net Finance Charges 812 2,149
MNEFZEH Net interest expense 290 385
RERE W Income from investments (314) (1,294)
nEREH Depreciation and amortisation 609 533
BHEEH Amortisation of goodwill 12 17
EEZRESE Impairment loss of goodwill 26 -
HERTEREZER Loss on disposal of fixed assets 43 23
BEEEEZRELDE Reversal of impairment loss of fixed assets - 2)
LENESEHERE fnvestment properties revaluation deficit 587 -
HEREMEZHF Profit on disposal of invastment properties - )
HEMBRRZETR Profit on disposal of subsidiary company 2 )
HEBEQARZHET Profit on disposal of associated companies 2) -
HEREZRA Profit on disposal of investments (327) )
HLREEHEERIELTREZ Provision for jointly controlled entities /

RESEEE unlisted investments 2 2
RHEELSEB 2 BERF Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,736 1,797
FEEM Increase in inventories (25) (68)
BERIE  ERER BHER (Increase) / decrease in debtors, accounts receivable,

BAARE GEM)/ deposits and prepayments (1,107) 220
LHERERD Decrease in listed investments 24 2,165.
FEITERIE R Bk Increase in creditors, accounts payable,

FE{ ZRIE 0 deposits and accruals 932 397
IEERZE Effect of foreign exchange rates (25) (28)
EERBELIER Cash Generated from Consolidated Activities 1,535 4,483
B2 Interest received 46 72
ERHE Interest paid (443) 617)
=ADRiEES Income taxes paid (148) (226)
REERCEEBHE Net Cash from Consolidated Activities 990 3,712
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HARESKREE Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GBS ERTNE in HK$ milion 2003 2002
REEBZRSRE Cash Flows from Investing Activities
BAKBLRE (FIBREIEES Purchase of subsidiary companies (net of cash

RERBE) and cash equivalents acquired) - (1,809)
BAN BRIz BN “Purchase of additional interests in a subsidiaky»cém'pany - 28)1
BARTEE Purchase of fixed assets (954) (772)
RERIZHEBZRE Investment in jointly controlled entities (269) (795)
REL AT ZIRE Investment in associated companies (17) (75)
HEBEEEMS Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 33 39
HERERSG Proceeds on disposal of investments 6,356 17
LEMBLAR (MBREEZHRE Disposal of subsidiary companies (net of cash

RERRBS) (HiFa) and cash equivalents) (Note a) 14 884
REBEAEEE Proceeds on refund of purchase consideration - 15
BT HRAZHEE B8N Increase in loans to jointly controlled entities (22) (127)
REZRD Decrease in investments - 602
BFHERFZ2ERGEN) /R (Increase) / decrease in loans to associated companies (774) 1,215
REELT ZBREMA Dividend income from associated companies 508 580
RHBZHEB REMWA Dividend income from jointly controlled entities 45 39
WRIBREFEN S Income from investments 263 1,592
REREXKE2REFE Net Cash from Investing Activities 5,183 1,377
RERMEZRERE Cash Flows from Financing Activities
BERMN Repurchase of shares - (20)
¥TERIE New borrowings 4,280 1,835
BEEXR Repayment of loans (3,027) (6,858)
LEBRES IR Decrease in minority interests (102) (145)
IR S Dividends paid (4,377) (1,971)
ARBEZRLBE Net Cash used in Financing Activities (3,226) (7,159}
RERERREZEM/(RD) BE Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,947 (2,070)
A~-F-AZRERERRE Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 January 2,513 4,574
?MﬁE&EElZ%@ Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes 9 9
E1+-A=1+-B2ERE¢RERAESE Cash and Cash Equivalents at 31 December 5,469 2,513
REeRERAAEEFZIHF Analysis of the Balances of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Re RBITHEK Cash and bank deposits 5,511 2,545
FITE X (MsEb) Bank overdrafts (Note b) (42) (32)

5,469 2,513
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Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

a HEMEB LA

a Disposal of Subsidiary Companies

UEEBETHE in HK$ million 2003 2002
HEFEE Net Assets Disposal v
EEEE Fixed assets 72 2,476
& Inventories 6 -
ERERRENRE Accounts receivable and prepayments 12 61
BERBIGER Cash and bank deposits 3 751
ERMERREMTRE Accounts payable and accrued charges (20) (67)
BITER Bank loans (21) (1,222)
LT RIEL Minority interests (37) (371)
15 1,628
HERT Profit on disposal 2 7
17 1,635
WAF Satisfied by
Re Cash 17 1,635

ARUEMBARZRERER

Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

RERNFHEZINW in respect of the disposal of subsidiary companies
HEBEEETHE in HKS$ miflion 2003 2002
BEfERE Cash consideration ) 17 1,635
HEZRERBAER Cash and bank deposits disposed of (3) (751)
14 884

b FEARITEN - Hit

b Reconciliation of the Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

BRREXZBRER in Respect of Bank Loans, Other Loans and Overdrafts
ERREETFEZIHE
HWEEBETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
RIOTEF  AERREX Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts 875 530
ROBZREMER Bank loans and other loans (833) (498)
RITEX Bank overdrafts 42 32
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mOMEREE R
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

WE_FEZE+ A=+ B ILEE for the year ended 31 December 2003

+t=ZA=+-RE&A
BERHEREAIRE

EBERGRE

ZHRBARE

At 31 December after Proposed
Final and Special Dividends

Proposed Final Dividend
Proposed Special Dividend

Sk
HUEBEETHE in HKS$ miflion Note 2003 2002
—A—H At 1 January 42,757 41,489
tEEHEE Prior Year Adjustments 1a
BRERIR Deferred taxation (74) (58)
PGB &N F) Share of associated company
FELERE Deferred taxation (82) (56)
BRI Change in profit recognition (63) (78)
E3) As Restated 42,538 41,297
R QB e Share of Reserves of Associated Companies (584) (512)
HEEzHEER Goodwill Written Back on Disposal 11 -
PEBRELEZHM Deficit on Revaluation of Properties (87) (120)
IEREER Exchange Translation Differences (6) 1
HEZHEKA Impairment Loss on Goodwill 26 -
wEE R Reserves Released - (12)
ARGERAREREZHRTE Net Losses Not Recognised in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account (640) 643)
REAEMLREF Profit Attributable to Shareholders
ERIFTAY As previously reported 1,305 3,902
EEEREARN Prior year adjustments arising from 1a
BIEFIE Bt HERRE change for accounting policy for
deferred taxation - (42)
RGBS R aaFIRR Tz mE share of associated companies for
change in profit recognition - 15
BREGEERR (ZSB-F: BN Profit Attributable to Shareholders
(2002: Restated) 1,305 3,875
KA Dividends 8 (4,377) (1,971)
BERG Repurchase of Shares - (20)
+=BA=+-8 At 31 December 38,826 42,538
a4 Representing
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Notes to the Accounts

1 ETEEFEE

a REER ]
FEHCRBEELERARZ S RAGRE
WHEEEETMAoEom GFTER - $F
FEZBHELAABERMEARLA ([HE
MZENETROPABEZEAZENERA
FHOHEREN ([ FHagstell ) $F1
o MERFERBHERERA ([ ABHE
HREEL ) c AEMEZ BRMERR T XS
BRI 1gE -

AERARBEREAHRY  TEEESEREY
ERWFERBFHEC LTRETERERT - A
MR T X Z @Rt BRR -

AREERATRAGHIENZ THEE
AISE129% (BAERD) [ FGRL] - B EFIEER)
F12%E (BB CEREEXBEEH A -
R & S BORTE R AR IEREES - Bt
BEZF_HE+-_A=Z+—-BLEEZE
A UREZEF_EF_AZTHZER
HEERREEF > 2R EEEDT -FE
L BEETAEE TSR —ELEET
WIEG T B SR T XM 1B -

BEAh - T HE 2 R C 8 i FIPERDEUR BT
EEZEBRCEASEGTRE AELIENRA
Wi #EZFE-E+"A=+—HIE
FEZ GBS - THEEHEC  ME_F
F_HETAZT—HZREHEAL ERAR
HWZmE AR BER T REET R
MEHE=TLEET -

b HFEHREZER
FeRENEEA AR RELTMBAREE
HREALZRE - RAFEWHIUHE Z B
AE > EEELE R o L 2 A H R R EGR
EHEZEMEHABL -

1 Significant Accounting Pclicies

a Basis of Preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting
standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. The
recognition of exchange differences on certain long-term liabilities

in CITIC Pacific’s associated company Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
(‘Cathay Pacific’) does not comply with Hong Kong Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice (‘ssaP’) No. 11 but does comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRs’) and Cathay Pacific’s policy is
explained in accounting policy Note 1q below.

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties and listed
investments not held for long term as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The Group has adopted ssap No. 12 (Revised) ‘Income Taxes’ which
became effective for the current accounting year. The principal effect of
the implementation of ssaP No. 12 (Revised) is in relation to deferred
tax where the Group has adopted the change in accounting policy
retrospectively. As a result, the profit for the year ended 31 December
2002, capital reserve and retained profits as at 31 December 2002 are
reduced by HK$42 million, HK$49 million and HK$107 million

respectively. Details of the accounting policy are set out in Note 1r below.

Also, certain associated companies have changed their profit recognition
policies and the impact has been adjusted in the Accounts of the Group
retrospectively. As a result, the profit for the year ended 31 December 2002
is increased by HK$15 million and retained profits and goodwill included
in reserves as at 31 December 2002 are reduced by HK$26 million and
increase by HK$37 million respectively.

b Basis of Consclidation

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company and
all its subsidiary companies made up to the balance sheet date. The results
of subsidiary companies acquired or disposed of during the year are
included as from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective

dates of disposal respectively.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

¢ Goodwill

Positive goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies and
associated companies represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and

liabilities acquired.

o for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, positive goodwill was written
off to reserves in the year of acquisition or amortised over a period no

longer than its useful life to the Group.

o for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, positive goodwill is
amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life not

exceeding 20 years.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies and
associated companies represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired over the cost of the

acquisition.

» for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, negative goodwill was credited to

the capital reserve.

o for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, to the extent that negative
goodwill relates to an expectation of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the plan of acquisition and can be measured reliably, it is
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account when the future
losses and expenses are recognised. Any remaining negative goodwill,
but not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired, is
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account over the weighted
average useful life of those non-monetary assets that are depreciable or
amortisable except that negative goodwill representing discount on
acquisition of investment properties is carried in the consolidated
balance sheet for setting off valuation deficit in future. Negative goodwill
in excess of the fair value of the non-monetary assets acquired is

recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Positive goodwill is stated in the consolidated balance sheet as a separate
asset or included within associated companies at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 10). Negative goodwill not
vet recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account is shown as a
deduction from positive goodwill. Goodwill previously included in

reserves has not been restated.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

d Subsidiary Companies
A subsidiary company is a company which is controlled by the Company
through direct or indirect interest. Control represents the power to govern

the financial and operating policies of that company.

Investments in subsidiary companies are carried in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received

and receivable.

e Jointly Controlled Entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture in which the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control
and none of the participating parties has unilateral control over the

€CONnomic activity.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share

of the results of the jointly controlled entities for the year adjusted by
amortisation and impairment losses of goodwill, if any. The consolidated
balance sheet includes the Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly
controlled entities and goodwill / negative goodwill (net of accumulated

amortisation) on acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in jointly controlled
entities are stated at cost less impairment losses. The results of jointly
controlled entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

f Associated Companies

Associated companies are companies, other than subsidiary companies
or jointly controlled entities, in which the Group holds not more than

50 per cent of their equity share capital for the long term and can exercise

significant influence in their management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the
results of associated companies for the year adjusted by amortisation and
impairment losses of goodwill, if any. The consolidated balance sheet

includes the Group’s share of net assets of the associated companies, after

attributing fair values to the net assets at the date of acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associated companies

are stated at cost less impairment losses. The results of associated

~ companies are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

g Depreciation
All fixed assets except investment properties, properties held for
development and construction in progress are carried at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Changes in the value of investment properties reflecting market
conditions, depreciation and other factors are incorporated in the

annual accounts on the basis set out in Note 1h.

Freehold land is not amortised. Leasehold land is depreciated over the

remaining portion of the relevant lease.

Depreciation of the vehicular tunnel was provided with reference to

projected usage of the tunnel through a sinking fund calculation.

Other fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
or valuation, less impairment losses, if any, over their estimated useful lives

on a straight line basis at the following annual rates:
s Buildings: 2%-4% or the remaining lease period of the land

o Other fixed assets, comprising telecommunications equipment, traffic
equipment, cargo lighters, computer installations, motor vehicles, plant

and machinery, furniture, fixtures and equipment: 10%-25%
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continved

h Investment Properties
Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of
which construction work and development have been completed and

which are held for their investment potential.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods greater than
twenty years are valued annually by independent professionally qualified
valuers. The valuations are on an open market value basis related to
individual properties and separate values are not attributed separately

to land and buildings. The valuations are incorporated in the annual
accounts. Increases in valuation are credited to the investment property
revaluation reserve; decreases are first set off against increases on

earlier valuations on a portfolio basis and thereafter are charged to

operating profit.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of twenty

years or less are depreciated over the remaining portion of the leases.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of the
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released
from the investment property revaluation reserve to the profit and loss

account.

i Properties Held for Development

Properties held for development consist of investments in land for future
development and buildings under construction and properties under
development pending any positive intention either to retain them for
investment purposes or to sell them for proceeds. The investments are

stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

j Capitalisation of Development Costs
Property development expenditure, inclusive of interest and professional

fees, is capitalised as cost of development.

Borrowing costs incurred on assets under development that take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are

capitalised into the carrying value of the assets under development.

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed for the development
of the assets is based on the attributable cost of funds to the Group.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account in

the period in which they are incurred.

k Revenue Recognition

i) Motor Vehicles

Revenue arising from the sale of motor vehicles is recognised when

the registration document is issued or on delivery of motor vehicles,
whichever is earlier, which are taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes any government taxes and is after deduction

of any trade discounts.

ii) Sales of Properties under Development and Properties Held for Sale
Income from sales of properties under development is recognised when
the properties developed for sale are sold in advance of completion and
the outcome of projects can be ascertained with reasonable certainty by
reference to the construction progress. Profit is recognised over the course
of the development and is computed in each year as a proportion of the
total estimated profit of the development. The proportion used is
calculated by reference to the proportion of construction costs incurred
to date to the estimated total construction costs to completion of the
development and the extent of the sales proceeds received, after taking

into account due allowance for contingencies.

Income from properties held for sale is recognised at the date when sale

agreement is signed.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

k Revenue Recognition continued
i) Income from Co-operative Joint Venture
Other income or dividend from co-operative joint venture is recognised

when the right to receive is established.

Where the Group has been guaranteed a minimum rate of return on
its investment in co-operative joint ventures, income is accrued at the
minimum rate of return, and any return in excess of the minimum is

recognised in the year in which it is received, or becomes receivable.

Income from disposal of co-operative joint venture is recognised at the

date when sale agreement is signed.

iv) Other Goods
Revenue arising from the sale of other goods is recognised on the delivery
of goods to customers. Revenue is determined after deduction of any trade

discounts.

v) Rendering of Services
Commission income and revenue arising from the rendering of repairing
services are recognised when the goods concerned are sold to customers

and when the relevant work is completed respectively.

vi) Revenue from the provision of telecommunications services is

recognised upon delivery of the services.

vii) Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is
established.

Dividends proposed or declared after their balance sheet date by
companies in which the Group has an investment are not recognised as
revenue at the balance sheet date but on the date when the right to receive
is established.

1 Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale are classified under current assets and are stated at

the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

m Investments

Co-operative joint ventures in the People’s Republic of China are stated
at cost (net of capital repayment) less impairment losses or where
appropriate, the cost is amortised over a period no longer than its

estimated useful life to the Group.

Interest in other listed and unlisted investments held for the long term are
stated at cost less impairment losses. The carrying amounts of individual
listed investments are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess
whether the fair values have declined below the carrying amounts. When
a decline other than temporary has occurred, the carrying amount of
such securities is reduced to its fair value. The amount of the reduction

is recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account.

Interest in other listed investments not held for the long term are carried
at fair value. At each balance sheet date, the net unrealised gains or losses
arising from the changes in fair value of such investments are recognised
in the profit and loss account. Profits or losses on disposal of such
investments, representing the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amounts, are recognised in the profit and loss account

as they arise.

n Operating Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the leasing company are accounted for as operating leases.
Rentals payable and receivable under operating leases are accounted for

on a straight line basis over the respective periods of the leases.

o Impairment of Assets ,

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets including goodwill

for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If such assets are
considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in the profit
and loss account is measured by the amount by which the carrying

amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

p Inventories

Inventories comprising mainly motor vehicles, spare parts, electrical
appliances, food, trading items and steels are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost represents the actual cost of purchase and
is calculated on the first-in first-out, specific identification or weighted
average basis as appropriate. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sale proceeds of items sold in the ordinary course

of business after the balance sheet date, and in other cases, to
management’s estimates based on prevailing market conditions and

net replacement costs.

q Foreign Currencies

The balance sheets of subsidiary companies and associated companies
expressed in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date whilst the profit and loss accounts are
translated at an average rate. Exchange differences arising are dealt with

as a movement in reserves,

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at market rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising in these cases are dealt with in the profit and loss

account with the following exception:

Cathay Pacific prepares its accounts on the basis that borrowings and
leasing obligations relating to aircraft and related equipment are so
arranged that repayments are covered by the anticipated future operating
cash flows in the related currencies in order to reduce exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations. Any unrealised exchange differences on these
borrowings, leasing obligations and currency derivatives, and on related
security deposits in Cathay Pacific’s balance sheet, are recognised directly
in equity via the Statement of Changes in Equity. These exchange
differences are included in the profit and loss account as an adjustment
to revenue in the same period or periods during which the hedged
transaction affects the net profit and loss. As mentioned in Note 1a

this complies with 1Frs but does not comply with ssap No. 11 which
would have required the exchange differences to pass through the profit
and loss account. The directors of Cathay Pacific consider the adopted
treatment gives the accounts a true and fair view and the auditors of

Cathay Pacific agree.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

r Deferred Taxation
In prior years, deferred tax were recognised in respect of the taxation
effect arising from material timing differences to the extent that a liability

or an asset is expected to be payable or receivable in the foreseeable future.

Under ssaP No. 12 (Revised), a balance sheet liability method is adopted
whereby deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts..
Provision for withholding tax that will arise on the remittance of retained
earnings is only made where there is a current intention to remit such
earnings. Deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses are recognised

to the extent that the future utilisation is probable.

2 Turnover

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary companies
and the principal activities of its principal subsidiary companies are set

out in Note 31 to the accounts.

Turnover of the Group comprises the total invoiced value of goods
supplied net of government taxes where applicable, and services rendered
to customers, fees from provision of telecommunication services, gross
proceeds from sale of investments and properties, amounts received

and receivable in respect of dividends, income from co-operative joint
ventures, toll income, gross property rental and godown and cold storage

income, analysed as follows:

@ Group

LB EETHE in HKS million 2003 2002

EREE Sales of goods 15,968 13,953
HEEAETARBRERIR2EE Sale of investment in optical fibre network

: under construction ~ 1,635

HEREGEELRBIZESR Sale of investment in co-operative joint ventures 6,160 -

RH|TERTZRE Services rendered to customers 2,236 1,771

REBKAREESE AR Dividend income and income from

co-operative joint ventures 313 1,290

BEWE Toll income 49 511

Hit Others 1,012 3,156

26,180 22,316

o8
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2 Turnover continued

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and

geographical segments. Business segment information is

chosen as the

primary reporting format because this is more relevant to the Group’s

internal financial reporting.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business is as follows:

£H SHEEBHE SEREBEES
Group Segment allocations Segment turnover

BN E gt E in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
28 Power 308 305 - - 308 305
ERSHE Civil Infrastructure 6,676 1,432 - - 6,676 1,432
EE8% Communications 1,590 2,887 - - 1,590 2,887
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 12,136 11,212 - - 12,136 11,212
ME Property 401 460 75 88 476 548
TH3E Industrial Manufacturing 4,842 3,581 - - 4,842 3,581
Hith Others 227 2,439 - - 227 2,439

26,180 22,316 75 88 26,255 22,404

DT BB RS 0 EEEXEIN

An analysis.of the Group’s turnover by geographical area

is as follows:

%M Group
KB EETHE in HK$ million 2003 2002
BE Hong Kong 7,482 10,094
FE Mainland China 17,559 11,066
BE Japan 420 465
Hit Others 719 691
26,180 22,316
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3 ZEEBRF

LIT Rk 2B 80 2 EME & BRI

3 Profit from Consolidated Activities

is as follows:

An analysis of the Group’s profit from consolidated activities by business

5B DEEESE DEEREF
Group Segment allocations Segment profit
HBEEETHE in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
5 Power ' 227 234 - - 227 234
ERERE Civil Infrastructure 628 1,247 - - 628 1,247
EEE Communications 90 300 - - 90 300
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 345 320 (75) (88) 270 232
/S Property 315 349 75 88 390 437
Txss Industrial Manufacturing 388 280 - - 388 280
Hith Others 73 213 - - 73 213
REMEEHRE Investment Properties
Revaluation Deficit (587) - - - (587) -
B —RRITHER Less: General & Administration
Expenses (347) (360) - - (347) (360)
1,132 2,583 - - 1,132 2,583
& Group
LB EE T E in HK$ million 2003 2002
HRERBENESA The profit from consolidated activities is arrived at after crediting
HEREZEH Profit on disposal of investments 327 110
xEETIREZIRBIRA Dividend income from listed investments 5 98
REFELTREZBBRA Dividend income from unlisted investments 300 230
HaBA Rental income from
REME investment properties
B Gross income 403 397
B BB Less: Direct outgoings (81) (84)
322 313
Ei g Ry other operating leases 154 120
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3 BREEKEN,

3 Profit from Consolidated Activities continued

#£H Group
HUEEEETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
YEHE and after charging
SEERE (M) Cost of sales (note) 21,868 17,236
BEFERABE—E=TNENTEET including cost of inventories of HK$13,882 million
(“FE=F B -F—+TABATNBET) (2002: HK$11,998 million)
A EMA (FiieE) Distribution costs (note) 740 692
HEERE (W) Other operating costs {note) 2,440 1,803
ZHEE Auditors’ remuneration 12 12
EBRARSHEHEK Contributions to staff retirement schemes 53 55
FEREH Depreciation and amortisation 609 533
HEREH Amortisation of goodwill 12 17
EEZRESSR Impairment loss of goodwil 26 -
BREDNEERFRE Investment properties revaluation deficit 587 -
TN FRE(EEER)BREAS((RESEE] Management fee payable to
(METEEREERE(BEERE)BRAR) CITIC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited ('CITIC HK’)
ZERE {formerly known as China International Trust
& Investment Corporation Hong Kong
{(Holdings) Limited) 2 2
EEMENES Operating lease rentals ‘
THIRIEF land and buildings 106 123
ETRBEZRERERTH Unrealised net loss from listed investments - 2
Bist - Note:

OEEHERT  HHRKRRAMEERENZ ATH
FEERT - FEEET(ZFEF  EEAZ
E=F—EET)-

AR 224 52 B B AR AR W B 2 S SRR 0 B
PRI 2 S B AR 40 SR A0 8

Included in cost of sales, distribution costs and other operating costs are staff costs

of HK$1,313 miflion (2002: HK$1,331 million).

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments receivable under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

KESEETHE in HK$ million 2003 2002
—FR Within 1 year 338 305
—FEEREER After 1 year but within 5 years 332 279
nFEE After 5 years 12 17

682 601
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4 LR EE RS AT
> R R
a SERBEIEE

4 Share of Profits Less Losses of Jointly Controlied

Entities and Associated Companies

a Jointly Controlled Entities

£ Group
KEESETiE in HK$ million 2003 2002
BEBT By business
) Power (3) 4
BEREE Civil Infrastructure 76 78
ERE Communications 106 257
HWERDH Marketing & Distribution 22 26
Ht Others 140 3

3 368

b g A b Associated Companies

%8 Group
KEEGETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
BEBIHN By business
mE Aviation
B Civil Infrastructure
E8% Communications
HERDHE Marketing & Distribution
LIES Property
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5 MBXHEHR 5 Net Finance Charges

$£® Group
KA EETTHE in HK$ miliion 2003 2002
FEZH Interest expense
ARAFRAEHBEEZRITERRER Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable
within five years ‘ 88 204
TERDIEREHBEEZRITER Bank loans not wholly repayable within five years - 11
BARAFASHEBEZEMLER Other loans wholly repayable within five years 82 119
TERIFRSHBEZEBER Other loans not wholly repayable within five years 268 268
438 602
B EBRERZRE Less: Amount capitalised (38) (112)
400 490
FlEMA Interest income {110} (105)
290 385
Heg %z Other finance charges 30 49
320 434
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6 HIR
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6 Taxation

Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate of 17.5%

(2002: 16%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. In 2003, the

government enacted a change in the profits tax rate from 16% to 17.5%

for the fiscal year 2003/2004. Overseas taxation has been calculated on the

estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing

in the countries in which the Group operates. Tax provisions are reviewed

regularly to take into account changes in legislation, practice and status

of negotiations.

HEEEETHE in HKS million 2003 2002
FRAREFEARA Company and subsidiary companies
EENSH Hong Kong profits tax 72 116
BHNRIE Overseas taxation 79 32
BIEHIR (FiEE24) Deferred taxation (Note 24) 3) 29
148 177
HEEEEE Jointly controlled entities
EENEBR Hong Kong profits tax 30 9
BINBIIE Overseas taxation 47 31
BRERIR Deferred taxation (21) (3)
56 37
HENE] Associated companies
BEEFEM Hong Kong profits tax 39 93
BINIE Overseas taxation 103 78
BAEFH I Deferred taxation 25 39
167 210
371 424
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6 Taxation continued

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home

HEERINT country of the Company as follows:
£ Group

LEBEBETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
R AR R Profit before taxation 1,922 4,504
BIT5%2HEFE (ZTFZF : 16%) Calculated at taxation rate of 17.5% (2002: 16%) 336 721
EMBERTRAREZ#E Effect of different taxation rates in other countries (24) (101)
BARBRZBARER Income and expenses not subject to taxation 26 (212)
AER2HBEHBRAEEEY Utilisation of unrecognised tax losses this year and ‘

RITATHERZHIESS net of tax losses not recognised 48 48
AR ERemal RS MELHESEEEZ SN Increase in opening net deferred tax liabilities

resulting from an increase in tax rate (16) -

Hit Others 1 (32)
HARX Taxation charge 371 424
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7 BREELEF 7 Profit Attributable to Shareholders

EFIAARLAFRE Z BHRELEEFBER Z+  The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the
NEFHEET (ZFEZF B FTIE  accounts of the Company to the extent of HK$2,905 million

tFLtEHET - (2002: HK$2,477 million).
8 IR 8 Dividends
HKEREETHE in HK$ mifion 2003 2002
BE_EE_EXREBBE - BRER0OT0T 2002 Final dividend paid: HK$0.70
(ZE2—% : B¥0.6071T) (2001: HK$0.80) per share 1,532 1,314
BEZZET-FHARE  ZEREE1.00T 2002 Special dividend paid: HK$1.00 per share 2,188 -
3,720 1,314
BER_ZT=FHRERE : BREE0.30T 20083 Interim dividend paid: HK$0.30
(ZRE_F : BHB0.307T) (2002: HK$0.30) per share 657 657
BE-ET-FRERS  ZRE%0.70T 2003 Final dividend proposed: HK$0.70
(ZTZ =& : B%0.707T) } (2002: HK$0.70) per share 1,532 1,532
BE-ZET-_FHBIBRE - FRE®1.00T 2002 Special dividend paid:
HK$1.00 per share - 2,188
2,189 4,377
FRERE (B%T) Dividend per share (HK$) 1.00 2.00
0O SREF 9 Earnings per Share

BRAMNDEBRREGEEANEF T =EF  The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit attributable to
IABT(ZEE & EB¥ -1+ / EtFH shareholders of HK$1,305million (2002: HK$3,875 million) and on
AT RFRDRITRM2,188,460,1608  2,188,460,160 shares in issue throughout the year (2002: the weighted
(ZHFFF - VAR 02,189,736,763  average number of 2,189,736,763 shares).

BB EHE - '

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the year ended 31 December
HRF R R 2 BT R EME SR 2003 as the exercise of all the share options outstanding during the year
B MO ERARECLTEZET A=, have no dilutive effect on the earnings per share.
—BULFEEZEREAFET -
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10 EEHE

10 Directors’ Emoluments

5%E Group

UEBBEETHE in HK$ miftion 2003 2002
wE Fees 1.8 1.8
e Salaries 10.4 13.6
el Bonuses 83.3 94.2
95.5 109.7

EEMEeOT The Directors’ emoluments are analysed as follows:
HE A% Number of directors
HEBE "Emoluments Bands 2003 2002
B0 T E %K 1,000,000 HKS$0 - HK$1,000,000 7
#E%1,500,001 T E #¥ 2,000,000 HK$1,500,001 -~ HK$2,000,000 5
72,500,001 T ZE B% 3,000,007 HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 - 1
%% 3,000,001 T E #EH 3,500,000 HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 1 -
AZ%3,500,001 T E E% 4,000,000 HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 . 1 -
#%4,000,001 T E A% 4,500,000 HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 - 1
#%9,000,001 7 E &% 9,500,0007T HK$9,000,001 - HK$9,500,000 1 -
7%%11,000,001 T £ #%11,500,000 T HK$11,000,001 - HK$11,500,000 - 1
#%13,000,001 & Z %% 13,500,000 7T HK$13,000,001 - HK$13,500,000 1 -
715,000,001 T 2 ##15,500,000 7T HK$15,000,001 - HK$15,500,000 - 1
7% 15,500,001 T = %% 16,000,000 7T HK$15,500,001 - HK$16,000,000 1 -
7% 17,000,001t & #¥% 17,500,000 T HK$17,000,001 - HK$17,500,000 - 1
7#19,500,001 7T = ##20,000,000 7T HK$19,500,001 — HK$20,000,000 1 -
A% 23,000,001 T & #%23,500,0007 HK$23,000,001 - HK$23,500,000 1 1

A %27,000,001 T = &%27,500,0007T

HK$27,000,001 - HK$27,500,000 -

R BLERTEFZMEREHL AT
(CEFE  BBLTET) -
w0 ARBMERFMZEMALEARE
S TFE S LA R -

£R - ARRETEEWREALTRBETRE
RERMEBHE _TTERTEMERE
(ZFFTAH : $71418,100,0007 ) -

Emoluments paid to independent non-executive directors during the year

amounted to HK$0.7 million (2002: HK$0.7 million).

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year were also

directors and their emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented

above.

During the vear, no share option was granted (2002: 8,100,000 share

options were granted) to certain directors of the Company under the

CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000.
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11 Retirement Benefits

With the consent of the majority of its members, the Group ceased
making contributions to The CITIC Group Retirement Plan (‘orso Plan’),
one of its principal retirement schemes in Hong Kong, with effect from

1 August 2003. The orso Plan will be operated as a closed fund and
continue to be managed by an independent trustee according to the

provisions of the Trust Deed and Rules.

All OrRsO Plan members were enrolled onto the CITIC Group Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (‘mMPF Scheme’) - with a choice of either the
Fidelity Retirement Master Trust or the Hang Seng Mandatory Provident
Fund - SuperTrust. Contributions to the MPF Scheme as well as forfeited
amounts derived from the employer voluntary contributions are
administered in accordance with the terms and provisions of the

master trusts.

Assets of the orso Plan and the MPF Scheme are held separately in funds
under the custody of the respective trustees.




12 BEEE

12 Fixed Assets

a £ a Group
BRERE Hit
REDE EEEE S 2ME FTERE (B EEiD BT
Properties
Investment Self-used held for Vehicular Others
KEEGETTHE in HK$ million Properties properties  development tunnel (Note i) Total
KA E Cost or valuation
ZEF=F—-R—8 At 1 January 2003 8,493 3,375 616 1,983 4,320 18,787
HARE Exchange adjustments 24 5 - - 5 34
mRE Additions - 123 a7 - 743 963
HE Disposals
ERTENBAR through disposal of
subsidiary companies - (52) - - 41) (93)
HHER others - (19) - - (194) (213)
BfERE Revaluation deficit (594) - - - - (594)
BEFAM Reclassification - 179 - - (179) -
—EE=&+ZR=+—-8 At 31 December 2003 7,923 3,611 713 1,983 4,654 18,884
E-5:373: Accumulated depreciation
—BE=%—A—8H At 1 January 2003 - 606 - 556 1,821 2,983
rans Exchange adjustments - 1 - - 1 2
FEEFRE Charge for the year - 72 - 66 390 528
Rt gBE Written back on disposals
R EHERE through disposal of
subsidiary companies - (6) - - (15) (21)
B AR others - 8) - - (126) (134)
—EgE=€+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2003 - 665 - 622 2,071 3,358
HREEE Net book value
—ER=E+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2003 7,923 2,946 713 1,361 2,583 15,526
—ER-F+tRz+-8 At 31 December 2002 8,493 2,769 616 1,427 2,499 15,804
L EEZARAREE The analysis of cost or
ST valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
AR At cost - 3,611 713 1,983 4,654 10,961
HEEE-—_FP=F At professional valuation
- 2003 7,923 - - - - 7,923
7,923 3,611 713 1,983 4,654 18,884

109




8% B M13E Notes to the Accounts

12 BEEEs
BitsE -

) BREYRS EETEEAERFTELZVELE
BEB_TIEEL(-FF_F: E¥OT—B
BIL) -

i) AfeEEEECERBRE  HERHN THEEE-
BoHRE - TE  BRE HW KERRE -

12 Fixed Assets continued

Note:

i) Interest capitalised in fixed assets other than investment properties amounts to

HK$25 million (2002: HK$4 1million).

i) Other fixed assets comprise traffic equipment, cargo lighters, computer
installations, telecommunications equipment, motor vehicles, plant and machinery,

furniture, fixtures and equipment.

#£E Group

UEEEETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
BEBE P ZRESN Analysis of additions by business
BHEE Civil Infrastructure 5 5
HoE3 Communications 117 238
HEERDH Marketing & Distribution 180 168
M Property 109 3,467
THHRIE Industrial Manufacturing 545 280
Hit Others 2 3
TELE Corporate 5 4

963 4,165
BEHEEEE D ZRESN Analysis of additions by geographical area
B Hong Kong 212 272
3 Mainland China 702 3,852
BAREM Japan & Others 49 41

963 4,165
EREE D CTESN Analysis of depreciation by business
HRERE Civil Infrastructure 70 65
EEXE Communications 74 53
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 117 108
mE Property 44 43
TERE Industrial Manufacturing 211 181
TEEE Corporate 12 12

528 462

BEFE S 2 BEEREFEDI
HERDHE

Analysis of reversal of impairment loss by business

Marketing & Distribution
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12 Fixed Assets continved

b 27 b Company
RE - BE GRREE
Motor vehicles,
equipment,

LB EETHE in HK$ miflion furniture and fixtures
oS Cost
ZEF=F-F—B At 1 January 2003 95
RE Additions 2
HE Disposals 2)
—EE=F+ZA=+—8 At 31 December 2003 95
BETE Accumulated depreciation
—EE=%—-8-8 At 1 January 2003 45
AEEHE Charge for the year 11
AHEREE Written back on disposals M
—®E=F+ZR=+—8 At 31 December 2003 55
REEE Net book value
“B2E=F+-F=+—8 At 31 December 2003 40
—BE-F+ZF=+T—8 At 31 December 2002 50
C AEEYEZFHWT ¢ The tenure of the properties of the Group is as follows:

wEME BRNE “EEZDE ook

Properties
Investment Self-used held for .

HEERETHE in HKS miflion properties properties  development Total
By Leasehold properties held
& in Hong Kong
BBS0F 2B Leases of over 50 years 526 19 - 545
10E50F 28N Leases of between 10 to 50 years 2,895 2,196 268 5,359
DPRIOFEZELD Leases of less than 10 years - 76 - 76
F in mainfand China
BIBS0E Y Leases of over 50 years 950 - 445 1,395
1025082 8H Leases of between 10 to 50 years 3,300 1,085 - 4,385
By E Properties held overseas )
KAEE Freehold 252 235 - 487

7,923 3,611 713 12,247
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12 BEEES

d HEHE
AEEZBEYFECHBILAEMN _FF=
FHAZ+ - BRORMTEEEENE -
B R EMZ S EWT

12 Fixed Assets continued

d Property Valuation
The Group’s investment properties have been independently revalued on
an open market value basis as at 31 December 2003. The details of the

independent qualified valuers are as follows:

MEAR Properties located in H{ERD Valuers
. BEERLE Hong Kong and Shanghai B BE YR ER Knight Frank
=P Japan Tekko Building Co., Limited

e AMEEHEE A M UE A S KA
ZEERERNABAEEE T2 HEmE
W

€ Fixed assets and properties held for sale under current assets of the

Group let under operating leases to generate rental income are as follows:

REME ERYE EtETEE EBrEEELS FEME

Other Fixed Properties

Investment Self-used fixed assets held for

KEEBETHE in HK$ miffion properties properties assets total sale

B EE Cost or valuation 7,923 23v 250 8,196 316

RENE Accumulated depreciation - (3) (96) (99) -
BEFE Net book value

—ET=F+ZF=+—H  at 31 December 2003 7,923 20 154 8,097 316

KEEFRE Depreciation charges for the year - - 10 10 -

13 ME2 A

13 Subsidiary Companies

‘A8 Company

LB BB E in HK$ million 2003 2002
FELETED  BRERERNESE Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment losses 169 169
R NG =E¥ Amounts due by subsidiary companies 41,627 45,942
RHBREILHE Amounts due to subsidiary companies (7,297) (7,485)

34,499 38,626

EEMELF TR RE 3 -
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Particulars of the principal subsidiary companies are shown in Note 31.




14 HEEHEE

14 Jointly Contrelled Entities

#£8 Group
LB T B itE in HKS$ million 2003 2002
itk EESE Share of net assets 2,893 2,404
EHE(E17) Goodwill (Note 17) 168 178
HEREBEHEBRAZER (K&ED) Loans due from jointly controlled entities (Note b) 1,159 1,131
REBEEEHER 2 SH (M) Loans due to jointly controlled entities (Note b) (135) (131}
4,085 3,582

‘"] Company

UENTE T E in HK$ miflion 2003 2002

FELTRARSE Unlisted shares, at cost 270 176

RAERRHERZER Loans due 1o jointly controlled entities (133) (131)
137 45

Hfet - Note:

a REHEGEETESBFRBEERLR ([HK]) a. Included in jointly controlled entities is Western Harbour Tunnel Company Limited
FRECHEEREBEAR A= +—0 HEAEE ("WHTCL') whose year end is 31 July which is not coterminous with the Group.
ZEEBTR - AR ECRAEH —TE=F—H The results of WHTCL has been equity accounted for based on its management
—HBE-BBE=E+ _R=+-ABRzEBEREN accounts for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003.

IR -

b. BEXBRRESEBZRAANEE—F B8 b. Loans due from jointly controlled entities and loans due to jointly controlled
(ZEF_F BE=EFx) RRLEKN  Het entities are interest bearing at market rates except for an amount of approximately
HEFHETBRBRRERAAZHERZ HK$11 million (2002: HK$3 million) loans from jointly controlfed entities, which are
ERGETEREHNS - ZEFRURFTEEZ non-interest bearing. These loans have no fixed repayment terms.

BHE -
C. FEREFHEEEHENEENF3T - c. Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities are shown in Note 31.
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15 BERQF 15 Associated Companies
£H Group

KEEEETAE in HK$ mitlion 2003 .2002
FRGEEFE Share of net assets 15,058 15,550
B (HR17) Goodwill (Note 17) 1,856 2,036

16,914 17,586
BHERFIREBZER (M=b) Loans due from associated companies (Note b) 5,917 8,279
RABMERTZER (M) Loans due to associated companies (Note b) (26) (1,488)

22,805 22,377
BERAE Investment at cost
I EmRRG Unlisted shares 5,194 5,144
EELTRG Shares listed in Hong Kong 8,591 8,591

13,785 13,735
LRz TE Market value of listed shares 12,675 9,152
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15 BE AR s 15 Associated Companies continved

‘") Company

KBEBELITE in HK$ million 2003 2002

REM X Investment at cost

JFETRS Unlisted shares 303 303

B ETRG Shares listed in Hong Kong 931 931

1,234 1,234

HEATRBZER Loans due from associated companies 2,623 2,698

REBEDTZERK Loans due to associated companies ’ (21) (1,484)

3,836 2,448

THRGZTE Market value of listed shares 1,056 763

FREFELNTAERZREBALT Dividend income from associated companies during the year is as follows:
#£M@ Group

KA EETHE in HK$ million 2003 2002

Hidyil: - wNe] Listed associated comparnies 266 180

FE L TEEE D R] Unlisted associated companies 242 387

508 567

K - | Note:

a BERRTEEELEBERDR([BHREE]) A7 a. Included in asscciated companies is Hong Kong Resort Company Limited
CHBFEEERAR=ZA=1+—F HFXEHZ ('HKR’) whose year end is 31 March which is not coterminous with the Group.
BEHTE  EEEREIFRCKRAA_FE=F— The resuilts of HKR has been equity accounted for based on its management
B-—HE-FF=F+-A=+—HRHH2EEER accounts for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003.
BERENE -

b. REBERAIRBZHEANENZT=G8T b. Loans due from associated companies and loans due to associated comparnies
(ZER-F  BEE=TREET) RREEHI - are interest bearing at market rates except for an amount of approximately
HBPBERNRRARRBHED A2 B9 TEF HKS33 million (2002: HK$35 million) loans to associated companies, which
EIE c ZFEERYEETENE - are non-interest bearing. These foans have no fixed repayment terms.

C. TEBELREHEREER 3 - ¢. Particulars of the principal associated companies are shown in Note 31.
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16 & 16 Investments
@ Group
LB BT E in HK$ million 2003 2002
ER =N AL Co-operative joint ventures
FETRERE Unlisted investments, at cost 1,437 6,288
SHEEGERERR Amounts due by co-operative joint ventures 116 1,075
1,553 7,363
oA 3 Less: Amortisation 613) (532)
940 6,831
ETRERE Listed investments, at cost
EELETRRG Shares listed in Hong Kong - 173
LETRE Unlisted investments
B A Shares, at cost 108 105
o FBARE Add: Advances made 25 25
133 130
B OREER Less: Impairment (40) (39)
93 91
B BRRUE Less: Advances received (6) (3)
87 88
1,027 7,092
Wt mE Market value of listed shares - 141

FESEGELFAEHRENIRE 31 -

116

Amortisation represents amortisation of investment in Power.

Particulars of the principal co-operative joint ventures are shown in
Note 31. '




17 B & 17 Goodwill
MBQE  AREHESE BE QT
Jointly
Subsidiary controlled Associated
HEERETTE in HK$ million companies entities companies
EER Positive Goodwill
KE Cost
—2E=%—-/-8 At 1 January and
E+=ZRA=4+—8 31 December 2003 238 185 3,629
R Accumulated amortisation
—ZE2T=-F—-f-8 At 1 January 2003 28 1,593
EEFBH Amortisation for the year 12 10 180
ZERE=F+-fB=+—8 At 31 December 2003 40 17 1,773
EEEE Net book value
—EE=E+_A=+—H At 31 December 2003 258 168 1,856
—BE-&E4+-A=+-8 At 31 December 2002 270 178 2,036
=L Negative Goodwill
AR Cost
ZEE=F-[-8k At 1 January. and
+=-A=+—H 31 December 2003 (35) - -
RERRNICEBERHE ST Analysis of Positive Goodwill
Amortisation by Business
iz Aviation - - 170
EWEE Civil Infrastructure 1 - -
=% Communications 2 - 10
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 9 - -
Hft Others - 10 -
12 10 180
18 & 18 Inventories

RIEFZF+A=+—8 - ZUEHEHE
SRz FREREASEBLESTATET
(ZRZ_F  ERIE-TLESED -

At 31 December 2003, the carrying amount of inventories that are

carried at net realisable value amounted to HK$568 million

(2002: HK$519 million).
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19 BRI - BUWER

19 Debtors, Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

RERBEMRE Prepayments
£B Group ‘A7) Company
LEERETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002 2003 2002
BUE ZEE Trade debtors
—FR Within 1 year 1,954 1,857 - -
—FNUE Qver 1 year 527 118 - -
2,481 1,975 - -
FEWER 3 Accounts receivable,
EE RAGTHE deposits and prepayments 1,767 1,113 79 30
4,248 3,088 79 a0
K - Note:

) BREEREBECABRRE FHERFFABEIE -

i) & EFRIIGRBE T ERUTHELSEBE -

20 BAERERE  BAERX

) Trade debtors are net of provision and the ageing is classified based on invoice

date.

if) The Group has a defined credit policy for the respective business units.

20 Creditors, Accounts Payable, Deposits

EBEEREMFIE and Accruals
£ 8 Group ‘27 Company
LEEGZ T E in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
B EZERE Trade creditors
—ER . Within 1 year 1,718
—EE Over 1 year 354
2,072
FANEE Accounts payable,
%E RETEOR deposits and accruals 1,840
3,912
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21 B

21 Share Capital

EREEEBOTZRNEE BEEET
Number of shares of HK$0.40 sach HK$ miflion
EE Authorised
ZERFR-FEZF+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2002 and 2003 3,000,000,000 1,200
ERITHEHE Issued and fully paid
ZRER-ER-FFRZFFZAZ+8 At 31 December 2002 and 2003 2,188,460,160 875

Fithy B

H_ZEZNE-F—RAERHEIY  A4F
W R B TR L 2 B AT . &
AN EVET RS 31,650,000 8140 > 47
HEHERBR18.20T -

HERREST A
BRE_EEEFRES+—RRRZRER
BERGEBHHE_ZTT (ZHN)  FEE
TEHAL TS ARB AR TES -
BN B TR 8 4 TSR B A B R 5 2 R
# SRR AT ST - 25
EhEEERT  EREOBUTEEZEE
% ¢ ()R FIRRAE R B IRRE B IR ST
¥t F A2 il ()RR AR B
32 W SR B AR TR B R T B R
R Z B TE R ()AL FRGE
- BEZH TR L BRERSRZ &R
HHE - FERETFFIET—EZ10% (L3
BEBE) OEAANREZDBIRE K
()ER AT B B PAA AL EBTRE -

FZEETEFASHAD  BEEHIBEES
FLEIFREE11,550,00080 44 A & 2 BB ARHE - (&
CEITHRA0.53%  FTHEAFREH18.20
TG o AN BV RS TE BARAT o B R 5 R 2 kT
EAKHI18.107T - A TR REHA 2 B
8 TIEEL ERE B SRS A EAREE G
17fE - RN Z AEE SR REE-T
T=F+TZAZ+—HIEEK  FET U
8 SEEHSRERE o R MEIT L BEAHE -

HREETEEANERBREART R ZE
FHER . BARRALRIIAKREA -

Changes subsequent to the year end:

Since 1 January 2004 to the date of this report, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 1,650,000 shares at HK$18.20 per share upon the
exercise of share option which were granted under the Plan.

Share Option Plan:

Under the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 (‘the Plan’) adopted on
31 May 2000, the Board may invite any director, executive or employee of
the Company or any of its subsidiary companies to subscribe for options
over the Company’s shares on payment of HK$1 per acceptance. The
subscription price determined by the Board will be at least the higher

of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The
maximum number of shares over which options may be granted under the
Plan shall not exceed 10% of (i) the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time or (ii) the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of adopting the Plan, whichever is the lower.

On 28 May 2002 options to subscribe for a total of the 11,550,000 shares
in the Company representing 0.53% of the issued share capital, at the
exercise price of HK$18.20 per share, were granted under the Plan. The
closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date of grant
was HK$18.10. All options granted and accepted can be exercised in
whole or in part within 5 years from the date of grant. All were accepted,
and none were exercised, cancelled or lapsed in the period up to 31
December 2003. No option was granted during the year.

As there is no accounting standard in Hong Kong governing the
accounting for employee stock option, their costs have not been

incorporated in the accounts.
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20 fEE 22 Reserves
aH a Group

BR EEYE EXREF
HEEEHETHE BiEE BEEE BTEE e SEhES tiE  TBRHE RLER FEE
Investment
Capital property  Exchange
Share redemption Capital revaluation  fluctuation General  Retained
in HK$ million premium reserve reserve  Goodwill reserve reserve reserve profits Total

—EBF—-A—8
At 1 January 2002 24,782 18 3,614 (2,476) 960 689 138 12,888 40,613
FEERE
Prior year adjustments
Deferred taxation - - (49) - - - - ©) (58)
BTG g R = 2 BEH IR
Share of associated companies for deferred taxation - - - - - - - (56) (56)
Fiit i & A AR R RR 2 2R
Share of associated companies
for change in profit recognition - - - (37) - - - 41) (78)

25 :
As restated 24,782 18 3,565 2,513) 960 689 138 12,782 40,421
FiEE S A RREE
Share of reserves of associated companies - - 1 - 14 (526) - (D) (512)
MESEEEZ B
Deficit on revaluation of properties - - - - (120) - - - (120)
NEBREEE
Exchange translation differences - - - - 5 ) - - 1
BEER
Reserves realised - - - - (12) - - - (12)
B O AR
Repurchase of shares - - - - - - - (19) (19)
ERIEEREOERE
Transfer to capital redemption reserve - 1 - - - - - 1 -
BERET
Transfer from profits - - - - - - 4 4) -
A% R AE NG = A
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - - 3,875 3,875
82 (Fx8)
Dividends {Note 8) - - - _ - _ _ 4.871)  (1.971)
ZRE-_F+-A=+t—8
At 31 December 2002 24,782 19 3,566 2,513) 847 158 142 14,661 41,663
a3
Representing
—EE-F+A=+-8

BEFARERERISARS
At 31 December 2002 after proposed

final and special dividends 37,943
BBE_TR-EXRHRERRE
2002 Final and special dividends proposed 3,720

41,663

& FHY L ERE 2 AR

Retained by

ARFRMBRR

Company and subsidiary companies 24,782 18 3,561 (2,513} 82 17 138 10,552 36,638
HAEERIEE

Jointly controlled entities - - 2 - - - 1 184 187
[t

Associated companies - - 3 - 765 142 3 3,925 4,838

24,782 19 3,566 (2,513) 847 159 142 14,661 41,663
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22 Reserves continued

a Group continued

Bx BENE EXRH
LB EBTHE BinEE BOEE BAREE BE ERER #E TRHRE KRBRET HBEE
Investment
Capital property  Exchange
Share redemption Capital revaluation fluctuation General  Retained
in HKS million premium reserve reserve Goodwill reserve reserve reserve profits Total
“ER=%—-fF—H
At 1 January 2003 24,782 19 3,615 (2,476) 847 159 142 14,794 41,882
tEERE
Prior year adjustments
RiEHEA
Deferred taxation - - (49) - - - - (25) (74)
GBS DR BB
Share of associated companies for deferred taxation - - - - - - - (82) (82)
FinEE DRI 2
Share of associated companies
for change in profit recognition - - - (387) - - - (26) 63)
Ll
As restated 24,782 19 3,566 (2,513) 847 159 142 14,661 41,663
FriasE QA EE
Share of reserves of associated companies - - - - (242) (342) - - (584)
HEZHEREE
Goodwill written back on disposal - - 11 - - - - - 11
ERZRERE
Impairment loss on goodwill - - 12 14 - - - - 26
NEEBEEZ B
Deficit on revaluation of properties - - - - {87) - - - 87)
SMEBREER
Exchange transiation differences - - - - 5 (11) - - (6)
mamEr)
Transfer from profits - - - - - - 40 {40) -
§6 3R FE 1 3 F)
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - - 1,305 1,305
B2 (FiEE8)
Dividends (Note 8) - - - - - - - (4,377) (4,377)
—TR=F+=-A=+-H
At 31 December 2003 24,782 19 3,589 (2,499) 523 (194) 182 11,549 37,951
&
Representing
—FE=F+-R=+—-8
B ARBERERS
At 31 December 2003 after proposed
final dividend 36,419
BRE_ERERERE
2003 Final dividend proposed 1,532
37,951
BTHLEIREZHE
Retained by
ERRRMBRR
Company and subsidiary companies 24,782 19 3,584 (2,499) - 6 164 7,163 33,209
HEEGITE
Jointly controlled entities - - 2 - - - 15 412 429
|- N
Associated companies - - 3 - 523 (200) 3 3,984 4,313
24,782 19 3,589 (2,499) 523 (194) 182 11,549 37,951
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22 fhtEa

a £l &
ps

EFXRDFECRTETERFTHEZELGHE - 18
FHEREIQRAL  (ERAECIRAEEETERSE
1% FEEBEE _FFZF+_A=+—-HAULFEZ
ReREE LB =T _EE T (ZFF_F

22 Reserves continued

a Group continued

Note :

The exchange fluctuation reserve included the Group’s share of the exchange
reserve of Cathay Pacific. As set out in accounting policies No.1q, the Group’s profit
and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2003 would have decreased by

HK$342 million (2002: decreased by HK$526 million) had SSAP No.11 been

LB T E_FNEET) adopted by Cathay Pacific.
b Compan
A paly
EREEEE Bt g RERF Pok
Capital
redemption Share Retained
KB EE T E in HK® million reserve premium profits Total
—EZ2_f£—f—H At 1 January 2002 18 24,782 12,402 37,202
FEEAR D Repurchase of shares - - (19) (19)
HREALTEE RE Transfer to capital redemption reserve 1 - (1) -
FRATESESHN (H13E7)  Profit for the year available for distribution (Note 7) - - 2,477 2,477
B8 (K1sx8) Dividends (Note 8) - - (1,971) (1,971)
—ET-F+-8=+—H At 31 December 2002 19 24,782 12,888 37,689
K& Representing
—E22-F+-F=+—8 At 31 December 2002 after
BiFAEZRERE proposed final and special dividends 33,069
RAERIRE
RE_FTT_FXRY 2002 Final and special
REERIAR S dividends proposed 3,720
37,689
BEXEDHEE Jiidhapinyicl REHEF k]
Capital
redemption Share Retained
LB BB T E in HK$ miflion reserve premium profits Total
—EE=%—/8—H At 1 January 2003 19 24,782 12,888 37,689
FEREESIEHEF (M3E7)  Profit for the year available for distribution (Note 7) - - 2,905 2,905
B8 (Hi3E8) Dividends (Note 8) - - (4,377) (4,377)
—EBR=F+-/R=+—8 At 31 December 2003 19 24,782 11,416 36,217
& Representing
“EZE=F+-A=Z+—H At 31 December 2003 after
Bit ARSEXRBRE proposed final dividend 34,685
BE_TT=ERERS 2003 Final dividend proposed 1,532
36,217
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22 f#tEs

b AF#
BBEFEATGEAE7IBGEHEZ AN T H#
DREE RCEZZF+TA=ZT—HAB
W—H—TNE—TAEET(CEE &
BE—EFF+AEBATAEER -

23 REEX

22 Reserves continued

b Company continued

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2003, calculated
under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted
to HK$11,416 million (2002: HK$12,888 million).

23 Long Term Borrowings

a a
& Group 27 Company
HEEGETHE in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
RITEH Bank loans
ERR unsecured 5,554 4,564 4,571 3,466
B secured 65 47 - -
5,619 4,611 4,571 3,466
EHER Other loans
EIE unsecured 4,290 4,294 780 780
9,909 8,805 5,351 4,246
—ERFBZEX Amounts repayable within one year
WAFREBRAEA included under current liabilities (256) (168) {26) -
9,653 8,737 5,325 4,246

ok

) TEBEEREFAZTEHEZ RITESREMGER
BEE AL HE-TE T (ZFFE_F  B¥=TH
E—F&8x)-

i) XLEEIT—EEAREEANEERZER
((E#))  ZEBERHEI N EMEBRAEZ LM
BF REFEESREFFHIEN  FEA
7.37% - BN _FEANF_F+HEBEE Fi
aIfRREEERI) -

R-ZBB—EX[F—F FREZ2EHBLF
CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) Limited 1R —FF
~ERR-+AAR_EE—ENA—BTHERE
BT RHERCHLEBNER FEZET27.625% R
EREE([REER]) TRELZ  HUEBREXLAZE
BRITERERBIE—MEELS - S REZES
REFE——FIE  2HREZERFFEGFDFE
G -

V) BRIRBEES  BITERREMERER-FENE
HZRIREE  ERETEFRE -

V) EZERZE+Z A KEBEFREY
B BRYE - EMBEERE  FHEREUWEHEA
BREEEEDTZFB8T(ZFF_F  BE-FEN
TtEET) BEXEBETHEBRRNRARR;T
ERZHER -

Note:

i) Bank loans and other loans of the Group not wholly repayable within five years
amounted to HK$3,510 million (2002: HK$3,510 million).

i) The Company has issued a US$100,000,000 Senior Note due 2006 (the ‘Notes’).
The Notes will rank in right of payment pari passu to all other indebtedness of the
Company. Interest on the Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears at 7.37% per
annum. The Notes will mature on 15 February 2006 unless previously prepaid by
the Company.

iii) On 1 June 2001, CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, issued and sold a total of US$450 million principal amount of
7.625% guaranteed notes due 2011 (‘Guaranteed Notes’) for refinancing the
indebtedness of the Company and for general corporate purposes, to investers
pursuant to the purchase agreements dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2007.

All of the Guaranteed Notes remained outstanding at the end of the year.

iv)Bank loans and other loans, other than the Guaranteed Notes, are fully repayable
up to 2008 and bear interest at the prevailing market rate.

v) As at 31 December 2003, certain of the Group’s investment properties, seff-used
properties, other fixed assets, inventories and accounts receivable with the
aggregate carrying value of HKE53 million (2002: HK$287 million) were pledged
to secure loans and banking facilities granted to certain subsidiary companies of
the Group.
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23 REERE

b AEERAXFEZRBARHAFRNT

23 Long Term Borrowings continued

b The maturity of the Group’s and the Company’s long term liabilities is

as follows:
£ Group 7 Company

LEN BB E in HK$ mifiion 2003 2002 2003 2002
RITEHZEERE Bank loans are repayable
—ER in the first year 256 164 26 -
—ER in the second year 650 1,707 133 1,350
ZEAFR(BEEERE) inthe third to fifth years inclusive 4,713 2,740 4,412 2,116
% after the fifth year - - - -

5,619 4,611 4,571 3,466
HEMBRZEHES Other loans are repayable
—FR in the first year - 4 - -
—ER in the second year - - - -
SEAFR(BEEEME) in the third to fifth years inclusive 780 780 780 780
AFE after the fifth year 3,510 3,510 - -

4,290 4,294 780 780

9,909 8,805 5,351 4,246
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24 EEBIR

a £H

BB IEDRBEREETAEERTERE
17.5% ( ZFEETF : 16%) 2HFE -
FR AHECEERBERBREIELHE

24 Deferred Taxation

a Group

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under

the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 17.5% (2002: 16%).

The components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognised in

(EE) RARERAEREHOT the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year is
‘ as follows:

BHEBE
KEETETHE ZHERUE sa Hit BE]

Depreciation

allowances in

excess of related

depreciation Losses Others Total
in HKS million 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
BEHENRE
Deferred tax arising from
—A—8
At 1 January 263 242 @) (76) 44 39 236 205
RanE
Exchange adjustment 4 3 - - 4 1 8 4
BAEREE
Credited to revaluation reserve - - - - 1) @) m 2)
mia/ (BA)RSBRE
Charged / {credited) to consolidation profit and loss account 26 18 (19) 5 (10) 4] (3) 29
+ZA=Z+—8”
At 31 December 293 263 (90) 71) 37 44 240 236
KEEEETHE in HK$ million 2003 2002
ERSRESRBRERZEERBEEERSE Net deferred tax assets recognised on the

consolidated balance sheet (85) (83)
ERAEERARERZEEHEREEE Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on the

consolidated balance sheet 325 299

240 236
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24 IREHRIE =

b dRERZBERIEE E
AEEILAEUTHEE ZEEHEEEET

24 Deferred Taxation continued

b Deferred Tax Assets Unrecognised
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the

& following items:
£8 Group
HEESETHE in HK$ million 2003 2002
ANRREEE Deductible temporary difference , 68 58
WEER Tax losses 4,050 4,038
4,118 4,096
'8 Company

UEEEETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
AHERESES Deductible temporary difference ' 10 10
MIEESE Tax losses 335 236
345 246

B - Note:

EETHBHBERER _F—T=E8T(FF=
F BN ZEANTE) CH BB EERHEER
BRARKAEERE - REZGVHHGE  RHSELRE
TEREREIR -

c WARBRZEEHRHAK
E_EE=HE+_A=Z+—H HELAZH
RO ETY K2 R BB ERAE—T
TtEET(CEFF  BEWLRATEHE
g0« ERALFEHZENB LT ZRER
o T %S Al 7R B R TE T AR AT
BEAIRIEF - HHI AR TR RS
R 8 il 7 BT B A BURTT S B 2 R R IR & R
W—B_TAEET(ZEE_F: g¥—1K
—THEEET) -
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Deductible temporary differences and tax losses in certain tax jurisdictions of
HK$213 miflion (2002: HK$260 million) will expire within the next five years.
The rest of the amount does not expire under current tax legisfation.

¢ Deferred Tax Liabilities Not Recognised

At 31 December 2003, temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to HK$617 million (2002: HK$562
million). Deferred tax liabilities of HK$126 million (2002: HK$114
million) have not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that profits will not be distributed in the

foreseeable future.




25 7HEEERAE
DTARXBERR T2 EEMEEERRH

25 Assets and Liabilities by Segments

An analysis of the Group’s segment assets and liabilities by business

AT segment is as follows:
LEBEETHE DEREE HEEHIEERE BMERFIRE NHEEE ko]
Investments
in jointly Investments
Segment controlled in associated Segment

assets entities companies iabilities Total
in HKS million 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
M=
Aviation - - - - 12,880 13,305 - - 12,880 13,305
g
Power 883 9583 625 496 - - - - 1,508 1,449
ERRE
Civil Infrastructure 1,401 7,325 1,200 1,113 38 28 (37) (28) 2,602 8,438
B .
Communications 1,946 1,398 1,205 1,162 373 409  (1,252) (718) 2,272 2,254
HERDH
Marketing & Distribution 4,108 3,950 202 157 91 51 (1,331) (1,221) 3,070 2,937
mE
Property 10,606 11,184 - - 9,423 8,584 (230) (213) 19,799 19,555
IR
Industrial Manufacturing 3,842 3,127 - - - - (942) (620) 2,900 2,507
His
Others 298 331 853 654 - - - (42) 1,151 943
DREE/(AR)
Segment assets/(liabilities) 23,084 28,268 4,085 3,682 22,805 22,377 (3,792) (2,839) 46,182 51,388
TEEE
Corporate 5,667 2,722 - - - ~ (10,648) (9,423) (4,981) (6,701)
BARE
Provision for taxation (108) (95)
BIEBREAEER
Net deferred tax liabilities (240) (236)

40,853 44,356
LUTF B8 BB 2 SR EE AT An analysis of the Group’s segment assets by geographical area is as
follows:
LUEEEETHE in HK$ mitlion 2003 2002
&E Hong Kong 11,573 12,373
PE Mainland China 10,737 15,251
B Japan 410 401
Eit Others 364 243
23,084 28,268
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26 BARKE 26 Capital Commitments

£ 8 Group
HEEEETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
BHUEERED (M) Authorised but not contracted for (Note) 2 7
BEOBRES () Contracted but not provided for (Note) 1,963 649

‘A 7} Company

LB EETHE in HK$ million 2003 2002
EROERBE Contracted but not provided for 610 189
Hiat - Note:

FEBEMEEREHRDELERBEZETERES
RB#es WERRE SEHREW_AET(ZFEFZ
FERTEEL) REENEZT BET(ZFF=
FBMEENTLEET) BEHERBEZFE
BEBRARMEREEENELT EEL (ZFF
—F B RETREEBAENTABEET (ZFF
—E R)RAMEREBE—FE-TET(ZFF_F
EBE_FE_FHT)

27 EXTHEAKRE

Bt_A=Z+—8 2EEBERERTAH
W2 BRBALEINZ REMAM KB
U

The capital commitments of authorised but not contracted for and contracted but
not provided for of the Group in respect of plant, property and equipment amount

to HK$2 million (2002: HK$7 million) and HK$631 million (2002: HK$447 million)
respectively. The balance of contracted but not provided for represents amount
committed for investments in aviation of HK$676 million (2002: nil), power generation
of HK$546 million (2002: nil) and others of HK$110 million (2002: HK$202 million).

27 Operating Lease Commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases at 31 December are as follows:

%8 Group T Company
LB EETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002 2003 2002
YRFE Properties commitments
—FR Within 1 year 93 94 16 16
—FHAAFR After 1 year but within 5 years 102 128 6 23
HE#E After 5 years 24 26 - -
219 248 22 39
EEE Other commitments
—ER Within 1 year 35 50 - -
—FEEREER After 1 year but within 5 years 25 35 - -
RFE After 5 years 14 15 - -
74 100 - -
293 348 22 39
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28 AR ERE

AaALFRERETENERERRAR ([T
HAW 2 AR R B SR R AR ) F AR AT
BEEFEMRER  RETEITROERLTE
Bz HERNERNEGEBE ([BE])
CEHBENREFRERLRETNE A
BImZEBEER - BER-LLLENAR
B SR BRI /BT (458 R
EHHRE) -

PR DR RS ZEMRE > ABZHE
RO R SRS B R TR IE 2 RGEAE
G AR R ESHR SR MAREZ
—YIEA - BRI -

b AARAK-ME2EMBLAARTZNEL
TERITREFERERER -

¢ ARFEAR—MEEHB LT Z ARE—E
Jofs BEH A R A R ATH T IR e -

d ZARABEMRFHRBEERLAAZARY
AE-TREETER L TEE THERRM
B IE60% Z BRI PEIR -

e ¢®ﬂ?¢—%ﬁ§ﬁﬁ?§%ﬁ%‘ﬂ~?ﬁBﬁ‘%’&ﬁl
ZHBENENTAGECERERES?
79.998% 2 AR HEHF -

f ARFRWEBITEERTALE—HMEE
WEAFRZE&ERARE —ETERERM
Pk -

g AR EH—MFITHE T AL — MK EA R
ZHEBEZETERRARE—u SRt
B4£79.998% 2z ARIHEE o

28 Contingent Liabilities

a The Company together with other beneficial shareholders of Western
Harbour Tunnel Company Limited (‘WHTCL’) have agreed jointly and
severally to guarantee the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region that wHTCL will complete the Western Harbour
Crossing (‘Crossing’) within budget of approximately HK$7.5 billion
including repair costs to be incurred after the operation date of the
Crossing but before the issuance of the Maintenance Certificate. The
Crossing was completed in April 1997 with total cost of approximately
HK$6.8 billion, pending the issuance of the Maintenance Certificate.

The beneficial shareholders of wHTCL have agreed that in relation to any
claim made or asserted under the aforesaid guarantee, as between
themselves, the total of all liabilities in respect of a claim thereunder and
of all costs, charges and expenses suffered or incurred by any of them
resulting therefrom or attributable thereto shall be shared by them in

proportion to their respective ultimate ownership in WHTCL.

b The Company has provided a guarantee on the US$450 million
Guaranteed Notes issued by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

¢ The Company has provided a guarantee to Commerzbank
Aktiengesellschaft, Hong Kong Branch for a credit facility of up to
RMB100 million granted to a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

d The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 60% to
support loan facilities of RMB615 million and US$70 million to Jilin Xinli

Power Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

e The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 79.998% to
support a loan facility of up to HK$448 million granted by a bank to a
subsidiary of the Company.

f The Company has provided guarantees to 2 banks for each of them
has individually granted a loan facility of up to RMB100 million to a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

g The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 79.998% to
support loan facilities of HK$300 million and RMB100 million granted
by a bank to a subsidiary of the Company.
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29 hLEHF

ERAERHBEAF  KAEHERARE
2T ERUENA > FHIRE WG 2R
RAEFSE -

30 ##%EARB

AREER _FEFNEA+ N \AEEEE
#L# -
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29 Comparative Figures

Pursuant to the refinement of the Group’s classification of associated
companies, jointly controlled entities and investments, certain

presentation of the accounts have been changed.

30 Approval of Accounts

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2004.
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BERA

THANEFERATEREARB I EARE
EREZAREEIEMELA - HRAZHE
B BEARLEESEAR - EEGRAF
FIMA B LR BRI G EARKBRIIR -

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures

The following are the principal subsidiary companiés, jointly controlled

entities, associated companies and co-operative joint ventures of the

Group which in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results

and net assets of the Group. To give full details of all companies would in

the opinion of the directors result in particulars of excessive length.

FAERE
Interest in equity
shares held by

ERITRHEHRT
Particulars of
issued sharest

EMmAR e/
TEHERE S@EES ARE HEBRE
£ig EARR % % % BRin# 8 BHE FBEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
G4
Power Generation
HEEREE
Jointly controfled entities
ARTERBEFRERF FEARANER 35 - 35 - - KNBEHZEE
RHEERERE" RER
Inner Mongolia Fengtai People's Republic of China Coal-fired power
Electric Power Generation Sino-foreign equity station operation
Company Limited joint venture* and management
ERFNBEERAT] FEARANE 60 - 60 - - KNBBEIZER-
RS EEEREK" RERABER
Jilin Xinli Power Cogeneration People's Republic of China Coal-fired
Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity co-generation
joint venture™ power plant
construction and
operation and
related business
BHXHBKBERENERAA REARANE 70 - 70 - - WKERBUIEE
NS ERE K

Wuxi Taihu Lake Pumped
Storage Power Co., Ltd.

People’s Republic of China

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*®

Pumped storage
hydraulic power
plant construction
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31 TEMBEAF - LEEH 31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
ER -BEARARAHE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
SEQNR s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
EHRE EBITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares®
AR/
FEEEMY SEEN AaE WEAT
ez SEALR % % % RIHEE HE IEX®
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
NEAREFRSEREMIAA FEARANR 50 - 50 - - ANBEEIER
FHEEEECE"
People's Republic of China Coal-fired
Sino-foreign equity power station
joint venture* construction
BESELE]

Co-operative joint ventures

IHMNBENFRAR(RED FEARANE 56.31 - 56.31 - - BERREREE¥
(BifsEa) BEGERA"

Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power  People’s Republic of China Electric power
Company Limited (‘Ligang’) Co-operative plant constructicn
(Note a) joint venture* and operation

REFMNBEERLA EF%?S/\E?W 50 - 50 - - NNBBEZRE

BIEBEAT

Kaifeng Xinli Power People’s Republic of China Coal-fired power
Generation Co., Ltd. Co-operative station

joint venture® operation

M HENBRRE (HAH]) *%/\E#ﬁﬂ 50 - 50 - - REUBREREY
(B&Eb) BEEE AT

Zhengzhou Xinli Electric People’s Republic of China ' Electric power plant
Power Co., Ltd. ('Xinli") Co-operative construction and
(Note b) joint venture™® operation
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B -BERARSIHE

EENAlzE

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

BHERE
Interest in equity
shares held by

2EITRHER
Particulars of
issued shares?

FEMAR S Es
TEEEME REES AAE WBLF
ey SEABRBI % % % 8B HE IEBEXER
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
BiE
Tunnels
WA
Subsidiary companies
NEEBEBRLE BE 70.8 - 70.8 75,000,000 B0 BEgE
New Hong Kong Tunnel Hong Kong ’ HK$10  Tunnel cperation
Company Limited
AREH S
Jointly controlled entities
Eastern Harbour Crossing 5% 50 - 50 - - BBEg¥E
Company Limited
Hong Kong Tunnel operation
BERERSELRER B 35 - 35 - - BB Z%RRE
HRDA BERE
Hong Kong Tunnels and Hong Kong Management,
Highways Management operation and
Company Limited maintenance of
the Cross Harbour
Tunnel
EEERBEERAT &5E 35 - 35 - - NESEAAEER
BREemREERKE
Western Harbour Tunnel Hong Keng Franchise to

Company Limited

construct and
operate the
Western Harbour
Crossing
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31 TEWMBLR -~ LEEH 31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
B HMEARRAE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
FENAs and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
BERE BERITRMHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued sharest
ARSI/
FTEEENT SEES QT HEBEAE
BB SEANERR % % % ing 8 HE FEXH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
BRRE
Environmental
REZHEE
Jointly controfled entities
EEEYBEFRAE 5% 50 - 50 - - HRE - EEREE
BYEE L
Ecoserve Limited Hong Kong Design, construction

and operation of
refuse transfer

station
2N
Associated companies
BNEEHNRERERAE EE 20 - 20 - - WGt ER EER
ERBEHARR
Enviropace Limited Heng Kong Design, construction,

operation and

management of
chemical waste
treatment plant

BARTIEERAT ¥ 30 - 30 - - HEERRERMEER
Green Valley Landfill, Limited Hong Kong Landfill construction

and cperation

FRERYMEESRALF E% 30 - 30 - - iR REREYE
REVIEEE S
South China Transfer Limited Hong Kong Design, construction

and operation of
transfer station
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B BERARSHE

R NE

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

HERE

Interest in equity
shares held by

BBITRIGER
Particulars of
issued shares”

SRR/
FEREME REEE »A] MERE
2T SEAER % % % Bin&E HiE TEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
E2 %
Communications
WL A
Subsidiary companies
AAA Internet Limited 5% 100 - 100 2 W1 RETEHBERG
REERE
Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of internet
services and
advertising agency
RIEEE16168RAR) EBE 100 - 100 2 BEIT  REEARE
CITIC Concept 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
telecommunications
services
REEBERBRBIGIBERDH BE 100 - 100 2 BRI REERERBRK
(7118 CITIC Telecom
1616 Consultancy
Services Limited)
CITIC Consultancy 1616 Hong Kong HKS$1  Provision of
Limited (Formerly CITIC telecommunications
Telecom 1616 Consultancy consultancy
Services Limited) services
FEBEI616ER AT BE 100 - 100 2 EEIT REBBSEES
CITIC Data 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of data
transmission
services
EREZT (LA} RER HEARLNER 100 - 100 TEA TERE REEFHBALCRERK
BiER QA SEBALE"
China Interactive Sports People’s Republic of China Provision of sports
Technology Company Wholly foreign-owned N/A N/A related online

Limited

enterprise™

services
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31 TEMBLE - LEEH 31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
ER -BEL RREE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BENE# and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
BERE BEITRHER"
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares’
I AvE: Eay
TELEME EEREE RRE WBAF -
ZiE SENERA % % % Ripg g EHE FEEK
Place of incorporation / Aftributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
REREI1616HR AT BB 100 - 100 2 BRI REHBARB
CITIC Networks 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
telecommunications
services
HEREFARNRERLR BRiE 100 - 100 100,000 BB BREER
CITIC Pacific Communications  Bermuda HK$1  Investment holding
Limited
HREERI616BRAT % 100 - 100 2 B REERERRS
CITIC Telecom 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
international
telecommunications
services
PEEFIBI6HRAR ER 100 - 100 2 BEIT UHRBIR
CITIC TeleSoft 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of software
development
services
CPCNet Hong Kong Limited EBE 100 - 100 394,866,986 BEIT  REDBBRE
Hong Kong ' HK$1  Provision of internet
services
CPCNet Japan# = &1t B 100 - 100 10,000 1,0008E RETHERE
CPCNet Japan Limited Japan JPY1,000 Provision of internet
) services
CPCNetBRPFIER 2 7F] P 100 - 100 TER TEA  REEBRER%
CPCNet Macau Limited Macau N/A N/A  Provision of internet
services
CPCNet Singapore Private gk 100 - 100 2 1Eg T REEBARE
Limited Singapore 581 Provision of internet
services
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31 TEMBLAR - HE#E 31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
ER BEQRAESHE Controiled Entities, Associated Companies
BERNA sz and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
HHERE EBITRNER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares!
At ave ki
TEEEDE EEEN ARE HMBRE
=18 SEAER % % % CEghy 4= EE IEXH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
Data Communication Services &% 100 - 100 1,000 BRI REERRE
Limited 38,000,000* BB
Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
HK$1 telecommunications
equipment
tRBEMERERAF BE 100 - 100 300,000 BEIOT REERBER
Global Link Information Hong Kong HK$10  Provision of internet
Services Limited services
ERERBERRAT BE 100 - 100 2,250,000 I RETRERS
Vision Network Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of internet
services
BHRERLA EE 100 - 100 1,000 BT REERERRS
2,000,000¢ BAE1T
World Navigation Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
HK$1 international
telecommunications
services
EMTRERRRTARLT REARKNE 100 - 100 TEMA TEA REHIBERERS
SNEBERE”
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Provision of internet
Wholly foreign—owned value added
enterprise” services
BATRECRRBERAT FEARLME 100 - 100 @A TEE REERARERY
HNEBERE"
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Provision of internet

Wholly foreign—owned
enterprise”

value added
services

137



B% B M1 5F Notes to the Accounts

31 TEWMBRFE
B -BEL

SR NI

C# RS
ARAKE

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

RERE
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITRIER

Particulars of
issued shares’

Eatifaave:ct-
TELEMR SEEA ALF WEAF
£y EANER % % % RN E B HE IEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
REFHER
Jointly controlled entities
HEERERLA FEARANE 50 - 50 - - REER
FHEERELE
CITIC Guoan Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China Investment holding
Sino-foreign equity
joint venture™
kN
Associated companies
BFEMBERAE Pl 20 20 - - - BRERRS
Companhia de Macau Telecommunications

Telecomunicacoes
de Macau S.AR.L.

services
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31 TEMBRA - XEEH
B -BEAARAHE

e naa

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlied Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-coperative Joint Ventures continued

B ERTRAER

Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares?

it ave: k-
TEEEME &£HBEE ApaE WELA
&g EAER % % % HE IEEH®
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % value  Principal activities
wnE
Aviation
REEFHEE
Jointly controlled entities
HEREREEREER AR REARLNE 25 25 - - BiF EARTHE
FOEEEELE" RigB R
Air China Cargo People's Republic of China Operation of
Sino-foreign equity international and
joint venture* domestic air-cargo
services and
related ground
services
BERE]
Assoctated companies
ERME=FRDAS B 25.70 214 2356 - MERAMERSE
Cathay Pacific Airways Heng Kong Airlines and related
Limited® services
AEREFRAE &k 28.50 - 2850 - MZER
Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Hong Kong Aviation
Limited
Swire Aviation Limited % 33.33 - 3333 - RREEETEEY
ERARZ10%
TR
Hong Kong Investment in

Hong Kong Air
Cargo Terminals
Limited with 10%
effective interest
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31 XEMBRA - HE=ZH
Bt -BENAREHE

EENTFE

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

BERE
Interest in equity
shares held by

CBITRMHERT
Particulars of
issued shares®

A s /
TELENS SEES TRE WBAF
21 SEANER % % % ERerE- 4= EE IEXK
- Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
HEERSE
Marketing & Distribution
g =N
Subsidiary companies
ZEE SHHAER =l 100 - 100 250 50,000EE RKREZHES
Adachi Trading Company Japan JPY50,000  Trader of motor
Limited vehicle spare
parts
EEAEERAR &E 100 - 100 1,000 100 REEHEE
Confidence Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$100 -Motor vehicle
distributor
REEBHEEROBRAA i 100 - 100 1,000 BYE100T RETHES
Consolidated Parts & Hong Kong HK$100  Trader of motor
Accessories Sales vehicle spare
Centre Limited parts
AEE ST (NMERX)ERAR mEX 100 - 100 650,000 MEIT  —REHDRGEER
Dah Chong Hong (Canada) Canada CAN$1  General import/
Ltd. export and
investment
holding
RER BT (FE)ERAF =¥ 100 - 100 1,000 AE100T  BREER
Dah Chong Hong (China) Hong Kong HK$100  Investment holding
Limited
RE—BEBSHIRE &% 70 - 70 10,000 BT REESWHES
BEERRAF] HIZIR
Dah Chong Hong — Cragonair  Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of airport

Airport GSE Service Limited

ground support
equipment
maintenance
services
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continved

HERE
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITRHER
Particulars of
issued shares®

M HE /
TELEME EEEE ARA) MERE
B8 SEANER % % % fRIZEE BEE FEXH
Place of incorporation / Aftributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
REBZITIRARRR ) 100 - 100 100,000 A#¥100t  TiERH%
Dah Chong Hong (Engineering) Hong Kong HK$100 Engineering services
Limited
REESTRBERLA EE 100 - 100 21,031,837 BEIOT  REER
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Hong Kong HKS10  Investment holding
Limited
REEBITHERAR EE 100 - 100 50,000 #1000t REER:EHOR
TEAR  ERAG
REMER
Dah Chong Heng, Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 Investment holding;
general importers,
retailers and
exporters dealing
in foodstuffs,
electrical
appliances and
other products
HAGLAEE ST B 100 - 100 480,000 1,000BE &a- HERRK
#UEO PERE
RRERR
Dah Chong Hong (Japan) Japan JPY1,000 Importer and
Limited exporter of
foodstuffs, motor
vehicles and
garments; property
investment and
investment holding
RERBITAZ(PE)EBRAT & 100 - 100 20,000 E¥I100TT REER
Dah Chong Hong Motors Hong Kong HK$100  Investment holding

{China) Limited
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31 TEMBLA - £REH
BER -BELARSHE

NI

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

HERE
Interest in equity
shares held by

ERITRMHER"
Particulars of
issued shares’

SR/
ETELEE EEEE EpT WMBLR
E2Ed SEALRR % % % B EE EE TIEBEEX
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
REFTCIERERB)FRDA % 100 - 100 10,000 BE10T  REEE
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Hong Kong HK$10  Motor leasing
Leasing) Limited
AEEHTRERBTLERAT FE 100 - 100 2,000 AEE1007T BB EBER
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
Service Centre) Limited repairing and
servicing
REEZITAE (RE—PH) EE 100 - 100 2 EBEA0T O EEES
BRDA
Dah Chong Hong Motors Hong Kong HK$10  Motor vehicle
(Nissan - China) Limited distributor
AEE ST GIBOILAERRR  FHmE 100 - 100 3,500,000 1HMET REZBRRERES
Dah Chong Hong Trading Singapore S$1  Investment holding
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. and trading of
foodstuffs
RE-BEMVZERRAA] R 70 - 70 10,000 BEIT ZTERBRABEZH
DAS Aviation Support Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Distributor of air
cargo equipment
and related
spare parts
RE-BRETERBERAA EE 49 - 49 10,000 BEIT ZTEEHESERE
RERFREHHE
DAS Nordisk Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Repairs and
maintenance

services for air
cargo containers
and sale of related
spare parts
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WAL

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

BARE
Interest in equity
shares held by

ERITROHER
Particulars of
issued shares’

B ava:1 ¥
TEREDE EHAEG ARE MBAF
BiF EANER % % % iqhk - ¢E| HE IBEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
REARDAERERRAR EE 100 - 100 60,000 BBiIoT BS
DCH Beverage Solutions Hong Kong HK$10  Trading
Limited
ARETTRRIEERAR &k 100 - 100 2 B0 REER
DCH Food Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$10  Investment holding
RETRBEEFR LA EE 100 - 100 100,000 EBI00T SHRTERERAM
RE&E
DCH Healthcare Products Hong Kong HK$100 Distribution and
Limited retailing of medical
consumables and
equipment
REESITAE (BF) ARRE & 100 - 100 2 BT REEHER
DCH Motors (Bentley) Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Motor vehicle
distributor
DCH Motors Ltd. maEx 100 - 100 100 MEIT REEHE
Canada CAN$1  Motor vehicle
distributor
MERERERARAE BE 100 - 100 166,000 BEIT BHEERRSRE
Gentech Vehicle Engineering Hong Kong HK$1  Trading of special
Limited function vehicles
ERBEDRERAR FEARATE 90 - 30 TEA TEA S
THERERECE"
Guangdong Jing Yun People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Distribution

Distribution Co., Ltd.

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture”

143



&= 8 AT & Notes to the Accounts

31 FEMBAR - £EEH

BR -BELAREHE

- AT

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

HE R
Interest in equity
shares held by

EBITROER
Particulars of
issued shares®

ERiifave: kg
TREERH EEEG RAE WBLR
218 JENEER % % % RIDELE EHE EXH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
BRAEBRAT &R 100 - 100 1,000 A¥100T ABREHESD
Harmony Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
distributor
EHREERAT EE 100 - 100 3,000 JE®1,0007T AEGER
Honest Motors, Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000  Motor vehicle
distributor
REAEEHTAERAS & 100 - 100 1,000 BEEI00L REZHES
Japan Auto Parts Company Hong Kong HK$100  Trader of motor
Limited vehicle spare parts
SRTEERQF EE 100 - 100 2 BEIT  AEEHED
Premium Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Motor vehicle
distributor
ERABERLA] EE 100 - 100 2,000 BE100T  ABEEHEE
Regal Motors, Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
distributor
EHABERRLE B 100 - 100 3,000 #¥1,000Tt RELHEEF
Reliance Mators, Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000  Motor vehicle
distributor
EE (FE)BRAF & 100 - 100 2 EEI1I0T  TERRERK
Sims (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$10  Marketing
co-ordination
services
HE(BER)ERAF 5% 100 - 100 2 BT REER
Sims (Guangdong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Investment holding
EHERRAHA B 100 - 100 3,000 EEI00T BB
Sims Trading Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Wholesaling
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31 ETEMEBERA - £ REEH

B BEAARSHE

SERAs

31 Princﬁpaﬂ Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

FERE
Interest in equity
shares held by

BRIBHAR
Particulars of
issued shares'

A HES /

FELEHH EEEN QA HBAAE
£ SEARER % % % RITE 8 EE BEH

Place of incorporation / Attributable

Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of tegal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
HE (BF)BERAA B 70 - 70 TER TER EHOREE
Sims Trading (Macau)

Company Limited Macau N/A N/A  Import and export,
sales and
marketing

LERETAGKIEEARAF hEARLMNE 100 - 100 TEA. TER RENIRES
NEBELE"
Shanghai DCH Food People’s Republic of China N/A N/A Food processing

Industries Ltd. Wholly foreign-owned and trading

enterprise”

ERRBLAERRAE g 100 - 100 3,000,000 1HNET AESHE

Triangle Auto Pte Ltd Singapore S%$1  Motor vehicle
distributor

RBEARERLNA & 100 - 100 30,000 BHI00T RERER

Triangle Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
distributor

SRAE (PE) AR LQE £ 100 - 100 2 EEI10T RARBRRSEES

Triangle Motors (China) Hong Kong HK$10  Investment holding

Limited and trading of

motor vehicles
RAREFARLA % 100 - 100 2 BEIT BS
Twin Tiger International Limited  Hong Kong HK$1  Trading
AMAEHERSMIER hEARAME 90 - 90 TER TEE ‘SNIRYTRE

BB AE] IS BBERE"

People's Republic of China N/A N/A  Processing of food

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture™

products and
provision of
logistics services
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31 FEMBLAE - HEES 31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
ER -BEQrAREE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BENTF s and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
BHERE ERITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares*
ERtifave: ks
TEEEHE EEEE FLR MBATE
£iB EANERA % % % Rr&E EBE IEXB
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
IFEEESERAR FTEARERARE 100 - 100 TiEA TER RAHHE
NEBERE"
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A Wholesaling of
Wholly foreign-owned food products
enterprise”
EEREZRMEBMHERAT FEARAMNE 75 - 75 TER TEAR S£EZMRESEMH
FAEERELE”
Qingdao Adachi Paints and Peaple's Republic of China N/A N/A  Production of paints
Chemical Materials Co., Ltd.  Sino-foreign equity and chemical
joint venture* materials
HEZFIER
Jointly controlled entities
BEEREMTLHESRERLRT FE 50 - 50 - - LERES
Shiseide Dah Chong Hong Hong Kong Trading in cosmetic
Cosmetics Limited products
BELE]
Associated companies
BRETBEERAF % 50 - 50 - - SHEEEMREH
Alto China Limited Hong Kong Distributor of audio
eguipment and
components
HEEERERRERRT hEAREME 22 - 22 - - HERHERNER
(FIEh EBREEELR PAEERLELE" EEER
BRALE)D

Shanghai Shineway DCH
Tyson Co., Ltd.
(Formerly known as
Shanghal DCH Shuanghui
IBP Co., Ltd.)

People’s Republic of China
Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*

Production and
selling of meat
and related

food products
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31 TEMBLA ~ HEEH
BR BEQRARSHE

gL/ NSIE

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Asscciated Companies

and Co-operative Joint Ventures continved

HHRE
Interest in equity
shares held by

BRITROER"
Particulars of
issued shares’

ML/ .
FELERE SERES ARE HMBRE
E e SENER % % % RiseE EE EEH
Place of incorporation / Aftributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
L/
Property
Hign el
Subsidiary companies
MXEBRRF e 100 - 100 2 EHI0TT  PERE
Admarch Limited Hong Kong HK$10  Property investrment
MXPEERERAT &5 100 - 100 2 BEIT  METEE
Admarch Property Management Hong Kong HK$1  Property
Company, Limited management
Borgia Limited e 100 - 100 2 EEI10T  MERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
BETLERERAH % 100 - 100 2 EBIT MEEE
Broadway Centre Property Hong Kong HK$1  Property
Management Company management
Limited
SBEREBAE EE 100 - 100 2 BEATL DERE
Campbellton Development Hong Kong HK$1  Property
Limited development
BHER A e 100 - 100 2 BT DERE
Famous Land Limited Hong Kong . HK$1  Property investment
Glenridge Company Limited i 100 - 100 2 BEIOT  DERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
Goldenburg Properties Limited &% 70 - 70 1,000 EEI10T  ERERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
EHMEBEERAF B 100 - 100 80,000 EBI007t  PERE
Hang Luen Chong Investment  Hong Kong HK$100 Property investiment

Company, Limited .

147




B TRz INOt1es 10 the Accounts

31 TEMBRR - £EEH 31
BR -BEARAREE

SENA sz

Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

FERE
Interest in equity
shares held by

ERTRGER
Particulars of
issued shares”

ERjiifoave: kg
TEREDE SEES ARE HBAF
£ SEALER % % % 1788 EHE FEXEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
EHEMEEERRAF B 100 - 100 2 BB PEER
Hang Luen Chong Property Hong Kong HKS1  Property
Management Company, management
Limited '
BEEEEERAT BE 100 - 100 50,000 BEI100T  HERE
Hang Wah Chong Investment Hong Kong HK$100  Property investment
Company Limited
Lindenford Limited BE 100 - 100 2 BE10TT  MERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
HEREFRAHF 5% 100 - 100 2 EEIT DERE
Neostar Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Property investment
BEERLT & 100 - 100 2 B¥IT BERE
Pacific Grace Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Property investment
EEEEEEFRANF FEARMMR 100 - 100 TNEA TEA PERERER
NEBELRE”
Shanghai Super Property People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Property investment
Co., Ltd. Wholly foreign-owned and management
enterprise”
Tendo Limited & 100 - 100 2 BEIOT WERERER
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
and management
BHEEREERAH BB 100 - 100 1,000,000 BEIT HKERRSR
Yee Lim Godown & Cold Hong Kong HK3$1  Operate a dry and

Storage Limited

cold storage
godown
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31 TEMBRAF ~ LEEH 31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

B HELIREHE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
EENTg and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
AR EEITREER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares?
Ediiloava::L W
TEREER SERES ELF WBRF
B8 SEAER % % % BmEE HE TIEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable .
Principal place of operation to the  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares valug  Principal activities
LEFERERERROA FEARANE 80 - 80 TiEA TER YERARER
PONEERERR”
People's Republic of China N/A N/A  Property investment
Sino-foreign equity and management

joint venture*

LEEEMFREBEREEROH FEARANE 100 - 100 TEA TER DEEBR
hOEERE R
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Property
Sino-foreign co-operative development

joint venture”

EHAFERBRRERLA PEARAME 70 - 70 TER TER EPESEH
FOEBEERE" .
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A Sports related
Sino-foreign equity ) services

joint venture”

BEHEARREEERAE @ ARKTE 70 - 70 TER TEE DERERBR
HEERERE"
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Property investment
Sino-foreign equity and development

joint venture®

EHRNPELEERER AT b AR 70 - 70 TEA TER BERE
HINEEREE
People's Republic of China N/A N/A  Environmental
Sino-foreign equity protection

joint venture®
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8% B H1 3 Notes to the Accounts

31 EEWBAR - HEESR
Bt BEQARAREGHE

R WNGIE

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Asscciated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

e EBITROER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares”
Rt ava: g
FEEBE EEEE ARE MELE
=18 ENEA % % % RirEA EHE IBE%
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No.of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
N
Associated companies
FEAREEERAA B 40 - 40 - - D%ER
CITIC Tower Property Hong Kong Property
Management Company management
Limited
X - R ER AT R 50 - 50 - - DERE
Festival Walk Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong Property investment
SRIRAERAE EiE 40 - 40 - - DERE
Goldon Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment
EREARXERAT BE 50 - 50 - - DEEBEER
Hong Kong Resort Company Hong Kong Property
Limited development
Kido Profits Limited RBRLER/BE 15 - 15 - - DERBE
British Virgin Islands / Property
Hong Kong development
BEEESRAF BE 20 - 20 L - - YERA
Shinta Limited Hong Kong Property investment
HEBEERRA Y 40 - 40 - - DEBR
Sun Kong Investment Hong Kong Property
Company, Limited development
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31 TEMBLA ~

HE =

B BEQRARAHE

RN

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Jeint Ventures continued

HERE
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEEITROER"
Particulars of
issued shares!

SRR /
FTELEE EEEE RAT HWBAR
£ EAER % % % iR BE HE FEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity™ Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
THREE
Industrial Manufacturing
Hig R a]
Subsidiary companies
ARAREEREFRAA REARANE 54.94 - 54.94 TEA @R BEEE
hAEEFERE
Jiangyin Xingcheng Special People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Steel making
Steel Works Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity
joint venture™
IRERBSMERAR FEARANER 55 - 55 TEA TERE BgtE
TARBRBERE"
Jiangyin Xingcheng Steel People’'s Republic of China N/A N/A Steel making
Products Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity
joint venture”
TREFFREERAR HEARLNE 55 - 55 @A TER  REER
PHEEBERE"
Jiangyin Xingcheng Storage People's Republic of China N/A N/A  Loading and
and Transportation Co., Ltd.  Sino-foreign equity unloading
joint venture” business
IHERERBRFREARNARLT FEARHANE 54,72 - 54.72 390,000,000 AREIT HB8sE
IEREBROBICE
Jiangsu CP Xingcheng People’'s Republic of China RMB1  Steel making
Special Steel Co., Ltd. Foreign investment
stock company™
SHEEERERLA PEARLRME 55 - 55 ~EA THEA IZEBHE
PHAEERBERE
Wuxi Huada Motors Co., Ltd. People's Republic of China N/A N/A  Industrial motors
Sino-foreign eguity manufacturing
joint venture*®
IREEREFENHERRA PEARANRE 54,87 - 54.87 TNEA TEA EHREEKR
FHEEBERE" BRER
People's Republic of China N/A N/A  Production and sale

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*

of hot iron and the
related products

151



B% B H13F Notes to the Accounts

31 TEWMBLR - LXEEH 31

ER -BEQRARGHE

=R NCIE

Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controiled Entities, Associated Companies

and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

BRRE

Interest in equity
shares held by

EERITRDER

Particulars of
issued shares®

il Ave: k0
FELEME EEEE LR MEBAT
E EANER % % % k&8 EE IEX®
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
L gis
Finance
WELE
Subsidiary companies
CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) EBEZES 100 100 - 1,000 12T BERH
Limited British Virgin Islands US$1  Financing
Idealand Investment Inc. e EAME 100 - 100 100 1E2n RBERH
Republic of Panama US$1  Financing
Top Trend Investments KBRETES/ERE 100 100 - 1 12T BEATH
Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands/Bermuda US$1  Financing
BELF
Associated companies
Cheer First Limited R 40 - 40 - - RATH
Hong Kong Financing
Treasure Trove Limited B 50 - 50 - - RYERYE
Hong Kong Financing
ESMBEELR B 50 - 50 - - REEBRREERSE
Way Chong Finance Limited Hong Kong Provision of hire

purchase and
leasing finance
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31 TEMBLA

# B 42§

R BERAREE

S8Rz

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

Controlled Entities, Asscociated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

FRE
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEIRIGER
Particulars of
issued shares’

Holdings Limited

MR/
TEEEMI SEEG ARE WBRE
BB SEAEER % % % iann 4= EHE EEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation to the Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
Hitp
Others
H1g 5 a]
Subsidiary companies
REZEFERRAT &% 62 - 62 2 BEIT RABEEDB
Botanitown Pharmaceuticals Hong Kong HK$1  Investment in
Limited pharmaceutical
business
EREREZAYRMABRLRE b ARLMNE 62 - 62 TER TER BRERAREEZ
SEBELE"
Beijing Botanitown People's Republic of China N/A N/A  Research and
Biotechnologies Limited Wholly foreign-owned development in
enterprise” pharmaceutical
products
FEEE (PE)BEFRQF FEARLANE 100 - 100 TER TER  REER
IEBERER
CITIC Pacific China Holdings People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Investment holding
Limited Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise”
ERBREERARLT REEZES 62 - 62 100 1ET RABBEY
Winway Investments British Virgin Islands US$1  Investment in
Holdings Corp. pharmaceutical
business
REEREE
Jointly controlled entities
FEERTBERER D £ 50 - 50 - - REER
CITIC Capital Markets Hong Kong Investment holding
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& B B 5= Notes to the Accounts

31 TEMBAR - HEEH
Bl -BELARGE

AN

31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

FEERE
Interest in equity
shares held by

BRITRIER
Particulars of
issued shares®

SRR A LB /
TELEME £@EE  ARQF WBLH
e EANER % % % RivEE EE TEBEER
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity” Group % % % shares valug  Principal activities
TEEHNEEERLA BE 50 - 50 - ~ REER
CP Adaltis Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment holding
Company Limited
EEPETENZHABNERLR PEARANE 50 - 50 - - HBRLEEBNZE
NEBRELE HEESR
People’s Republic of China Development and
Wholly foreign-owned manufacture of
enterprise” healthcare in-vitro
diagnostic
products
NS BN TR E SR PEARLZAR 31 - 31 - - WBEYERSBEI
ERRE PR BEERE
People’s Republic of China Research and
Sino-foreign equity development in
joint venture* biotechnology
Hrat - Note :

(a) BZE—HRE_HGERTEEZEIFEELFA]
AR ARFEBRZEREZHBREELREE
BREEDRTEFR - TEHEFEARANE
ZEEBHETE Bl - REREBRAZREEGE
EMBEURE  EEREZBHENE

(o) EHIERTFEZ SIEE EREARR  BRFEER
ZEFB BB EEEZ CBERER N T EER
BHREARANBZBNTRERKRAERANE «
Rt HZRABREZFEETECEYRERRE &
B E R TR o

" BEAEERN  EEERR -

PEREBELERG -HERDZET  HRRRHSZ
HERBEHREZEEERBEEA -

CFEBFERELNRBERNERFRAFELMGRE
ZHEEHRFEISTRI3E »
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(a) Ligang Phase ! and Il are accounted for as a co-operative joint venture of the Group
as the Group’s interests therein will revert to the joint venture partners in the People’s
Republic of China after fifteen years and twenty years respectively from the date on
which the electricity generators became operational. Accordingly their results are
accounted for to the extent of dividends received and receivable, less amounts

amortised.

(b) Xinli is accounted for as a co-operative joint venture of the Group as the Group's
interest therein will revert to Zhengzhou Construction Investment Co. in the People’s
Republic of China after fifteen years from the date on which the third unit commenced
commercial operation. Accordingly its results are accounted for to the extent of
dividends received and receivable, less amounts amortised.

t Represented ordinary shares, unless otherwise stated.

* Non-voting deferred shares - the rights, privileges and restrictions of which are set out
in the Articles of Association of the respective company.

$ Extracts from the pubiished accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, a significant
assoctated company of the Group, are shown on pages 157 and 158.
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Auditors’ Report

HEERERRAT
(MEBEMRLZARAT) 2BER

EHBEMEEMELELEFEISAENEE -
HERENEREELERANERAIRR
(FIRFITEZ EFRIBURIMHE QR ITMEE
B4h) -

EEERENMEEMEE

B4 ARAREES AR ETRATFH
RH o ERNESERRATHORAN 5
BARRMEEOHEON - LA MERRS
B -

EREMNEIRREEROER  HEE
BREFHBLER  BEBHFELFGLE
4R EREERRRE - RS ABRER]
EHMEN - FREEAGHAHERE U
AHEMA LA EBREEMRE -

ERMER

ARBAMC LR R R LS ITEM N EE
ERBETER L - ERREAFEUHET X
ERAGRENREERKBEEEARNESE
MEEFEEENFEEREHMELNERMY
SHRAIE  BTRAMEHERETES BL
A REENEEREL  RETERERIL
R BEZLEGTEEK -

AR R FRETE L TAER > LIRS
FEAREMZEALROESRBEAERE
LMERREE  MZSRERGHFERER
SHRBRIK > R A EIERE - EFHE R
AREMITCFEERE TR R ERR
RRLH - ARG > RMOEZTED
AT RRARMEEER R -

Auditors’ report to the shareholders of CITIC Pacific Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 82 to 154 which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

Hong Kong, save as explained in accounting policy Note 1q on page 97.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The Hong Kong Compariies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare
accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give
a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies

are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies

are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion

we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information
in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.
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ZBETIRE Auditors’ Report

ER Opinion

ARBENRA > LHKEREEUEERAFHE  Inour opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
Brn RAFRE BREER-FZ=F1_A4 of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2003 and of the profit
St —HAEEEMBMBERE > & HEEBZE  and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been
ZHIEEENBHMEREHE  UEBEFEL  properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies

ARFIZERE Ordinance.
BREKEGSMEH PricewaterhouseCoopers
HEEE Certified Public Accountants
H#E _FENE=[+AH Hong Kong, 18 March 2004
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AEGEERATOAGEE 2 HE

Extract from Published Accounts of

Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

a HERER

WE-BT=EL AT —BIEFE

a Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

for the year ended 31 December 2003

HEBEBETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
EXE Turnover
FERK Passenger services 18,663 22,376
EERK Cargo services 9,913 9,387
MERER AR Catering and other services 1,002 1,327
-t Total Turnover 29,578 33,090
Mx Expenses
8T Staff (8,035) (7,918)
s Route (5,416) (6,113)
pate Fuel (5,236) (4,895)
g Aircraft maintenance (2,856) (3,312)
FERERHEE Depreciation and operating leases (4,860) (4,720)
Be Commissions (400) (601)
Eit Others (550) (881)
EERX Operating Expenses (27,353) (28,340)
BB Operating Profit 2,225 4,750
B2 Finance charges (1,807) (2,421)
B A Finance income 1,187 1,678
BRI HEE Net finance charges (620) (743)
FEESEBARER Share of profits of associated companies 151 324
BxB AT H R Profit before Tax 1,756 4,331
A Taxation (409) (328)
BRELERR Profit after Tax 1,347 4,003
SEREER Minority interests (44) (20)
BREREEER Profit Attributable to Shareholders 1,303 3,983
RE Dividends
HEH—EIR Interim ~ paid 100 534
RE—8BE Final - proposed 568 935
B Rl— R Special - proposed 936 -
1,604 1,469
SRR (BBW) Earnings per Share (HK¢)
PN Basic 39.0 119.5
B Diluted 38.8 118.7
ERBEES (EET) Shareholders’ Funds per Share (HKS) 9.3 9.6
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BEMTERATERAMER 2B E Extract from Published Accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

b KEEEEER
“EFEFF-AZT-EER

b Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2003

LB EETE in HKS milfion 2003 2002
BEERAH Assets and Liabilities
FREEERBE Non-current assets and liabilities
EEEE Fixed assets 51,357 50,038
BRAE ‘ Intangible assets 405 489
REEE AR 2RE Investments in associated companies 1,661 1,739
Hih REBWRIEREE Other long-term receivables and investments 1,263 1,458
54,686 53,724
RHaE Long-term liabilities ‘ (33,022) (31,382)
EEBERFER Related pledged security deposits 11,604 12,853
REBEES Net long-term liabilities (21,418) (18,529)
RAEFET Retirement benefit obligations (181) (346)
RERIE Deferred taxation (7,762) (7,614)
(29,361) (26,489)
R EEFE Net non-current assets 25,325 27,235
HEEERBE Current assets and liabilities
FE Stock 398 430
BS5 R EMmEWFIE Trade and other receivables 4,753 4,294
REBES Liquid funds 15,200 13,180
20,351 17,904
REBEBZRBHD Current portion of long-term liabilities (6,754) (6,409)
BEDSERTR Related pledged security deposits 1,875 2,128
REBBEZRDHEHEHE Net current portion of long-term liabilities (4,879) (4,281)
HE5REMENFHE Trade and other payables (5,543) (5,280)
REER WS Unearned transportation revenue (2,839) (2,518)
BHIE Taxation (1,259) (874)
(14,520) (12,053)
RYEEFE Net current assets 5,831 4,951
BEEREARBRIEREBE Total assets less current and non-current liabilities 31,156 32,186
LERRER Minority interests (104) 71)
BEFE Net assets 31,052 32,115
EX RS Capital and Reserves
[ Share capital 669 667
#iE Reserves 30,383 31,448
BREES Shareholders’ funds 31,052 32,115
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Definition of Terms

7 5B
AeER  REASMEAEEH

FE%KY SEREHRATKYFEH
REAR  gmom . sERNEE . G
AT REMREZBETA

SRAHE HMRRMED  RRAES
REFR RAEAREEE RRITHEK
BExa8 BREE+AREH

EBITDA ABFEFEIE - BIE - TE
Rz m A H R

e BAEEA - BREULES
EHEFE  BEURBE)T
HZHX

bt &=

FE SR i 38 )

ENCETKEZ
TR (% 8)

BREN =

BRE#

FECHITIESE
fit i #RE

]

BRERER

AREH
BAME

RiR =

RAFAEGZHETR

FRCBRTEAL
A HE B

SRATHE =

AEEFEZS - BIH -
Pl R 2 R
FEXH

RN =

Terms
Capital employed

Cash contributed
from all business

Total debt
Net debt
Total capital

EBITDA

Contribution

Ratics

Earnings per share

Shareholders’ funds
per share

Leverage

Cashflow per share

Interest cover

Shareholders’ funds + total debt

Cash inflow to CITIC Pacific Ltd. from its
subsidiary companies, jointly controlled
entities, associated companies and

other investments

Short term and long term loans, notes and bonds
Total debt less cash and bank deposits
Shareholders’ funds + net debt

Net profit less interest expense, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation

After tax profit. No allocation of central
interest, overhead and goodwill is made to
business units

Profit attributable to shareholders

Weighted average number of shares
(by days) in issue for the year
Shareholders’ funds

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

Net debt
Total capital

Cash contributed from all business

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

EBITDA

Interest expense
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SHEPBAZEEYE
Major Properties Held by the Group

HE - EZEZ=F+_H=+—H%HE asat 31 December 2003

LA EE R
B/ WERR HRERSH SEEE% (FAFR) BERE
Leasehold Group’s  Approximate Gross
Address / Lot No. Expiry Interest % Floor Area (sq. ft.) Existing Use
TERBNE
Major Properties Held For Investment
1. LERIESREEAE 2041 100 309,000 BYERER
NEAER EIT06 I AR EH 270013 2 260415
Skyway House, 3 Sham Mong Road, Kowloon, H.K. Cffice and Shop
2604/2700th shares of KIL, No. 9708 & the extension thereto
2. BRBELE2- 28R RLEHF-6R WA IEFRLCHE 2047 100 320,000 REBREERES
HEIBTHLE 3335800017 2 400015
Block C of Yee Lim Industrial Centre, 2-28 Kwai Lok Street, Cold Storage
and 2-6 Kwal Hei Street, Kwai Chung, H.K. and Godown
4000/9000th shares of KCTL No. 333
3. BEEEEEEE-11HeMTERE 2880 100 48,000 BErEREH
AR E5431 R 54325
Honest Motors Building, 9-11, Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, H.K. Office and Shop
HKIL No. 5431 and 5432
4, FREBXEHE102-2100ERPLE—1 2047 100 393,000 I%
BRTOE_HE1RE2MERMEFEPSORPSIHREL
ERTIHERE 130 REFERIPIHBE1115213 2577917
Wyler Centre 1, Basement 1 & 2 and Parking Spaces Industrial
Nos P50 and P51 on 2nd Floor of Wyler Centre 2,
192-210 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, H.K.
5779/11152th shares of and in the Remaining Portion
of Kwal Chung Town
Lot No. 130 and the extension thereto
5 HAZBEEBCHEERL - ZEMHERFI35H 2047 100 342,000 EERKBETE
Broadway Centre, No. 93 Kwai Fuk Road, Kwai Chung, Godown and
H.K. KCTL No. 435 Ancillary Office
6. BEEEBEERRFAETHESC 2047 100 389,000 BEFERERE
MR E8854%
DCH Commercial Centre, No. 25, Westlands Road, Quarry Bay, Office and
H.K. HKIL8854 Restaurants
7. BATRAREIGHRERE 2047 40 562,000 BTEREH
MU ER 8225
CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, H.K. Office and Shop
HKIL No. 8822
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MR/ HERS B

BOIBEESR

ERERE EEER% (FEFR) RS AR
Leasehold Group’s  Approximate Gross

Address / Lot No. Expiry interest % Floor Area (sq. ft.) Existing Use

8. NEX—HEZBX—4 FTARALERECI181R 2047 50 1,200,000 BYEREH

Festival Walk, Tat Chee Avenue, Yau Yat Tsuen, Kowloon, Office and Shop
H.K. NKIL No. 6181

9. FELESXERRARIIBRTERERS 2044 80 1,137,000 BETEREH

CITIC Square, 1168 Nanjing Xi Lu, Jingan District, Shanghai, the PRC Office and Shop

10, FELEBHREELEROBBRELLE 2063 100° 374,000 T=E

Royal Pavilion, 688 Hua Shan Lu, Jingan District, Shanghai, the PRC Residential

11. Hiro-o Garden Hills, West Hill 1-1204, Hirc-o 4-chome, AR 100 873 e

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential

12. Hiro-o Garden Hills, Centre Hill H-1403, Hiro-o 4-chome, AR 100 2,012 £

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential

13. Hiro-0 Garden Hills, South Hill D-507, Hiro-o 4-chome, KA EEE 100 2,264 =

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential

14, Dah Chong No. 1 Building; 12-6, Roppongi, 3-chome, KAENE 100 34,528 BEREES

Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Commercial &

Restaurants, etc.

15. Dah Chong No. 2 Building, B1/F-4/F, 18-2, Roppongi, 5-chome, KARE 100 13,067 FEREES

Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Commercial &

Restaurants, etc.

16. Toriizaka House 14-19, Roppongi, 5-chome, AR 100 7,352 TERBTIE

Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential & Office

* BRIt T2 HIERIME R G 2 B ERAE LR — B2 EYES
* excluding a petrol filling station on the ground floor with an ancillary storage tank in part of the basement and a storeroom on the first floor
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R B L EEZ PR Major Properties Rela by the Group

B/ R RE

BT

Stage of

Location / Lot No.

Completion

CH)
®TRE
Estimated
Completion
Date

5

Classification

Leasehold

g

wEERE BEEE
(FAR) (FAR) REM%
Approximate Approximate
Site Area  Gross Floor
(sq. ft.) Area (sqg. ft.)

%)
BR  REED
EHH %

Group's

Expiry Interest % Existing Use

BHEBEZIEYE
Major Properties Held For Development

1. R
FE1NHRLBONE0F R 8E -
3945 B 2 $RER - 395 - 396 - 397 -

399 - 400 * 401 - 402 - 405 - 406

407 - 409 - 4105R R 2 R ER
AN25EME 2 BB - 413FILR 2 HE
AASEHER 2 84E) - 4160 417 - 418 -

419K 4245 B RLB 17
%127%‘,‘:%274%%5&2%5& :
FOTBHIER 2 BRER - 27OEHOER Z BRER -
B2 ER 2 BRER - 28BHIER 2 HRER -

284 - 285 - 286 B ZEER
F286HBRE—FERRE286H R 2 HER
Lot Nos. 390Rp, 394Rp, 395, 396, 397,
399, 400, 401, 402, 405, 408, 407, 409,
410Rp, 412Rp, 413Rp, 414Rp, 416, 417,
418, 419 and 424 in d.d. No. 121 and
Lot Nos. 274Rp, 273Rp, 279Rp, 282Rp,
283Rp, 284, 285, 286sB Rp, 286sB ssl
and 286Rp in D.D.

No. 127 Yuen Long, New Territories, H.K.

TER

N/A

AEA

N/A

TER

N/A

2047 100 193,652 TER fet-3uok:

N/A Construction
Site

2. ¥ATH
F1045 L ENHEIT2IRMERDR ZHE -
F101FLENNF43ARS05 R E
F105HRLBONF1266F R 2 BB -
1267 1268
Lot No. 3723 sD Rp in D.D. No. 104 and
Lot Nos. 43A and 50 in D.D. No. 101 and
Lot Nos. 1266Rp, 1267 and 1268 in D.D.
Ne. 105, Yuen Long, New Territories, H.K.

TEA

N/A

FEA

N/A

TER

N/A

2047 40 2,449,517 TER

N/A  Agricultural
Land

162




Bwa i)

fast R SE#ER R E R BEEE
HE /B R WIFEER BTIAH 5 ERE % (FAR) (FFR) HBER%
Estimated Approximate Approximate
Stage of  Completion Leasehold Group's Site Area  Gross Floor
Location / Lot No. Completion Date Classification Expiry Interest % (sq. ft.} Area (sqg. ft.) Existing Use
3. LERDBBMES0RS02E TEA TEA TEA 2047 100 20,258 TiEHA fecgtauf s
FAENMBRE4TS1H RATH2H
No. 500 and 502, n/a n/a n/a N/A Construction
Tung Chau Street, Site
Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, H.K.
NKIL No. 4751 & 4752
4. IETERBEERRE/ EETT F-ER EERBHE 2072 100 734,783 3,000,000 fediings
BERBERMATE LETE —ZTRF/
—TERE
P304
New Westgate Garden, Super- Phase 1 Residential Construction
Xi Zang Nan Lu / structure in 2008 / & Site
Jian Guo Dong Lu, in progress 2006 Commercial
Huang Pu District,
Shanghal, the PRC
BOBHEE
B/ HERTE HEERS REERY% (EHFR) RoRE
Leasehold Group's Approximate Gross
Address / Lot No. Expiry Interest % Floor Area (sq. ft.) Existing Use
RREZTEYHE
Major Properties Held for Sale
NEZEREI02- 1355 REEAM 2006 100 135,000 fEd=a)
NEAEREBETHRDBREIRFE2H R RBE
Grand Court, 108-135 Kadoorie Avenue, Kowloon, H.K. Residential

Subsections 1 and 2 and the Remaining Portion of Section D of KIL No. 2657
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Shareholders may at any time choose to receive the Summary Financial Report or the Annual Report in printed form or to
rely on their versions posted on the Company’s website. They may also at any time choose to receive the Summary Financial
Report or the Annual Report in place of the other. Shareholders may change their choice on these matters by writing to the
Company’s Share Registrars, Tengis Limited at G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

If Shareholders have already chosen to rely on the versions of the Summary Financial Report or the Annual Report posted
on the Company’s website and have difficulty in gaining access to those documents, they will, promptly upon request, be sent

those documents in printed form free of charge. Please send the request to the Company’s Share Registrars.

Designed by Sedgwick Richardson
Printed on environmentally friendly paper
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Business at a Glance cucpacses

primary focus is on providing basic infrastructure - power generation,
communications, aviation and civil infrastructure - in Hong Kong and
mainland China. They are complemented by the distribution of motor

vehicles and consumer products, property and industrial manufacturing.

Based in Hong Kong with a deep knowledge of China, CITIC Pacific
consists of sound businesses that produce good cash flows, many of which
have the potential to grow. Our finance is well-structured and we have a

tradition of operating with excellent standards of corporate governance.

ust, Reliability and Confidence.
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Power Generation CITIC Pacific builds, owns and operates power plants in
mainland China. Current total installed capacity in the power stations we have
an interest is 7,100MW and another 2,520MW is under construction.

Communications CITIC Pacific runs one of the largest game hosting
platforms in China and with the All-China Sports Federation and the Chinese
Olympic Committee promotes sports through e-platforms. CITIC Telecom 1616
is the leading 10D wholesaler in Asia, crcNet offers data services to customers
throughout Greater China, CITIC Guoan operates cable TV networks in
mainland China and cTMm is Macau’s communications provider of choice.

Aviation CITIC Pacific is a key participant in the aviation sector through
Cathay Pacific Airways, Hong Kong Dragon Airlines, air cargo provider HacTL
and Air China Cargo.

Civil Infrastructure CITIC Pacific is either an owner or involved in the
management of all three of Hong Kong harbour crossings - vital facilities that
connect Hong Kong Island to Kowloon.

8 € B 5 8 Marketing and Distribution
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H {h £ % Other Businesses
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Dah Chong Hong and Sims Trading serve the people of Hong Kong and other
parts of China by distributing an array of motor vehicles, consumer and food
commodities, and branded food, household and healthcare products.

Alone or with partners, CITIC Pacific develops, manages and owns properties
including Hong Kong’s CITIC Tower, Festival Walk, Discovery Bay, and
Shanghai’s New Westgate Garden, CITIC Square and Royal Pavilion.

Jiangyin steel plant is one of China’s leading manufacturer of specialty steels
such as bearing and gear steels. Wuxi Huada Motors produces electrical motors
for the domestic and European markets.

Crmic Capital Markets Holdings, bio-pharmaceutical research and distance
learning are all developing businesses of the CITIC Pacific Group.




HEBRE
Financial Highlights

B EETHE in HK$ mition 2003 2002
BRI Profit Attributable to Shareholders 1,305 3,875
TERXRHLAZBNER Major Businesses’ Contribution
B Power Generation 229 245
ER% Communications 234 553
Mz Aviation 421 1,263
ERRE Civil Infrastructure 635 1,238
HE RS I Marketing & Distribution 264 227
7S Property 508 894
TERE Industrial Manufacturing 178 126
REGESER Investment Properties Revaluation (587) -
FEXK2REER Cash Contributed from all Businesses 2,451 5,426
E¢ER Capital Employed 49,354 51,805
REES Shareholder’s Funds 38,826 42,538
BEEREER Net Debt 5,017 6,722
HMARRAZEEH Undrawn Loan Facilities 6,368 9,300
WEETHE in HK$
BEREFN Earnings per Share 0.60 1.77
EREE Dividends per Share
EiE Regular 1.00 1.00
=3l Special - 1.00
ETHE Staff 12,174 11,643

HANEEBESHENA Please see page 59 for definition of terms used
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Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders
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CITIC Pacific’s net profit for 2003 was HK$1,305 million, a decrease of 66%
compared with the HK$3,875 million in 2002. This decline is due to the
loss of income from the three bridges and two tunnels in Shanghai, which
were sold, a decrease in aviation’s contribution, and a HK$587 million
provision against the value of investment properties. Fortunately the sars
affected businesses recovered quickly, and a detailed analysis of their
performance can be found in the Business and Financial Review sections
of this report. The Board recommends maintaining the final dividend at
the same level as 2002 of HK$0.7 per share.

Power
A key business of CITIC Pacific is the generation of electric power, and 2003
has provided CITIC Pacific with the following excellent opportunities:

The Ligang Power Station in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province is the flagship of our
Company’s power business. Construction of its third 2x600MW phase
began in 2003 and operation is planned for 2006. The fourth phase, also
2x600MW, is expected to be operational in 2007. Equipment for both
phases has already been ordered. CITIC Pacific recently acquired an
additional 9% of the Ligang Power Station Phases I and II and now

owns 65%. Our shareholding in Phases I1I and IV will be higher at 73%.

‘Also in Wuxi, an application to build a Pumped Storage facility with a

capacity of 700MW is being considered by the relevant authorities.

In January 2004 we became a 20% owner of the North United Power
Corporation, which has an attributable generating capacity of 4,310MW,
all in Inner Mongolia. Another 920MW of attributable capacity is being
planned for 2004. North United Power Corporation is now a partnership
between Inner Mongolia Electric Co. and two other major power
companies China Huaneng Group and Shenhua Group. Inner Mongolia
has substantial coal deposits making it an ideal location for power
generation, both for the requirements in the autonomous region, and to
supply electricity to North and Northeast China through the grid.

In coming years North United Power will continue to build additional
capacity with the aim of becoming one of the largest power generation

companies in mainland China.
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Mainland China is short of power both today and in the long run as
prosperity will continue to increase, so CITIC Pacific is confident that
there will be opportunities to expand our power generation business in

the coming years.

Communications

In November CITIC Pacific established a 20-year exclusive cooperative
relationship with the All-China Sports Federation and the Chinese
Olympic Committee to develop, operate and maintain an interactive
platform for broadband digital sports using the brand Chinese Interactive
Sports. Three websites are in operation: sport.org.cn providing accurate
and authoritative sports reports; olympic.cn the official site of the Chinese
Olympic Committee presented in English and Chinese, and sport.cn which
integrates four existing sites: China Sports on-line, China E-Sports, China
Sports Lottery and On-line Sports Goods. The China Sports Federation
lists 99 ‘official’ sports, and interest in them is intense throughout
mainland China, so the opportunities presented to CITIC Pacific

through these ventures are immense.

Dﬁring 2003, steps have been taken to develop data and e-commerce
platforms, and a profitable on-line internet game has been marketed
throughout mainland China which attracted over 10 million subscribers,
and on occasions up to 210,000 simultaneous players. Having proved the

operational aspects of the system, more products will be launched in 2004.

CITIC 1616’s profit was reduced in 2003 as margins came under pressure,
but margins have now stabilised, and the advantage of being Asia’s largest

IDD wholesaler will be seen in the coming years.

Steel

Over the last 10 years, CITIC Pacific has developed a very successful
business manufacturing steel for specialised uses such as ball bearings,
gears and automobile springs. In 2003, a record 1.7 million tonnes was
produced, of which 145,000 tonnes was exported. Jiangyin Xing Cheng
has the highest production of bearing steel in mainland China. In
partnership with Sumitomo Metals, a one million tonne expansion will

begin shortly. Building on this experience, in February 2004 CITIC Pacific

entered into an agreement to purchase 95% of the Daye Special Stee] Mill
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at Huangshi, Hubei Province which in 2003 manufactured 1.3 million
tonnes of specialty steel, and plans 2 million tonnes in 2004. In January
2004 CITIC Pacific increased its ownership in its existing Jiangyin Special
Steel Plant to 79% by purchasing shares from our partner. We plan to
reorganise and expand our enlarged steel interests and become the market

leader in specialty steel in mainland China.

Property

The 1st phase of the New Westgate Garden residential development in
Shanghai is targeting for pre-sale in 2004, and completion 2005/2006.

We also own a parcel of land with a site area of about 4.7million sq. feet
near the Shanghai Pudong airport for future development for logistics
purposes. Our investment properties of CITIC Square and Royal Pavilion
are doing well. A number of other development opportunities in different
locations are under negotiation, and we are confident of the continued
opportunities that the growth of the Chinese economy will present in the

property sector.

Aviation

Both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair had a difficult time in the first half of
2003, but by early 2004 record numbers of passengers were being carried.
Cathay Pacific and Dragonair’s success depends on a healthy economy in
China delivering more passengers from the mainland China, and in this
expanding market both airlines should do well. CITIC Pacific’s joint
venture with Air China Cargo officially began operation in January 2004,
and we are confident that it will benefit from the increasing economic

activities in mainland China.

Environmental

A major breakthrough was made in extending our waste treatment
businesses in Hong Kong to Shanghai when the Shanghai government
awarded our joint venture the contract to design, construct, operate and
maintain the Phase 4 of Laogang Municipal Waste Landfill. There should
be many more such opportunities in the future as Chinese cities focus on

environmental issues.
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Marketing and Distribution

Dah Chong Hong and Sims Trading had good results even though the
business in Hong Kong was disappointing, this was more than offset by
the performance in other parts of mainland China. Throughout mainland
China, both pcH and Sims will continue their systematic expansion
building markets and sales networks and modernising operating facilities

while building sophisticated control systems alongside.

Capital Markets
CITIC Capital Markets had an exceptional and profitable year in its first
full year of operation, and has established a fine reputation in asset

management and investment banking in a very short time.

Our Future

CITIC Pacific is taking new opportunities to expand through mainland
China where we expect continued economic growth to create more
opportunities in the future. CITIC Pacific’s overriding objective is to
increase shareholder value, and I am confident that the new projects, in
combination with the stable and profitable current businesses, will do so.
We will remain focused mainly in areas of greatest expertise — power
generation, communications, special steel manufacturing, aviation,

property and trading.

CITIC Pacific is financially robust with low leverage and ample cash and
unused financial facilities, giving sufficient resources to execute our

expansion plans.

On behalf of all the directors, I would like to thank our bankers and
investors for their continued support; and to thank the staff of CITIC
Pacific and its subsidiaries and associates who have worked so hard in the
last year. Their commitment to CITIC Pacific and its future is the basis of

our success.

Larry Yung Chi Kin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 March 2004
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Infrastructure
45 Power
KEBESETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
AR E Contribution 229 245
B EFI TS F Proportion of total contribution 9% 5%
FEE Net assets 1,508 1,449
N Capital expenditure 144 120

3 E & o B 4 #% B Power Stations in Mainland China

N
B Jilin & f\/
: 60% / 200MW -
e ~
L ) )
1 HHMSEH o e M Hohhot
North United Power 35% / 400M\<V/
20% /4,310MW 5 \/\\/')-}ﬁ//ﬁ Weihai
¥t Shouguang ® '/ 499 / 36MW
49% / 24MW ~
o FH Kaifen$
M Zhengzhou e 50% / 125MW
50% / 600MW
65% / 1,400MW
* 73% / 1,200MW
% PEREMRE CITIC Pacific Ownership
),J /\‘ MW E#E R Capacity
5_' X / * FEERF Under Construction
/! -

FERENENEEXOEBSETHEERD  CITIC Pacific’s team of power professionals are actively involved in every
HEHELSE - ESRREHGEEEERMYA  aspect of power stations, from identifying new investment opportunities,
EIRLEELEEHER - supervising the construction to actively managing the operation of

he plants.
EREABROERIGRRANSE 0 L

CET-ZFRERLA—FHE20% In 2003, increased demand for electricity and the operation of newly
E168.47TETRK - MHBR_TET_#FH completed units contributed to an increase of 20% in total electricity
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generated, which reached 16,847 million kwh. However, profits were lower
than that of 2002 primarily because during its first year of operation, the
tariff at Jilin plant was low, resulting in a loss. The timing of dividend

payments from some plants, in particular Ligang, is also a factor.

TS HHE SR Electricity and heat generated by all power plants

RIgETE %= E Clectricity Generated 28 Heat Generated
B EEY (JER)
Installed j-2ld =2l
Capacity 2003 2002 change 2003 2002 | change
Type (MW) (M Kwh) (M Kwh) % (KGJ) (KGJ) %
B YN
Ligang Coal fired 1,400 8,944 8,505 5 - - -
S R
Kaifeng Coal fired 125 696 679 3 - - -
QBW ﬁﬁ# av%
Zhengzhou Co-generation 600 3,232 3,085 5 5,944 5,380 10
AEEE BEBE
Hohhot Co-generation 400 2,638 1,492 77 883 -
F RBHME
Jilin Co-generation 200 965 . . 243
EO& MEHE .
Weinhai Co-generation 36 174 85 105 2,575 2,380 8
B HERY 14588 1.25 &R
Shouguang Co-generation 24 201 200 0.5 | 1.4m tonnes | 1.2m fonnes 17
T ARRE not in operation
TEREBHNEREERTERERSS HEF MW
CITIC Pacific’s Total and 12 000
Attributable Installed Capacity T
10,000 -
8,000 -
6,000_
4,000_
2.000_ IR
b !
o oL Fgﬂmmmmﬁ nfiin
94 98 99 01 02 03 04 05 06

T BEE T 2 Total Installed Capacity

BB EMEE Planned Total Installed Capacity

COEZEBRER Attributable Capacity
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Power generation is an important area of expansion for CITIC Pacific,
based on years of experience, expertise and knowledge of the Chinese
power industry. As the Chinese economy develops and peoples’ standard
of living rises, electricity demand and consumption will continue to grow.
Currently, mainland China’s economic growth rate is among one of the
highest in the world, yet its per capita installed capacity and electricity
consumption per capita is low. The ongoing reform in the power industry
in mainland China has presented many attractive opportunities for
independent power producers such as CITIC Pacific and significant

progress has been made in expanding our power portfolio.

In May 2003, the State Council approved the 3rd phase of the Ligang
power station, now one of the most efficient in China. Ligang is located
in Jiangsu Province, one of the fastest growing provinces in mainland
China where consumption of electricity grew by 21% compared with
2002. Construction of Ligang 3rd phase, which consists of two 600MW
units, is currently underway, and commercial operation is expected in
2006. An RMB3.8 billion 20-year project finance loan has been arranged
for this 3rd phase, which represents 75% of the total investment. Phase 4
of another two 600MW units is scheduled for completion in 2007.
Equipment has been ordered for both phases. In October, CITIC Pacific
reached an agreement with the CITIC Group in Beijing to acquire an
additional 9% stake in Ligang Power Station, increasing its holding in
Ligang Phase I and II to 65% and 73% in Phase IIl and IV.

The expansion of the Zhengzhou plant, a 3rd phase 400MW (2x200MW),
was also approved in 2003. Construction is progressing as planned and

commissioning is expected in 2006.
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In January 2004, CITIC Pacific, together with Inner Mongolia Power
Investment Corporation, China Huaneng Group and Beijing Guohua
Power of the Shenhua Group, formed North United Power Corporation,
to jointly develop the power generation business in Inner Mongolia. The
joint venture aims to utilise the abundance of coal in this autonomous
region to build North United Power into one of the most efficient and first
rate power companies in mainland China, and to supply electricity to
Inner Mongolia and through the grid to Beijing, North and Northeast
China. North United Power’s operating power plants currently have
attributable installed capacity of 4,310MW. An additional attributable
capacity of 920MW is expected to become operational in 2004. The
Company has plans to expand its power production in Inner Mongolia in
the future. The joint venture’s registered capital is RMB10 billion. CITIC
Pacific, a 20% partner in North United Power, will contribute cash and a
20% holding in Hohhot power plant. North United Power officially began

operation in January 2004.

In November 2003, CITIC Pacific entered into a joint venture agreement
with Wuxi Power to build a 700MW pumped storage hydraulic power
plant in Ma Shan, Wuxi City in Jiangsu Province. Application for this
project is being reviewed by the relevant authorities. Currently there exists
a huge difference between electricity demand for the peak and non-peak
time in Jiangsu Province. A pumped storage power station will capture
this demand difference as it uses off-peak electricity to provide peak
power. Ma Shan is next to Tai Lake, which will provide the water supply

necessary for such a power plant.

As all of our power plants are coal fired, ensuﬁng sufficient supply of
coal, managing coal costs and transporting coal efficiently is of great
importance and our power team is skilled at this task. CITIC Pacific is
actively studying the possibility of building power stations next to existing

large coalmines in provinces with abundant coal supplies.




EEXE

Communications

2 Location #AHE Ownership
PIEER1616 CITIC Telecom 1616 B Hong Kong 100%
CPCNet CPCNet BB Hong Kong 100%
PiEER CITIC Guoan hid Beijing 50%
BRPIERR CTM (Macau Telecom) SBPY Macau 20%
KEEGETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
BEH Turnover 1,590 2,887
wHMEB Contribution 234 553
oy F =y el Proportion of total contribution 9% 12%
FEE Net assets 2,384 2,260
NS Capital expenditure 185 216
BETHEHE E-Commerce
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The focus of CITIC Pacific’s communications business is on providing
value-added services. Working through partners and group entities, a
number of e-commerce initiatives and products were launched. In
November 2003, CITIC Pacific, together with the All-China Sports
Federation and the Chinese Olympic Committee, formed a 20-year
exclusive alliance to promote sports and sports related commerce, in
particular the 2008 Olympics. On the related ‘China Interactive Sports’
platform, leveraging on advanced, integrated 1T technologies, three
flagship websites - Olympic.cn, Sport.org.cn and Sports.cn - were built.
The All-China Sports Federation lists 99 official sports and there is intense
interest in them throughout mainland China, which presents tremendous

opportunities for CITIC Pacific.

CITIC Pacific is also running one of the largest game hosting platforms
in China. Currently, a profitable internet game ‘Legend of Mir 3’ has been
marketed throughout mainland China that attracted over 10 million
subscribers with an average of approximately 200,000 concurrent users.
CITIC Pacific plans to work closely with game developers throughout

the world to continue to source games that can be catered to the

Chinese market.
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CITIC Telecom 1616

CITIC Telecom 1616 (www.citic1616.com) is a leader in Asia’s IDD
wholesale market, serving more than 150 international telecom and
mobile carriers in over 80 countries. Approximately 55% of Hong Kong’s
total monthly 1DD traffic is now handled by 1616, and about 50% of the
calls are mainland China traffic where 1616s primary customers are
China Unicom and China Mobile.

In 2003, total traffic volume grew 64% from 2002. However, margins were
lower, partially affected by saRrs as higher margin mobile traffic was
substituted by lower margin fixed line calls, which resulted in decreased
profitability. 1616 is seeking ways to continue to expand its customer base

particularly serving destinations where margins are better.

FEEZRIGI6BAMEER
CITIC Telecom 1616 Traffic Volume Growth
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CPCNet
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CPCNet

With the granting of a Fixed Carrier License by the Hong Kong
telecommunications authority in 2003, cpcNet Hong Kong
(www.cpcnet-hk.com) has transformed from an Internet services

provider to a telecommunications carrier.

Through a significantly strengthened network and enhanced alliances and
partnerships, cPCNet is able to offer world-class communications services,
from traditional Internet connectivity to private networks based on the
latest technologies, to regional small and medium enterprises and global

multinational corporations.

With “TrueConnect’, the first Multiprotocol Label Switching based
Internet Protocol Virtual Private Network built in Greater China coupled
with customer service excellence, cPcNet has established itself firmly

as a key new generation carrier in Greater China and Asia. In 2003, the
customer base of ‘TrueConnect’ increased by more than 100% to over 700
connections. It has 13 self-owned Point of Presence (POPs) connecting

to over 40 cities in Greater China with service coverage spanning Asia,

usa and Europe.

CITIC Guoan

CITIC Guoan’s primary business is its 62% interest in CITIC Guoan
Information Industry Co., Ltd. (‘Guoan Informatior’), a Shenzhen

Stock Exchange listed company whose primary business is operating cable
TV networks in mainland China. At the end of 2003, Guoan Information
had approximately 4 million subscribers in 17 cities in mainland China.
In addition to its cATV networks, Guoan Information has interests in
system integration, software development, hotel management and
property development. CITIC Guoan also owns the CITIC Building in
Beijing, which had 95% occupancy at the end of 2003.

CTM

20% owned by CITIC Pacific since 1991, Companhia de Telecomunicacoes
de Macau s.A.R.L. {‘CTM’) (www.ctm.net) is the provider of choice of
fixed line, mobile telephone and internet access services to the people

of Macau SAR. In 2003, cTM’s profit rose 10% to HK$410 million.

The customer base for mobile decreased 2% due to competition, and

internet customer base increased 27%.
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bk Headquarters A% Ownership
B &% Cathay Pacific Hong Kong 25.7%
BREMZE BE Dragonair Hong Kong 28.5%
ERTER BE HK Air Cargo Terminals Hong Kong 10%
FTERREE b= Alr China Cargo Beijing 25%
S EETE in HKS miflion 2003 2002
BERE Cathay Pacific 330 1,023
BEME Dragonair 20 154
ERTBEERY HACTL 71 86
F BEE Air China Cargo CEEHE— FEEY operation began in January 2004
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Net assets 12,880 13,305

FEE

B % L %= Cathay Pacific

Monthly Cargo Carried

1.2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1011 12

A17 month

_

BEEAH FEEE
Monthly Passengers Carried
1,200 90
1,000 @
=Ry, £ 80
= ‘ 8
(o)
i 800 S
= E 70
= 600 =
= =
=60
400
200 50
i 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
A1 month
|
. 2003 B 2003
32002 - [J2002
14




B 2R L 2% (www.cathaypacific.com) 2 — [
VEREFENAEFERGEMZAF > KT
RBAEZRS7EEMN - PEFEMRIIE
BABRMZEZ EZRBRRLE  BREZA
HEHER BHRAMNEZEESZRAEREE
SHERMEVSEERTHE -

CEZ=ZFBEAMETH ARG ADN
W _EEREANBAKTR  EREE£E
BT TREEI% BT E7%E B
BT=Fr - 2FEARFARE—TENK
TH18% - REBWENTHRAMESHE
72% : WA TH5% - ZEEEAIHEE
874,724 » M- ZF _HF - 3% HEE
W BB FEM TR FRGUEHE
ZEEZFETREFRKAUE > BRFTE
WE-ARGXEEART® -

BHZRA BEHMEEIIFEELENRE
TE > BRi—BRHR=0 - HEMEC B
—RMBHAERLE YA FFRELER
B ABRHMEMR _ZZNELA — 0B
HFHREMRDNE R -

HEREATZE (www.dragonair.com) B EH R
TN /A8 B A RIS > Bh A1
BEMRAEPRAERT - REET—HE
HRMRRESS > MAERTOAZEEY
ATFEEZNENABE > FAHZARRRERE
R HF BRFREBMEKRRZ §E
% —FE=ZGRESEESER T
ETRELIINEEH L+ ABERTATET
BRI T ES7RERE LT T &L - 1
“EFZFFE ARAPEREZT A
HMRBENBE  EMEEEZY BFE
LHETER32%  MFEEMER - $5FER
B REKBEREE AR EEEZEE
BEURO LA - _EREF2ELEAT AR
BEZEBEAR > THIL%  FRREREE
IR T BB.6% o

Cathay Pacific (www.cathaypacific.com) is an international passenger
and freight carrier based in Hong Kong serving 87 destinations around
the world. CITIC Pacific is the second largest shareholder and, through
participation on the board, the executive and other committees, has been
actively involved in its management since it first became a shareholder

in 1991.

In 2003, Cathay Pacific’s revenue was severely affected by the outbreak

of saRs, which reduced passenger numbers dramatically in the second
quarter. 2003 revenue declined 11% compared with 2002. Profits fell 67%
to HK$1.3 billion. Total revenue passenger carried decreased by 18% to
10 million, Passenger load factor decreased 6% points to 72%. Yield fell by
5%. Cargo tonnage carried set a record of 874,724 tonnes, 3% higher than
that of 2002, but yield fell marginally. A rapid improvement in the second
half of 2003 occurred after the SARS outbreak was contained, and in

January 2004 a record number of passengers per day were carried.

In December, Cathay Pacific renewed its service to Beijing after a 13-year
absence, with three roundtrips a week. It has applied to increase its
frequency to Beijing to twice daily, and to fly to Shanghai and Xiamen.
On 1 July 2004 Cathay Pacific will begin a non-stop flight between

Hong Kong and New York.

Dragonair (www.dragonair.com) operates passenger services to 28
destinations in Asia, of which 20 are to mainland Chinese cities. It began
its service to Bangkok in November 2003, and flights to Tokyo are also
expected in April 2004. Freighter services are offered to Shanghai,
Xiamen, Europe via the Middle East, and Osaka. In 2003, Dragonair saw
net revenue decrease 1.3% to HK$5,868 million and profit also decreased
87% to HK$71 million. In the 2nd quarter of 2003, sARS had a heavy
effect on Dragonair as Greater China was most affected by the virus.
Revenue passengers carried were down 32% in the 1st half of 2003. Since
then, due to the recovery in travel and tourism stimulated in particular
by tourists from mainland China, Dragonair’s passenger numbers came
back strongly. In 2003, a total of 3 million revenue passengers were
carried - a drop of 11%, while passenger yield decreased 8.6%.
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Cargo performed strongly with 269,980 tonnes of freight carried in 2003,
an increase of 40%, due to strong demand and an additional freighter,

which entered into service at the end of 2002.

HACTL (www.hactl.com) is the operator of the largest air cargo terminal in
the world. Total tonnage handled exceeded 2 million tonnes for the first
time in 2003, an increase of 5.6% compared with 2002 - a result of strong

growth in exports, in particular to Europe. SuperTerminal 1 has a

potential capacity of 3.5 million tonnes per annum, providing adequate
capacity to support a robust growth of air cargo in Hong Kong and

mainland China into the future.

Air China Cargo, a joint venture in which CITIC Pacific has a 25% interest,
began operation in January 2004. It handles all of Air China’s international
and domestic cargo and related ground service businesses. The company
has 5 freighter planes and the belly space in Air China’s 123 passenger
planes, to carry cargo. Currently it flies to 266 domestic and 56

international destinations.
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Civil Infrastructure

buk) Location A4 Ownership
HRBEEE B Eastern Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong
—~REE - Road 71%
e - Rail 0%
AR AR E B Western Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong 35%
MERFEIREIEE B Four waste treatment facilities Hong Kong 20% - 50%
ERELISME 8 Laogang Phase 4 Landfill Shanghai 30%
HEREELE in HKS million 2003 2002
Pt UN=1:1) Contribution 635 1,238
1648 5% T F B L 51 Proportion of total contribution 24% 25%
FEE Net assets 2,113 7,923
BARBY Capital expenditure 5 156

& # BB E Tunnels in Hong Kong
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— T
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{(www.easternharbourtunnel.com.hk) =&
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Average daily traffic at Eastern Harbour Tunnel (‘EHT’)
(www.easternharbourtunnel.com.hk) decreased 3% in 2003 to 71,284
vehicles due primarily to a drop in traffic in the second quarter when
SARS was at its peak, after which traffic has recovered. CITIC Pacific is
a controlling shareholder in the road with a 71% interest. Our
shareholding in the rail tunnel is 50%. EHT is entitled to a toll increase

according to the principles established by an independent arbitrator
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in March 1997, but as an application for increase from 1 January 2004 was
rejected by the Hong Kong Government, another arbitration has been set
for September 2004.

CITIC Pacific has a 35% interest in a 30-year franchise that operates the
Western Harbour Tunnel (‘wHT’) (www.westernharbourtunnel.com),

a key section of the Route 3 highway which links Hong Kong Island,
mainland China and Chek Lap Kok Airport. Daily average traffic for 2003
dropped by 7% compared with 2002 to 37,261 vehicles due to the effect of
SARS. WHT's traffic growth is limited by the delay in the completion of
access roads, particularly the Central-Wanchai bypass and competition

from the low tolls at the government-owned Cross Harbour Tunnel.

CITIC Pacific also has a 35% interest in the company that manages the
Cross Harbour Tunnel. The management contract has been extended
through 2006.
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Environmental

CITIC Pacific has interests in four waste treatment facilities in Hong Kong,
including a chemical waste treatment plant and two refuse transfer
stations, with a total of 4,000 tonnes of daily waste processing capacity,
and we also operate a landfill site with a 43 million cubic metre capacity.
In 2003, a total of 4 million tonnes of waste was processed. Profits

generated from these businesses totalled HK$278 million.

In December 2003, a joint venture formed by CITIC Pacific, Onyx Asia and
Shanghai Chengtou Environment Industry Development Co., Ltd. was
awarded a contract for Phase 4 of Laogang Municipal Waste Landfill in
Shanghai. The jv will be responsible for the design, construction and
operation of this Phase 4 landfill for a 20-year period. Total investment of
the project is approximately RMB900 million. CITIC Pacific is a long-term
partner of Onyx, a wholly owned subsidiary of Veolia Environment,

having worked on Hong Kong environmental projects for over 10 years.
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Marketing and Distribution

ekl Location A% Ownership
KETT BE Dah Chong Hong Mong Kong 100%
HE HE Sims Trading Hong Kong 100%
Y EETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
BERE Turnover 12,136 11,212
wm A ER Contribution 264 227
{48 FI BB L B Proportion of total contribution 10% 5%
FEE Net assets 3,234 2,871
ERME Capital expenditure 211 272

KB 7 (www.dch.com.hk) LA 5 552 »
HEMEBRHEREE  HEFBEESH
PEERFEARE  RREEERAR - HiNK
EMERBRER -

Dah Chong Hong (www.dch.com.hk) is a major distributor of motor

vehicles and consumer and food commodity products with substantial

operations in Hong Kong and mainland China, and businesses in Japan,

Singapore and Canada.

DCH Motor

KEATRE

WEESETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
- Turnover 7,083 6,219
= E B Contribution 188 196

RETREERKWERESHEZ - - &
CEEZFEEETHEAEEL26% c K5

In Hong Kong, bcH Motor is one of the largest distributors of motor

vehicles with a 26% market share in 2003. It distributes a wide range

TFHRAEMRERES of vehicles:
EHEE Units sold

ELERY i Type Brands 2003 2002
FLRE B B - B Passenger cars Acura, Audi, Bentley, Honda,

XE-BHE-BL Nissan, Volkswagen 4,695 7,184
HE AE - A+$ - ER - Commercial vehicles  DAF, [suzu, MAN,

UDARESH UD Nissan Diesel 2,310 2,489
20
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DCH Venhicle Sales in Hong Kong
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TEF=R RBRETREDBE A
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& Passenger

In 2003, vehicles sales in the territory dropped 24%, negatively impacted
by the increase in Vehicle First Registration Tax (ERT), the outbreak of
SARS, and the weakening of US dollar against the Yen and Euro. Total
vehicles sold by pcH in Hong Kong decreased 28% compared with 2002
of which its mass volume passenger cars (small-to-medium size and MPV
models) had a bigger drop, as those market segments shrunk over 30%.
However, bCH expanded its market share of truck and coach sales to 58%,
maintaining its leading position in that market. bcH also provides an
extensive range of motor related services such as after sales service and
inspection, parts retail and distribution, leasing and fleet management,
and aviation ground supporting services. DCH Motor Service Centre in

Kowloon Bay is the largest one in Hong Kong.
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fEREEAEST > KETEBHEAMEERH  In other cities in mainland China, pcH distributes both imported and
SrEED REERE - BEBRARNE > FB domestically manufactured vehicles through local partners where, unlike
FREREFREBXEERE - ®ZFF=  Hong Kong, distributorships are not exclusive. In 2003, DcH supplied a
0 REATHE S EARESEE,689% - total of 9,689 vehicles to mainland China while its local partners

Besh > M S Ve L IRR BFEHE 74,4145 - distributed an additional 4,414 units. DCH’s commercial vehicle sales were
HREEETEERA REFRYE > KB a particular feature with an increase of 87% from 2002 due to robust
BREME AL HEE - $HEBB_FE " demand for construction vehicles. DCH’s passenger car sales, however,
FEF87% - MHME  EHRMEFEFHEY  declined 59% primarily due to shifting of interest to high-end imports
EEREO R REERR BT HE and increasing domestic supplies of mass-market models.

AEHEM KETEIBENHERRES

THT59% -
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£ HEE Units sold

REEB RE(KEBITESEBHE) Type Brands (DCH & partners) 2003 2002
TEKE AQD: B BF - BA - Passenger cars Imports: Audi, Bentley, GM, Honda,
XB-BE. W &% AR Nissan, Renault, Volkswagen 2,983 7,919
AHEE  EMNAR - Domestic: Guangzhou Honda,
BEBHEE REBE Hainan Mazda, Dongfeng Nissan 3,188 1,515
HH  AQ0: A+ UDKESH Commercial vehicles imports: Isuzu, UD Nissan Diesel 6,586 3,556
THEE B RRBEEK Domestic: Qingling, DND 1,346 750

BWAENGBFEERE > RETEPHN
THEHERREABEEELR T =
W EhREHE  SRRERTHGE
R—BHERE - RS TIHESHS 0 R
BHREREETO -

“EEZE FRRETSREEHEBENE
AT ERE - WAFER T 34% - HPEERS
96% o BENMGF - “TEENE > PEIRENE
REHEH BRI T HE  EPHEETSEE
HAtA20% - EERERETERARTRTES
RAEBYENTHBRATRANEREE -
RETHEREFAGHME LTS  BE
— AN B EE R THAS - M
SNEFFHTF > PRETE [EREEERR
R R ER AR BTt R P B
RS E AR > TN BN RSB EREH -

Working with local partners, DCH now has over 14 outlets including
integrated sales, service and spare parts centres, regional parts distribution

centres, and traditional service centres covering more than 13 cities.

In 2003, the Chinese auto market expanded and 4.6 million units were sold,

a growth of 34% from 2002, and out of which 96% was domestically
manufactured. According to industry estimates, the sales volume of PRC
motor market for 2004 could approach 5 million units, in particular the
passenger car market is projected to grow further by 20%. This presents
tremendous opportunities for distributors such as DCH, which has the
industry and local knowledge as well as the experience and expertise

in distributing motor vehicles. DcH will continue to systematically develop
the mainland China market with the aim to build up a balanced portfolio
of both imported and domestic brands. The Closer Economic Partnership
Arrangement (‘CEPA’) between Hong Kong and the Central Government will
enable DCH to expand the mainland China network quicker than foreign

competitors, and to establish greater direct control over its operations.

RETHEIHREAE 2SS
DCH Vehicle Sales to Mainland China
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REUSIZHE Non-Motor Trading

VBB B ELTE in HK$ million 2003 2002
B Turnover 5,053 . 4,993
A E B Contribution 76 31
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DCH Trading: DcH distributes consumer and commodity food products
including provisions, rice and cereal, edible oils, Chinese foodstuffs and
meat, cosmetics, building materials, and home electric appliances, etc., and
is involved in E&M engineering projects and maintenance services. BCH
has an extensive global sourcing network, and through its efficient logistics
support and nationwide distribution network, enables it to cater a variety

of products to its customers. Despite SARS, DCH was able to sustain its

sales and profit through a better mix of products (e.g. basic food necessity

with widened product variety and price range) and diversified sales
channels (e.g. the self-managed FoodMarts frozen food specialty chain
leveraged on people’s dine-in tendency during sARs period and attained
satisfactory results). In mainland China, the nationwide distribution
network covers over 40 major cities. DCH’s trading business plan is to
enhance its existing sourcing network, continue to extend product variety
to suit the needs of different market segments, and to transform itself from
the role of middleman to a fully integrated, one-stop supply chain service
provider with primary development focus on mainland China.

Sims Trading: Sims Trading (www.simshk.com) specialises in the
distribution of branded food, beverage, household and healthcare
products in Hong Kong, Macau, and mainland China for the retail and
catering markets. The company’s brands include Pocari Sweat, Ovaltine,
Kikkoman, Hunt, Barilla, Paul’s, Heinz and Almond Roca for the Hong
Kong Market, and Ferrero, Martell, Campbell’s, MeadJohnson and
Ovaltine for the mainland China market. Sims is extensively involved

in providing third party logistics services to major companies such as
Heineken, Gillette, Pizza Hut and Unza Cathay.
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Property

IS EE
EAE (FFHR)
Approximate GFA
5 Type Ownership ('000 sq. ft.)
BERY%E Properties in Hong Kong
REYZ Investment Properties
PEXE BES CITIC Tower Commercial 40% 562
X =9 R Festival Walk Commercial 50% 1,200
RETHETL BE DCH Commercial Centre Commercial 100% 389
EZfmpi I% Wyler Centre Industrial 100% 393
HEHAL I% Broadway Centre Industrial 100% 342
WHRITERL I Yee Lim Industrial Centre Industrial 100% 320
Hit &8 Others Various 100% 549
BREIFE Development Properties
BRE FEE Discovery Bay Residential township 50% 3,000
Hig £ Others Residential 100% 1,100
LR Properties in Shanghai
REy* Investment Properties
REREES EHE CITIC Square Commercial 80% 1,137
B2LNE = Royal Pavilion Residential 100% 374
RIREE Development Properties
ZAEPIF £E New Westgate Garden Residential 100% 3,000
BHREIEE MREELRR Near Pudong Airport Logistic Development 100% 4,740
(MR ETE site area)
LB BETHE in HKS mition 2003 2002
ERE Turnover 401 460
AR Contribution 508 894
{GERTE B LB Proportion of total contribution 19% 19%
FEE Net assets 18,986 18,708
BEARRZ Capital expenditure 104 2,893

FERENEEEREMETERLE -
Hep AR EE R R AREYEREEE
B o AN FHE L OHYE LKL
WEEAHE  HYeRERONRETRE
ERUERRANYEERNGMED -

CITIC Pacific’s major property investments are located in Hong Kong

and Shanghai. They consist of large-scale residential and commercial

investment properties and development projects. The Company’s

experienced property team is actively involved in every aspect of a project,

from identifying investment opportunities and managing the construction

of the property to managing the completed development.
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In Hong Kong, CITIC Pacific has a land bank of about 4.1 million sq. ft.
gross floor area available for development, of which about 3 million sq. ft.

is in Discovery Bay.

Discovery Bay, 50% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a large residential
development jointly developed with HKR International Ltd. Since its
commencement in 1973, Discovery Bay has grown from a holiday resort
to a fully integrated, self-contained suburban multinational residential
community of both locals and expatriates. Its planning is based on the
concept of a private car free, green town development with a
comprehensive range of educational, community and social facilities to
serve the Discovery Bay population. Situated on the Northeastern shore
of Lantau Island, Discovery Bay is endowed with ample open space,
recreational and leisure facilities including a private beach, a central park,

scenic promenade, golf courses and a marina.

The current Yi Pak Bay development is located in the northern part of
Discovery Bay with a total gross floor area of approximately 2.34 million
sq. ft., of which 0.98 million sq. ft. has been developed as Siena One
(Phase 11) and Siena Two (Phase 12). Siena One, with a gross floor area
of 0.34 million sq. ft., has all been sold. Siena Two, with a gross floor
area of 0.64 million sq. ft., was about 52% sold at the end of 2003.

The superstructure works for Phase 13, which has a gross floor area of

0.53 million sq. ft., will commence in the second quarter of 2004.

In addition, another 1.67 million sq. ft. gross floor area is available for

further residential development at Discovery Bay.

CITIC Tower, 40% owned by CITIC Pacific, is our headquarters and a
landmark on the Hong Kong waterfront comprising 562,000 sq. ft. of
offices, retail shops and restaurants, and linked to the Admiralty MTR
station with a footbridge. The building is currently 94% occupied. Due

to over supply of office space, rentals were soft in 2003.

Festival Walk, a 1.2 million sq. ft. of shopping and office complex, is 50%
owned by CITIC Pacific. Jointly developed with Swire Group, it is located at
the interchange of the Kowloon Canton Railway and Mass Transit Railway
in Kowloon Tong. Completed in 1998, Festival Walk is one of the most
successful shopping centres in Hong Kong where vacancies are rare and

rentals are firm.
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In Shanghai, CITIC Pacific has been active in acquiring land. Phase I of
New Westgate Garden residential project is progressing well and pre-sale
is scheduled for the second half of 2004. This development, located in
Huangpu District, is adjacent to Xizang Nanlu and Jianguo Donglu, within
walking distance from a future subway station of the new Metro Line 8.
New Westgate Garden will comprise residential towers, a multi-storey
commercial complex with retail shops and a basement carpark, with a

gross floor area of approximately 3 million sq. ft.

CITIC Square, 80% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a Grade A office tower in
Nanjing Xi Lu, Shanghai. Its rental continues to do well with occupancy
of 99%. Royal Pavilion, 100% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a luxury service
apartment, with occupancy of 87%, and its rental income is stable.

CITIC Pacific also owns a site of about 4.74 million sq. ft. near Shanghai
Pudong Airport for accommodating future logistic development.
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Industrial Manufacturing

LB BB T E in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
ERE Turnover 4,842 3,581
gl iy Contribution 178 126
{4835 P B BALL Proportion of total contribution 7% 3%
FEE Net assets 1,494 1,212
EAREE Capital expenditure 545 280
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In January 2004, CITIC Pacific entered into agreements to increase its
shareholding in Jiangyin Special Steel by purchasing an additional 24%
from its joint venture partner. Subject to completion, CITIC Pacific’s
shareholding in Jiangyin Special Steel will be increased to 79%. Jiangyin
Special Steel produces high-grade steel used in bearings and gears using
high quality production lines. In 2003, total production was 1.7 million
tonnes, an 11% increase from 2002. Approximately 9% of the output was

exported to South Korea and Southeast Asian countries.

In February 2004, CITIC Pacific entered into an agreement to purchase a

95% interest in Daye Steel, which is located in Huangshi, Hubei Province,
which in 2003 produced 1.3 million tonnes of specialty steel for uses such
as bearings, gears and steel pipes. The acquisition will make CITIC Pacific

one of the market leaders in specialty steel production in mainland China.

Wuxi Huada Motors Company produces low noise, low vibration and
high torque electrical motors for the domestic and European markets.
In 2003, production was 2.1 million KW, an increase of 38% from 2002.

At 2 %

Other Businesses

KEEEETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002

B Turnover 227 2,439

B EE Contribution 208 236

GEAT BB LB Proportion of total contribution 6% 5%

FEE Net assets 1,161 951

- NSE Capital expenditure 187 704
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Other Businesses continued
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Cimc Capital Markets

50% owned by CITIC Pacific, CITIC Capital Markets Holdings
{www.citiccapital.com) focuses on cross-border China-related investment
banking services, including corporate finance and advisory, debt capital
markets, asset management and brokerage. In 2003, the first full year of
its official operation, cCMH achieved excellent results in terms of both

performance and profitability.

CCMH’s investment banking business gained market recognition through
some well structured and executed deals in 2003 such as the US$180
million convertible bond offering for CITIC International Financial
Holdings and the HK$908 million privatisation of Pacific Concord
Holdings. The asset management business launched four new funds in the
past year and also provided discretionary investment services, all of which
achieved satisfactory performance. In particular the two flagship funds
(Global Macro Fund and China Plus Fund) have recorded excellent
investment returns. On the brokerage front, significant inroads have been
made during the year in expanding coverage both for institutional and ’
retail clients, capitalising upon the investment sentiment especially in the
second half. Additional market share, enhanced industry ranking and

improved profitability have been achieved as a result.

Developing Businesses

In January 2003, CITIC Pacific formed a 50/50 joint venture with
Adaltis-Picchio of Canada to engage in research and manufacture of
various diagnostic test kits such as those for saRrs, Aids and Hepatitis
among others. A manufacturing plant is being built in Shanghai and

completion is expected in late 2004.

The joint venture Shanghai CP Guojian Pharmaceutical continues its
research into various medicines including the current clinical trial of new
drugs. A manufacturing plant is being constructed with completion in the
third quarter of 2004.

CITIC Pacific’s joint venture with Fudan University continues to develop
distance learning in mainland China. At the end of 2003, approximately
5,800 students were enrolled studying about 21 courses. In addition,

training programs to corporations are also offered.
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Financial Review
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of the Consolidated Financial Results for 2003

Introduction

CITIC Pacific’s 2003 Annual Report includes a letter from the Chairman
to shareholders, the annual accounts and other information required by
accounting standards, legislation, and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
This Financial Review is designed to assist the reader in understanding
the statutory information by discussing the contribution of each business

segment, and the financial position of the company as a whole.

Profit Attributable to Shareholders
The net profit attributable to shareholders for 2003 was HK$1,305 million,
a decrease of 66% compared with HK$3,875 million achieved in 2002. The

reasons for the decrease in profit are described below.
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Business Segment Contribution
The contribution made by major business units in 2003, and compared
with 2002, were:

P II=1 Contribution

EEZET HK$ miflion 2003 2002 2003 - 2002

78 Power Generation 229 245 (16)
ERH Civil Infrastructure 635 1,238 {(603)
SR Communications 234 553 {319)
fnz=E Aviation 421 1,263 (842)
HERAH Marketing & Distribution 264 227 37

Y% Property 508 894 (386)
I¥BE Industrial Manufacturing 178 126 52

REYREF Investment Properties Revaluation (587) - (587)
ROBETEZBRERILE Compared with the contribution for 2002:

o WE  BATKEMURAEK G EHMEEE
ERRERAE - B3 ERaEE X
Brised o mm A ERE LR EWA R EF
ABRTE  EHE T FF =4 27 0 %5
RN —TTNFEGFRANR -
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Power Generation: the increased demand for electricity and the full
commercial production of the plant in Inner Mongolia resulted in
higher profit but this was offset by the pre-operating expenses in the
newly commissioned plants. The Ligang power plant is accountéd on a
dividends received basis so a portion of its good performance in 2003
will be recorded in 2004.

Civil Infrastructure: the decreased contribution was due to the sale of
bridges, tunnels and a road in Shanghai to the Shanghai Municipal
Government in the first half year. The operating profit of the Eastern
and Western Tunnels reduced due to the reduction in annual traffic

volume due to SARS.

Communications: CITIC Telecom 1616’ call volume increased but the
margin in 2003 were reduced most notably by the switch from mobile
to fixed line usage in the SARs period. CPCNet’s performance was
affected by investment in new products. Operating results at cT™ and
CITIC Guoan were better than 2002.

Aviation: a dramatic reduction in passenger traffic at both Cathay Pacific
and Dragonair while SARs was active caused losses in the first half of
2003 but in the second half traffic recovered rapidly.
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Marketing & Distribution: The passenger car market in Hong Kong
contracted due to saRrs and the increased First Registration Tax, but this
weakness was offset by the sales of commercial vehicles to other parts of
China and the Hong Kong Motor Service Centre’s catalytic converter
installation works. The other trading businesses of bcH and Sims made

significant improvements.

= Property: Compared with 2002, the sale of units at Discovéry Bay
reduced 70%, this in combination with related provisions, the cost of
financing unsold units and amortisation costs, resulted in a loss in the
area of property development. Rental income in Hong Kong decreased .
in some office and warehouse properties but was resilient at the Festival

Walk shopping centre and at the Shanghai properties.

L)

Industrial Manufacturing: the increased contribution was due to a 11%

increase in the volume of steel sold at higher prices per tonne than 2002.

©

Property Revaluation: Professionally qualified valuers - Knight Frank
and Tekko Building Co Ltd - assessed the value of our investment
properties as at 31 December 2003 and as a result HK$587 million was
charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

Further details of the performance of each business can be found in the

Business Review on pages 5 to 29.
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The annual accounts contains business segment information for turnover
(Note 2) and pre-tax profit (Note 3), and detail of segment assets and
liabilities from consolidated activities, jointly controlled entities and

associated companies (Note 25).

Geographical Distribution

The division of contribution and assets between Hong Kong, mainland
China and Overseas is shown below based on the market location of each
business. There was a substantial decline for the amount contributed by
the mainland China components following the disposal of the bridges and

tunnels in Shanghai in mid-year.

_ﬁ@ﬁ%
Geographical Distribution

—EEZET A+ RAFE
Year ended 31 December 2003

BFREB %

Contribution %*

—ER=F+-A=+—AKE
As at 31 December 2003

BEEEEE%
Assets at Book Value %

FRFRITTHIE Hong Kong SAR

T RERR - wBEREZEFER  DERFENEH
REZMEERZ EREEERERB I E -

MRXZH
ZERZASXHBEFOEATETTRE
ERNET  RARE_TEZEZ FHHES
BR_FZ_FHR - —TEX=ZFH_FTET
FZEEF W EKENRE -

7 # B Mainland China

185k Overseas

* For certain business, the total contribution is allocated to a geographic area based
on the proportion of the turnover of that geographic area to the corresponding
total turnover.

Interest Expense
The Group’s interest expense decreased from HK$490 million to HK$400
million because average borrowings in 2003 were lower than 2002. The

interest rate on the borrowings was little changed between 2003 and 2002.
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Group Liguidity and Capital Resources

General Policies

The Group’s policy is to maintain a high degree of financial control and
transparency. Financing and cash management activities are centralised
at head office level to enhance risk management, control and the best

utilisation of financial resources of the Group.

Funding sources are diversified through utilisation of both the banking
and capital market. Financings are arranged to match business
characteristics and cash flows. Limited or non-recourse project finance

is employed when it is available.

CITIC Pacific conducts business mainly in Hong Kong and mainland
China, therefore is subject to market risk in the foreign exchange rate of
HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. To minimise currency exposure,
non Hong Kong dollar assets are usually financed in the same currency as
the asset or cash flow from it, either by borrowing or using foreign
exchange contracts. Achieving this objective is not always possible due to
limitation in financial markets and regulatory constraints, particularly on
investment into mainland China as Renminbi is not a free convertible
currency and the on-shore forward market has not been developed. In
addition, ‘Registered Capital’, which is usually accounts for about 25% to
30% of total investment amount, is required to be paid in US Dollar or HK
Dollar. As a result, CITIC Pacific has an increasing exposure to the
Renminbi. As of 31 December 2003, around 21% of the Group’s assets

were based in mainland China.

In order to stabilise interest costs despite rate movements, a suitable
mixture of fixed rate / floating rate borrowings is determined after taking
into consideration of the general market trend, the Group’s cash flow
pattern and interest coverage ratio. In addition to raise fixed rate debts,
the Group actively employs interest rate swap transactions to manage

long term interest cost.

The Company only uses derivative transactions for interest rate and
currency hedging purposes, speculative trading is prohibited.
Counterparties’ credit risk are carefully reviewed. In general, the
Company only deals with financial institutions with single A or above
credit rating, and the counterparties’ lending exposure to the Group is

also an important consideration as a means to control credit risk.
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Cash Flow
By design, most of the Group’s debt is raised by the holding company, as

important measure as to the Company’s ability to service its debts.

such the amount of cash flow from each business to the Company is an

BEBZHRERE Cash Contribution by Business Segment

EBEEET HK$ miflion 2003 2002
BEXER Infrastructure ’

BE Power Generation 317 395
= Civil Infrastructure 283 2,323
8% Communications 232 101
A= Aviation 334 361
/3 Property 1,090 1,732
HERTHE Marketing & Distribution 123 334

o HEEBERE_TE=ZFR_FZ
ENRAAEBMBAERAT BT
tmETzEHeER  c ERLEFESES
A_EF=ZFEREZIFUANHAFER

BB _E-TEIRBY =BT

BEER -
ERCRERE BRESRE
Cash Flow from Operations Cash Flow per Share
BERET 20- EHT
HKS$ billion I HKS
15-
10-
N
(o}
5_
0- bl
99 01
T EARRER Infrastructure T IRHEREM CORFEHBAZERESKE

B S 25 8
Marketing & Distribution

T 9% Property

Industrial Manufacturing
& Others

T & E75 Sale of Businesses

From Regular Cash Flow per Share

) HEXEBZERASRE

From Cash Flow per Share from the Sale of Businesses

In addition, sale of business interests contributed HK$6.2 billion and
HK$2.4 billion in 2003 and 2002 respectively. Sale of marketable
securities contributed HK$220 million and HK$2.3 billion in 2003 and
2002 respectively.
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GERERENE Consolidated Cash Flow Summary
BB ET HKS million 2003 2002
ReBERE Net Cash generated from
IRARK consolidated activities 1,535 4,483
HREESEE jointly controlled entities 23 (88)
e /N associated companies (266) 1,795
®BE investments 263 2,194
HEREKEEREERS Sale of business interasts and marketable securities 6,370 916
BARZ RREEBZIRE Capital expenditure and investment in new businesses (1,207) (3,440)
Bimg Tax (148) (226)
FeBE Net interest (397) (545)
' 6,173 5,089
BXRE Dividends paid (4,377) (1,971)
BEEN/CEd) Increase / (Decrease) in borrowings 1,151 (5,188)
RekERREZRD Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,226) (7,159)
2,847 (2,070)
EEEERTBES Group Debt and Liquidity

FEBHSRBEEFBYMBE - BELA
VIR EB AR BREABEEAEZHE
HEEAT RGBT BE_FF=F+_A
ZEF—R, AEEZEEREARE —BEEAH
B (ZEEZZF+A=+—H  B¥L+
=) MBESRSTEZXUABE L TR
B ARFRABHILHET  M_F%FZ
E+ A=t -HZABSEARBE ST
BT EELEREABSHELGEREAL
REBBEBEIERRESHE > FHA11%
F13% (ZEFZZH+ZE=Z+—H : 14%
$16%) o
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The Group’s cash flow remains very strong and stable and of particular
note was the receipt of HK$6.2 billion in early July from the sale of
Shanghai road, bridges and tunnels projects. As of 31 December 2003,
the Group’s total outstanding debt was HK$10.5 billion (31 December
2002: HK$9.3 billion), cash and deposits with banks were HK$5.5 billion
giving a net debt of HK$5.0 billion compared to HK$6.7 billion at

31 December 2002. Leverage, measured by the net debt to total capital
and net debt to shareholders’ funds, was 11% and 13% respectively

(31 December 2002: 14% and 16%).
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Total Debt

Total debt decreased due to the repayment of bank borrowings. The debt
at 31 December 2003 that will be mature in 2 years’ time amounted to
14% of the total debt and at that date the Group had deposits with banks
of HK$5.5 billion exceeding the loans due for repayment in 2003.

BEEH
Total debt

EBIET 20-
HKS billion

FIEEE-
Interest Cover

BEEIS1E TT HKS billion
6

5 .

Bx 8x

Sx

Y

99 00 01 02 03

1 —%F A Inthe first year
M HF X (n the second year

CO=Z0ER (BEEERF)
in the third to fifth year inclusive

BER T & After fifth year

FEE™
BEEZ=4+2A=Z+—-BL5E I8
BAHEXE - BIE - T REHZ HAIFHER
PRI B78: M_BE-FHHI1L7
FHEBERLEERFI T Z66% » EREETH
BEREA18% °

EOTBREMNEXH - BUR - fTERBH2BFIFE EBITDA

COTeENEXE - il HEREBHERBRENESH (k= 5)
EBITDA/Interest Expense (x = times)

B 7|53 interest Expense

Interest Cover
EBITDA divided by interest expense for the year ended 31 December 2003
was 7.8 compared to 11.7 in 2002, due to the 66% decrease in profit but

only a 18% decrease in total interest expense in the year.
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Loan Covenants

Over the years, CITIC Pacific has developed a set of standard loan
covenants to facilitate the management of its loan portfolio and debt
compliance. The financial covenants are limited to minimum net worth
undertaking; a maximum ratio of total borrowings to net worth and a
limit on the amount of pledged assets as a percentage of the Group’s total
assets. As of 31 December 2003, CITIC Pacific is in compliance with these

requirements.

Credit Ratings

The Company has been assigned investment grade foreign currency long
term credit rating of Baa3 by Moody's Investor Service and BBB- by
Standard & Poor’s. For both ratings the credit outlook is stable, reflecting
CITIC Pacific’s strong financial profile including low leverage, diversified
business and strong cashflow. The Group’s leverage, measured by the net
debt to total capital was 11% while interest cover, defined as EBITDA
divided by interest expense, was 7.8 for the year ended 31 December 2003.
We believe that these financial indicators were stronger compared to
companies with the same credit rating grade. The Company’s objective is
to maintain its financial discipline aiming to improve its credit rating

going forward.

Forward Looking Statements

- This Annual Report contains certain forward looking statements with

respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of
the Group. These forward looking statements represent the Company’s
expectations or beliefs concerning future events and involve known and
unknown risks and uncertainty that could cause actual results,
performance or events to differ materially from those expressed or

implied in such statements.

Forward looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties.
Readers should be cautioned that a number of factors could cause actual
results to differ, in some instances materially, from those anticipated or

implied in any forward looking statement.
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10 Year Statistics

FROEEBET)

At year end (HK$ million) 1894 1895 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
BEES Shareholders’ funds 25,426 26,971 36,912 40,538 42,032 38,240 41,304 41,489 42,538 38,826
Fh (BET) per share (HKS$) 1261 1340 1730 19.06 1976 1788 1881 1895 1944 17.74
afE Debt
=4 Debt 9,747 9,706 10,243 23,302 22,075 18,563 15,708 14,639 9,267 10,528
BITFER Bank deposits 796 614 594 710 900 8,044 5201 4,631 2,545 5,511
FRABEGALASE Net debt / total capital 26% 25% 21% 36% 34% 22% 20% 19% 14% 11%
MeFEH(E) Interest cover (times) 9 10 19 8 4 4 5 6 12 8
E2iER Capital employed 35,173 36,677 47,155 63,840 64,107 56,803 57,013 56,128 51,805 49,354
Br&E Fixed assets 8,884 9,045 9829 10472 11,765 11,916 13,433 14,702 15,804 15,526
HEEHER Jointly controlled entities 331 509 798 859 831 1,396 2,019 2,365 3,582 4,085
BEL T Associated companies 19,692 20,046 25,393 38,812 38,799 20,987 23,630 22,893 22,377 22,805
RE investments 4,304 5,644 9,183 11,170 11,548 14511 9,264 8,070 7,092 1,027
e Stockmarket capitalisation 38,000 53,000 95,800 65,520 35,530 62,230 60,720 37,993 31,514 43,332
BREEH Number of shareholders 7256 6,545 6,215 8,642 14,987 13,506 9,808 11,044 12,260 12,198
8T Staff 10,000 11,500 11,750 11,800 11,871 10,490 11,354 11,733 11,643 12,174
EF (BEEET) For the year (HK$ million)
Bt B R Net profit after tax
[Eik- o p Net profit after tax 977 2,963 68,769 7,201 2628 2,735 3291 2,110 3875 1,305
B (BHET) per share (HKS3) 0.50 1.47 3.18 3.38 1.24 1.29 1.49 0.96 1.77 0.60
TEEBMBTER Contribution by major
business
= Aviation 707 1,054 702 (11) 659 1,475 324 1,263 4N
iR Civil Infrastructure 467 800 1,099 1,382 1,292 1320 1,362 1,238 635
E8% Communications 974 648 322 65 51 92 295 553 234
BE Power Generation 186 186 170 230 440 314 281 245 229
HERDHE Marketing & Distribution 277 330 360 330 230 226 119 227 264
ES Property 734 602 1,587 270 740 422 633 894 508
IxghE Industrial Manufacturing 39 21 2 18 22 29 95 126 178
HEBER Consumer Credit 78 89 84 167 - - - - -
REDEERZRE investment Properties
Revaluation Deficit - - - - - - - - {587)
FREMSIE - HE -
ERBHZEFTE EBITDA 1,975 4,040 4,321 5706 4,738 4,763 5240 3,944 5731 3,133
SRBe (¥R Dividends per share (HK$)
Za Regular 0.48 0.55 0.62 0.70 .70 0.75 0.85 0.80 1.00 1.00
5B Special - - 0.30 0.30 - 2.00 - - 1.00 -
B () Cover (times) 1.0 27 2.7 2.7 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.2 1.8 0.6
#isE

1. ~NABFEST EFHHLFEBEHRE -
2 BRIEBEFRTRET I EBGTERNEI2H [FEH) FUEF_FREIBFEHAE - ER_FE-FRELUAZBT  LRATRERAZEHETE
SHERMIFHIGERE  UELE -

Note:

1. Information of contribution by major business for 1994 s not available.
2. Figures have been adjusted in year 2002 following the adoption of revised accounting standard of SSAP 12 ‘Income Tax'
For comparative purposes, the figures for years 2001 and before have not been adjusted for effects on the adoption.
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Headquarters and Registered Office

32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2820 2111

Fax: 2877 2771

Website

www.citicpacific.com contains a description of CITIC Pacific’s business,
copies of both the full and summary reports to shareholders,
announcements, press releases and other information.

Stock Codes

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong: 0267
Bloomberg: 267 HK

Reuters: 0267. HK

American Depository Receipts: CTPCY
CUSIP Reference No: 17304K102

Share Registrars

Shareholders should contact our Registrars, Tengis Limited, Ground Floor,

Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong on 2980 1333, or by fax: 2810 8185, on matters such as transfer

of shares, change of name or address, or loss of share certificates.

Annual and Interim Reports

Shareholders may obtain printed copies of annual and interim reports
from the Registrars. Other should contact the Company Secretary

on 2820 2111 or fax: 2877 2771 or at contact@citicpacific.com for

a printed report.

Investor Relations

Investors, shareholders and research analysts may contact the Investor
Relations Department by telephone at 2820 2004, by fax: 2104 6632 or
at investor.relations@citicpacific.com. ‘

Financial Calendar

Closure of Register: 4 May 2004 to 10 May 2004
Annual General Meeting: 10 May 2004, 10:30 a.m.
Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hotel
Two Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road

Hong Kong

Final Dividend Payable: 13 May 2004
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report for
the year ended 31 December 2003.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary companies
and the principal activities of its subsidiary companies and associated
companies and their major areas of operation are set out in the Business

Review on pages 5 to 29.

Dividends

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.30 per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2003 which was paid on ‘

23 September 2003. The Directors recommended, subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.70 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2003 payable on 13 May 2004 to shareholders on the
Register of Members at the close of business on 10 May 2004.

Reserves
The amounts and particulars of transfer to and from reserves during the

year are set out in Note 5 to the summary financial statements.

Donations
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$21 million.

Fixed Assets
Movements of fixed assets are set out in Note 4 to the summary financial

statements.

Issue of Debt Securities

On 15 February 1996, the Company issued and sold US$100 million
aggregate principal amount of its 7.37% Senior Notes due 2006 (‘Senior
Notes’) to financial institutions pursuant to note purchase agreements
dated 15 February 1996. All of the Senior Notes remained outstanding
at the end of the year.
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On 1 June 2001, CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued and sold a total of US$450 million
principal amount of 7.625% guaranteed notes due 2011 (‘Guaranteed

‘Notes’) for refinancing the indebtedness of the Company and for general

corporate purposes, to investors pursuant to the purchase agreements
dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001. All of the Guaranteed Notes remained
outstanding at the end of the year.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Company nor its subsidiary companies have

issued any debt securities.

Directors
The Directors in office during the financial year ended 31 December 2003

were:

Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin

Mr Henry Fan Hung Ling

Mr Vernon Francis Moore

Mr Peter Lee Chung Hing

Mr Norman Yuen Kee Tong

Mr Robert Ernest Adams, retired with effect from 1 January 2004
Mr Yao Jinrong

Mr Chang Zhenming

Mr Li Shilin

Mr Carl Yung Ming Jie

Mr Liu Jifu

Mr Willie Chang

Mr Hamilton Ho Hau Hay

Mr Alexander Reid Hamilton

Mr Hansen Loh Chung Hon

Mr Norman Ho Hau Chong

Mr André Desmarais

Mr Peter Kruyt (Alternate Director to Mr André Desmarais)

Pursuant to Article 104(A) of the New Articles of Association of the
Company, Messrs Larry Yung Chi Kin, Peter Lee Chung Hing, Norman
Yuen Kee Tong, Liu Jifu and Willie Chang shall retire by rotation in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and all, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.
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Management Contract

The Company entered into a management agreement with CITIC

Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (formerly China International Trust &
Investment Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited) (*CITIC HK')
on 11 April 1991 but with retrospective effect from 1 March 1990 in which
CITIC HuK agreed to provide management services to the Company and
its subsidiary companies for a management fee calculated on a cost basis
to CITIC HK payable quarterly in arrears. The management agreement is
terminable by two months’ notice by either party. Messrs Larry Yung Chi
Kin, Henry Fan Hung Ling, Vernon Francis Moore, Chang Zhenming and
Liu Jifu had indirect interests in the management agreement as they are
directors of CITIC HK. A copy of the management agreement will be
available for inspection at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on 10 May 2004.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

- None of the Directors of the Company has or at any time during the year

had, an interest which is or was material, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiary companies, which was
significant in relation to the business of the Company, and which was subsisting

_ at the end of the year or which had subsisted at any time during the year.

Share Option Plan
The Company adopted the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000
(‘the Plan’) on 31 May 2000.

On 28 May 2002 options to subscribe for a total of the 11,550,000 shares
in the Company listed in the table below representing 0.53% of the then
issued share capital, at the exercise price of HK$18.20 per share, were
granted under the Plan. All options granted and accepted can be exercised
in whole or in part within 5 years from the date of grant. All were
accepted, and none were exercised, cancelled or lapsed in the period up

to 31 December 2003.

R-EE=F+-A=+—BZHERERE
Number of Share Options as at 31 December 2003

EQRES Directors of the Company 8,100,000
EREANTEZRESR Continuous Contract Employees 3,400,000
Hitb* Others* 50,000
&t Total 11,550,000

* WEREDRT —ERFEENTRZEE  MEZER
R-ZBR=F+ZA=+—HFERBK -

“ It is in respect of the options granted to an employee under continuous contract,
who retired during the year ended 31 December 2003.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities

The interests of the Directors in shares of the Company or any associated

corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (‘sF0’)) as at 31 December 2003 as recorded in the register

required to be kept under section 352 of the SF0 were as follows:

1. Shares in the Company and Associated Corporation

RioEE
Number of Shares
R HEBITRE
EARE EEEE RIEER BolER BEOE
Personal Corporate Family Trusts and Percentage to the
interests interests interests  similar interests issued share capital
%
REREARAA CITIC Pacific Limited
E 3 Larry Yung Chi Kin 400,381,000 18.295
SEIBEY Henry Fan Hung Ling 43,000,000 1.965
BER Vernon Francis Moore 3,200,000 0.146
/N2 Peter Lee Chung Hing 500,000 0.023
Brid = Norman Yuen Kee Tong 33,000 0.002
BRE Robert Ernest Adams 550,000 0.025
BIET Liu Jifu 40,000 0.002
fEgEE Hansen Loh Chung Hon 1,050,000 500,000 500,000 Q.071
mEE André Desmarais 99,765 100,242,035° 4.685
Fise AT Peter Kruyt
(EEEXEZ (alternate director to
BEABE) Mr André Desmarais) 2,100 0.0001
BEHMEFRLT Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited
fEEEE Hansen Loh Chung Hon 450,000 0.013
Hiit : Note:

1. B R HP1500,000 RE 1 B E— B EHEERA
REREZRARE HEREERBZAEEREA
FERBRED -

2. EFTEE 2 100,242,035 BER 1574 - 12,036 R T35
B-EaEBEEZSRERE - 71100,230,000
BILEE— R EREFLERAFRETRERE
BEZFE -
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1. The corporate interests and the family interests of the relevant Director duplicate
each other as the 500,000 shares are held through a company in which the

relevant Director and his family are interested.

2. Out of 100,242,035 shares, 12,035 shares are held by corporations controlled by
the refevant Director and 100,230,000 shares are held indirectly by a corporation
of which the relevant Director is the President and Co-Chief Executive Cfficer.
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2. Share Options in the Company

MARITE BRI E BEBOTRAENH

BE Directors Number of Outstanding Percentage to the
Share Options issued share capital

%

pER Larry Yung Chi Kin 2,000,000 0.091
SRS Henry Fan Hung Ling 1,600,000 0.073
=R i3 Vernon Francis Moore 1,000,000 0.046
TR Peter Lee Chung Hing 1,000,000 0.046
FricE Norman Yuen Kee Tong 500,000 0.023
BRIE Robert Ernest Adams 300,000 0.014
21$:3-3 Yao Jinrong 300,000 0.014
iR Chang Zhenming 500,000 0.023
M Li Shilin 300,000 Q.014
ELEFN Carl Yung Ming Jie 300,000 0.014
2E= Liu Jifu 300,000 0.014

BLXHHEEN EZFF=ZF+_A
=t+—H > ARFAEEMEEAR L A A
Bk m By - MBERERES PRS- B
BYEH  ZEGRERBEEFRPE GRS
XVEBT 7 Z AR A » XS -
WA A KRR LR R AL FRE
EH LR REOIEI2HRATREZERLER
RZAEMER - EHR - HRARADEE
HHERE LR LW ARAEFETES
R 5 HRHEST AT @ A 0 T RS 2
R -

RSB EEE SN » RERIETRFR] » AL R
HEAT M BN R RS AR DR
PEZERFEREAL S HBEE K
R

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2003, none of the Directors of
the Company had nor were they taken to or deemed to have, under Part
XV of the sFo, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations or any
interests which are required to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or any interests which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or

any of its subsidiary companies a party or parties to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body

corporate,
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EZEFE=ZHE+2A=4+—0 > BEEHFELY
BBRGIEI36 RATREZBRBRIREELS
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BANLBRON EA LA G 2 BRI

Substantial Shareholders

As at 3] December 2003, the interests of the substantial shareholders,
other than the Directors of the Company or their respective associate(s),

in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests in

shares and short positions required to be kept under section 336 of the

SFO were as follows :

KRB zBRNEE IREBITRATAER
Number of Shares Percentage to the
BiE Name of the Company issued share capital
O/O
FESEEERE (1B CITIC Group (formerly China International

[PEEFEFRREQRD Trust and Investment Corporation)

(feREE=ED (‘CITIC Beijing") 632,066,285 28.882
HIEEE CITIC HK 632,066,285 28.882
Heedon Corporation Heedon Corporation 498,424,285 22.775
Honpville Corporation 14.210

Honpville Corporation 310,088,221

FEEBER I 2EMBAF > MERAR

CITIC HK is a substantial shareholder of the Company indirectly through

NERZEBERR - the following wholly owned subsidiary companies:
EREEE% HEBHITRA
0402 BRI E ER RS
. Number of Shares of Percentage to the
FIEEEZHBRAEIZE Name of Subsidiary Companies of CITIC HK HK$0.40 each issued share capital
%
Affluence Limited Affluence Limited 43,266,000 1.977
Winton Corp. Winton Corp. 30,718,000 1.404
Westminster Investment Inc. Westminster Investment Inc. 101,960,000 4.859
Jetway Corp. Jetway Corp. 22,500,000 1.028
Cordia Corporation Cordia Corporation 32,258,064 1.474
Honpville Corporation Honpville Corporation 310,988,221 14.210
Hainsworth Limited Hainsworth Limited 80,376,000 3.673
Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Southpoint Enterprises Inc. 10,000,000 0.457
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Affluence

Westminster

Limited * Winton Corp.
Investment Inc. - Jetway
Corp. * Cordia Corporation * Honpville
Corporation Hainsworth ~ Limited &
Southpoint Enterprises Inc. 4+ fl & # 7 5 &
NEZ MG o Bt > Honpville Corporation

MRARNFEZEERR -

FRELARATEFEZEEERAF - #E
% ¥ % Heedon Corporation * Hainsworth
Limited - Affluence Limited X Barnsley
Investments Limited 2 B % % iz 2 A -

Heedon Corporation % Winton Corp.

Westminster Investment Inc. > Jetway
Corp. * Kotron Company Ltd. & Honpville
Corporation Z E## K/ 7 ; Kotron
Company Ltd. % Cordia Corporation 2. &
AR A - Barnsley Investments Limited
£ Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Z B # % &
KR Bl PEARERLAF ZEE &
FREEEESAFCEGZEDR - PETEREAR
RRERZER AR 2RhEEEREERE
ZHWEAREARRAZHEEELR - Heedon
CorporationTEA /A 7 Z f45 » B2 it 230
HEERHEEA 2 WRAFTTEAR A2 H#
&% - Barnsley Investments Limited 422
Azigs REdmEEEHEA 2 WEAFE
ERNFEZHEEES - Kotron Company Ltd.
TEAQRZ M - Rl B A 2
DREARFAZERES -

Bz 7z
EEE-EE=-F+_A=1+-HLEEEX,
Ao EEE MRS EHEZEZE
E+ZA=Z+—BIERER > AN TR
W FI R EEE R 2 B E A A FEM RS -

REREM
REREE
i ZEFNF=A+NE

Each of Affluence Limited, Winton Corp., Westminster Investment Inc.,
Jetway Corp., Cordia Corporation, Honpville Corporation, Hainsworth
Limited and Southpoint Enterprises Inc. holds the shares of the Company
beneficially. Accordingly, Honpville Corporation is a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

CITIC Beijing is the direct holding company of CITIC HK. CITIC HK is the
direct holding company of Heedon Corporation, Hainsworth Limited,
Affluence Limited and Barnsley Investments Limited. Heedon Corporation
is the direct holding company of Winton Corp., Westminster Investment
Inc., Jetway Corp., Kotron Company Ltd. and Honpville Corporation

and Kotron Company Ltd. is the direct holding company of Cordia
Corporation. Barnsley Investments Limited is the direct holding company
of Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Accordingly, the interests of CITIC Beijing
in the Company duplicate the interests of CITIC HK in the Company.

The interests of CITIC HK in the Company duplicate the interests in the
Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as described
above. The interests of Heedon Corporation in the Company duplicate
the interests in the Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary
companies as described above. The interests of Barnsley Investments
Limited in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of its
direct subsidiary company as described above and the interests of Kotron
Company Ltd. in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of
its direct subsidiary company as described above.

Share Capital

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended
31 December 2003. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary
companies has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the year ended 31 December 2003.

By Order of the Board,
Larry Yung Chi Kin Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 March 2004
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HeBER
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

BWEZE=F+"_A=+—HILFE for the year ended 31 December 2003

LEREZR 7%57‘,%" in HK$ million rfgi 2003 2002
BRE Turnover 26,180 22,316
GERBER Profit from Consolidated Activities 1,132 2,583
Fr i B R B RS 18 Share of Profits Less Losses of

AEZEHME Jointly Controlled Entities 341 368

BERQT Associated Companies 769 1,087
MBEIHERE Net Finance Charges (320) (434)
WEATEA Profit before Taxation 1,922 4,504
BE Taxation (371) (424}
FEREF Profit for the Year 1,551 4,080
LEBBRERER Minority Interests (246) (205)
BRRBAE BT Profit Attributable to Shareholders 1,305 3,875
RE Dividends (2,189) 4,377)
BARE Transfer to Reserves 5 (40) (5)
SEREBRGE®R) Earn;ngs per Share (HK$) 0.60 1.77
48




mEgEEAEBER
Consolidated Balance Sheet

ZEFE=ZFEF+TAZT—BLEHE asat 31 December 2003

» MisE
KEEEETHE in HK$ million Note 2003 2002
BEEE Fixed Assets 4 15,526 15,804
HEEHEE Jointly Controlled Entities 4,085 , 3,582
BEAT Associated Companies 22,805 22,377
BE Investments 1,027 7,092
[k Goodwill 223 235
BEREEE Deferred Tax Assets 85 63
RBEE Current Assets
FEYE Properties held for sale 336 336
=7E inventories 1,880 1,866
LHRE Listed investment - 24
FEWERTE - BB - &g Debtors, accounts receivable,
BRRNHKIE deposits and prepayments 4,248 3,088
RERBEITFER Cash and bank deposits 5,511 2,545
11,975 7,859
RERE Current Liabilities
ROEH  BHEFRES Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts
EiER secured 49 63
|EA unsecured 826 467
ENESR  EAER - B Creditors, accounts payable,
bEMZE deposits and accruals 3,912 2,995
HIERE Provision for taxation 108 95
4,895 3,620
RBEERYE Net Current Assets 7,080 4,239
BESEBRRYAE . Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 50,831 53,392
RABR Long Term Borrowings (9,653) {8,737)
BEBHERAM Deferred Tax Liabilities (325) (299)
40,853 44,356
BEXIE Financed by
;g - Share Capital 875 875
e Reserves 5 36,419 37,943
2RRE Proposed Dividend 1,532 3,720
BEES Shareholders’ Funds 38,826 42 538
LEREER Minority Interests 2,027 1,818
40,853 44,356
EER Larry Yung Chi Kin
¥ Director
PEt T Henry Fan Hung Ling
BFE Director
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Notes to the Summary Financial Statements

T —HER

AR BEHERRHHISEZHES6H I AL
HZEEMBRE > WA HZERARES
FRFRE EHTE  RNEULEHRELE
B 2 B R B BOR -

2 TESHHER

AR R
AHBERERRTREFRARE-FF=F
TAZ RS EZEEHHERE (2R
HTHRH -

S EREERBERGZ O EAE
A EEGHEIAG A2 @R - i3
REZHEAARREEARAR (T HE
§iE ) ETEMERZEAERLENGE
SRR EA (BRG] B 115
W B 4 BB AT A A (T BB TE SR 55
W) o EFALZE 2 BB R R E @3t
B K g -

ARECHEMTRAETHERZ FHEHE
AUSE 1255 (RERT) [ErfBRL ) - it
B (BB ZEAIEVBRTHE -

P RINERREZBELE  RELFR
SATE A RAF R EE A SR HA B E
B AERR BN HRERE -

HFRETENERE (BB IREEES
BREREFTERLEHNIE > AUEIZEERA
RMEA GBI (E 2 BRE 22 80 - FEY
REBEMELZENR  REEATRBESR
BEMESERAZ EO T ETEE - ERY
KRB REBERZEEREEE  ARE
AARRE TP AARE R T#D -
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1 General Information

These summary financial statements from page 48 to 56 are not the
Group’s statutory financial statements and they do not contain sufficient
information to allow as full an understanding of the results and state of

affairs of the Group us would be provided by the full Annual Report.

2 Significant Accounting Pclicies

Basis of Preparation

These summary financial statements have been prepared from the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2003 (‘the Accounts’)

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting
standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. The
recognition of exchange differences on certain long-term liabilities

in CITIC Pacific’s associated company Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
(‘Cathay Pacific’) does not comply with Hong Kong Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice (‘ssap’) No. 11 but does comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘1FRs’) and Cathay Pacific’s policy is

explained in accounting policy Note 1q of the Accounts.

The Group has adopted ssap No. 12 (Revised) ‘Income Taxes’ which
became effective for the current accounting year. The principal effect of
the implementation of ssap No. 12 (Revised) is in relation to deferred tax.

In prior years, deferred tax were recognised in respect of the taxation
effect arising from material timing differences to the extent that a liability

or an asset is expected to be payable or receivable in the foreseeable future.

Under ssap No. 12 (Revised), a balance sheet liability method is adopted
whereby deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts.
Provision for withholding tax that will arise on the remittance of retained
earnings is only made where there is a current intention to remit such
earnings. Deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses are recognised

to the extent that the future utilization is probable,
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2 Significant Accounting Policies continued

The new accounting policy has been adopted retrospecfively. As a result,
the profit for the year ended 31 December 2003, capital reserve and
retained profits as at 31 December 2002 are reduced by HK$42 million,
HK$49 million and HK$107 million respectively.

Also, certain associated companies have changed their profit recognition
policies and the impact has been adjusted in the Accounts of the Group
retrospectively. As a result, the profit for the year ended 31 December 2002
is increased by HK$15 million and retained profits and goodwill included
in reserves as at 31 December 2002 are reduced by HK$26 million and
increase by HK$37 million respectively.
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3 EEME 3 Directors’ Emoluments
£8 Group
HENEETHE in HK$ miflion 2003 2002
e Fees 1.8 1.9
e Salaries 10.4 13.6
TE4T Bonuses 83.3 94.2
95.5 109.7

EREMELRET The Directors’ emoluments are analysed as follows:

EE A B Number of directors
B & &5 E Emoluments Bands 2003 2002
B0 7T E % 1,000,000 7T HK$0 - HK$1,000,000
A#1,500,001 T E B 2,000,0007 HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
##2,500,001 T = B% 3,000,000 HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 - 1
B#3,000,001 T & E¥% 3,500,0007T HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 ) 1 -
83,500,001 T = E¥ 4,000,000 HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 1 -
E¥4,000,001 T EEY¥ 4,500,000 HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 - 1
A#9,000,001 T E E% 9,500,000 HK$9,000,001 - HK$9,500,000 1 -
##11,000,001 T ZE %%11,500,000 7T HK$11,000,001 - HK$11,500,000 - 1
#%13,000,001 7T & #%13,500,000 7T HK$13,000,001 - HK$13,500,000 1 -
&#15,000,001 T E E#15,500,000 7T HK$15,000,001 — HK$15,500,000 - 1
AE#15,500,001 7T E &% 16,000,000 T HK$15,500,001 — HK$18,000,000 1 -
817,000,001 7T = &%17,500,0007T HK$17,000,001 - HK$17,500,000 - 1
7&#19,500,001 T £ E# 20,000,000 T HK$19,500,001 - HK$20,000,000 1 -
A #23,000,001 T = #&#23,500,000 T HK$23,000,001 — HK$23,500,000 1 1

7% 27,000,001 T Z #¥%27,600,000 7T

HK$27,000,001 — HK$27,500.000 -

ER BLFATERZMeRERLET

(ZFFEEERLHET -

ER AREARBRFHZACALEAES

EMerEGEE EliairA -

Emoluments paid to independent non-executive directors during the year
amounted to HK$0.7 million (2002: HK$0.7 million).

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year were also

directors and their emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented

above.

FAN AREETEELAERL FARESE
RERMHBBAIN _TFER THEMABERE
(ZFF T 718,100,000 BEALHE)

During the year, no share option was granted (2002: 8,100,000 share
options were granted) to certain directors of the Company under the
CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000.
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4 Fixed Assets

% Group
EBE
TEME ERWE ZHE TERE Hih Fob
Properties
Investment Seli-used held for Vehicular
BN EETHE in HKS million Properties properties  development tunnel Others Total
KA EE Cost or valuation
i = At 1 January 2003 8,493 3,375 616 1,983 4,320 18,787
RaBg Exchange adjustments 24 5 - - 5 34
RE Additions - 123 97 - 743 963
fark Disposals
ERHERBRE through disposal of
subsidiary companies - (52) - - 41) {93)
Eih= others - (19) - - (194) (213)
EfREE Revaluation deficit (594) - - - - (594)
E¥OHA Reclassification - 179 - - (179) -
—E2R=F+-R=+—8 At 31 December 2003 7,923 3,611 713 1,983 4,654 18,884
2RrE Accumulated depreciation
—BE=F—-F—8 At 1 January 2003 - 606 - 556 1,821 2,983
RRRE Exchange adjustments - 1 - - 1 2
AEFFE Charge for the year - 72 - 66 390 528
BAHEED Written back on disposals
ERANERBRF through disposal of
subsidiary companies - 6) - - (15) (21)
Hib AR others - (8) - - (126) (134)
—B2=F+-B=+-1° At 31 December 20083 - 665 - 622 2,071 3,358
BREEE Net book value
ZE2R=F+-A=+—-8 At 31 December 2003 7,923 2,946 713 1,361 2,583 15,526
—BR-FE+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2002 8,493 2,769 618 1,427 2,499 15,804
L BEZKEFREE The analysis of cost or
SLT valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
ES At cost - 3,611 713 1,983 4,654 10,961
BEEE-—BRE=F At professional valuation
- 2003 7,923 - - - - 7,923
7,923 3,611 713 1,983 4,654 18,884
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5 HHE 5 Reserves

S£H Group

B
BB SETIE RipAE EEFEE
Capital

Share redemption
in HK$ miflion premium reserve

Capital
reserve

BE

Goodwill

BEDE
EREHE
Investment
property
revaluation
reserve

EXEE)
G

Exchange
fluctuation
reserve

Egla

General
reserve

REEHM

Retained
profits

Total

ZEZF—-/[-B
At 1 January 2002 24,782 18
LFEERR
Prior year adjustments
BEHIE
Deferred taxation - -
ATt 8 AR 2 BEHE
Share of associated companiges for deferred taxation - -
ERiGE 8 DRI 2
Share of associated companies
for change in profit recognition - -

3,614

49)

(2,4786)

(87)

960

689

138

12,888

(56).

41)

40,613

(58)

(58)

{78)

E5

As restated 24,782 18
GBS AR EE

Share of reserves of associated companies - -
MEEBEFZEA

Deficit on revaluation of properties - -
SNEBEZE

Exchange translation differences - -
Reserves realised - -
BERG

Repurchase of shares - -
HEEEAHEEE

Transfer to capital redemption reserve - 1
BEAN

Transfer from profits - -
AR SR REAE A F

Profit attributable to shareholders - -
iS)

Dividends - -

3,665

2,513)

960
14

(120)

(12)

689

(526)

138

12,782

3,875

(1,971)

40,421
(512)

(120)

(12)

(19)

3,875

(1,971)

—BZ-F+-A=+-8
At 31 December 2002 24,782 19

3,566

847

159

142

14,661

41,663

ot
Representing
TERR-F+ZA=+—8
EF ARERBREIIRE
At 31 December 2002 after proposed
final and special dividends
RECERCEREREIRE
2002 Final and special dividends proposed

37,943

3,720

41,663

& TH R EIRE 2 HA

Retained by

AREEHERR

Company and subsidiary companies 24,782 19
HRAZHESR

Jointly controlled entities - -
BENE

Associated companies - -

3,561

3

(2,513)

82

765

17

142

138

10,552

184

3,925

36,638

187

4,838

24,782 19

3,566

2,513}

847

159

142

14,661

41,663
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5 Reserves continued

Y F Group continued
AX REWME EREDH
KEERBTHE fRHE REEE BEXER HE EHEHE (i TAMRE RBET Rk
Investment
Capital property  Exchange
Share redemption Capital revaluation  fluctuation General  Retained
in HKS million premium reserve reserve  Goodwil reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ZER=F¥—-R—8
At 1 January 2003 24,782 19 3,615 (2,476) 847 159 142 14,794 41,882
TEERE
Prior year adjustments
RERE
Deferred taxation - - (49) - - - - (25) (74)
MG SRR 2 BERIE
Share of associated companies for deferred taxation - - - - - - - (82) (82)
FTGEHE DRI HR 2 g
Share of associated companies
for change in profit recognition - - - (37) - - - (26) (63)
#5 .
As restated 24,782 19 3,566 (2,513) 847 159 142 14,661 41,663
BB REIREE
Share of reserves of associated companies - - - - (242) (342} - - (584)
BLErBREE
Goodwill written back on disposal - - 1 - - - - - 11
BRZAESR
Impairment loss on goodwill - - 12 14 - - - - 26
MEEREEZEL
Deficit on revaluation of properties - - - - (87} - - - (87)
INEBREER
Exchange translation differences - - - - 5 (1) - - (6)
BEEF
Transfer from profits - - - - - - 40 (40) -
BNyl
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - - 1,305 1,305
[i:95)
Dividends - - - - - - - (4,377) (4,377)
—RR=F+ZR=+—8
At 31 December 2003 24,782 19 3,589 (2,499) 523 (194) 182 11,549 37,951
fh ’
Representing
—¥E=F+-A=+-—8H
B ARERGARE
At 31 December 2003 after proposed
final dividend 36,419
BRE_TT-FRERE
2003 Final dividend proposed 1,632
37,951
B TFRERECHAE
Retained by
ARB RMB AR
Company and subsidiary companies 24,782 19 3,584 (2,499) - 6 164 7,153 33,209
HREHTE
Jointly controlied entities - - 2 - - - 15 412 429
kNG|
Associated companies - - 3 - 523 (200) 3 3,984 4,313
24,782 19 3,589 {2,499) 523 (194) 182 11,549 37,951
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5 ffEa

BisE -

EE BN EEEREREZ B EE -
BB EHBEFIQRAL  (HEEMEERAEE
DI EHENYE FEFHEE-_FT=F+A=+
— B SR ZENEECRLEN=ZBEAF B8
(ZEE—F . GLEKAE-_F~ BET)"
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5 Reserves continued

Note :

The exchange fluctuation reserve included the Group’s share of the exchange
reserve of Cathay Pacific. As set out in accounting policies No.1q in the Accounts,
the Group's profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2003 would
have decreased by HK$342 million (2002: decreased by HK$52€ million) had SSAP
No.11 been adopted by Cathay Pacific.
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Auditors’ Statement on the Summary Financial Report

RERS MR ERE
HFEREZARAAKRRNEYN
(MEEE MBI E R )

AREEMERE I ERS6H REHEREIER
SEEHTEREARAABE_TEF=ZE+
ZAZT-HUEFEENRBERERE -

EERKYUMEBNER

BEFE (ARKRSD  EEFEERNAS
Fis CAREG) B 141CF() B E MBI TS
BEHE - HENMEHERETES - T8
(AEMEBIY B141CFQ )R E Ll 7 B R5H
EREWEENEEEIEE -+ A=+
—HILFEMBERE LA B BT E
REREHSE  RASER (AT (LHAH
MBHEERE) RO BSEFEHOEE
Mg WEEEEHE -

AR BRI I (A7 (LA
MBHERE) 86D BSRTRORE - i
FEWHR  HUEHEREELBIER
EEEEEHEE - AR RARRE
CEFZETCAS A LFRASEET
REMEHMREREHREHRARL G
5T o BB SRR B R 19 - A BT
A HAREN REEEAREA LR SR
WL ITRE -

Auditors’ statement on the summary financial report to the shareholders
of CITIC Pacific Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have examined the summary financial report of CITIC Pacific Limited
for the year ended 31 December 2003 on pages 1 to 56 and the front and

back cover pages.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the directors are responsible
for preparing the summary financial report which complies with section
141CF(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In preparing the
summary financial report, section 141CF(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance requires that the summary financial report be derived from the
annual accounts and the auditors’ report thereon and the directors’ report
for the year ended 31 December 2003, be in such form and contain such
information and particulars as specified in section 5 of the Hong Kong
Companies (Summary Financial‘Reports of Listed Companies)

Regulation, and be approved by the board of directors.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion on the summary
financial report, based on our examination, and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and we are also required to state whether the
auditors’ report on the annual accounts for the year ended 31 December
2003 is qualified or otherwise modified, in accordance with section 5

of the Hong Kong Companies (Summary Financial Reports of Listed
Companies) Regulation, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this statement.
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Basis of opinion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Standards on
Assurance Engagements and with reference to Practice Note 710 “The
auditors’ statement on the summary financial report’ issued by the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants. Our examination includes examining
evidence supporting the consistency of the summary financial report with
the annual accounts and the auditors’ report thereon and the directors’
report for the year ended 31 December 2003 and the compliance of the
summary financial report with the requirements of section 5 of the Hong
Kong Companies (Summary Financial Reports of Listed Companies)
Regulation, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides

a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion
Based on the foregoing, in our opinion the summary financial report on

pages 1 to 56 and the front and back cover pages:

(a) is consistent with the annual accounts and the auditors’ report thereon
and the directors’ report of CITIC Pacific Limited for the year ended
31 December 2003 from which it is derived; and

(b) complies with the requirements of section 5 of the Hong Kong
Companies (Summary Financial Reports of Listed Companies)
Regulation.

We have audited the annual accounts of CITIC Pacific Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2003 and have issued an auditors’ report thereon
dated 18 March 2004 which is unqualified or otherwise unmodified.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2004
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Terms
Capital employed

Cash contributed
from all business

Total debt
Net debt
Total capital

EBITDA

Contribution

Ratios

Earnings per share

Shareholders’ funds
per share

Leverage

Cashflow per share

Interest cover

Shareholders’ funds + total debt

Cash inflow to CITIC Pacific Ltd. from its
subsidiary companies, jointly controlled
entities, associated companies and

other investments

Short term and long term loans, notes and bonds
Total debt less cash and bank deposits

Shareholders’ funds + net debt

Net profit less interest expense, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation

After tax profit. No allocation of central
interest, overhead and goodwill is made to
business units

Profit attributable to shareholders

Weighted average number of shares
(by days) in issue for the year

Shareholders’ funds

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

Net debt
Total capital

Cash contributed from all business

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

EBITDA

Interest expense
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AND MEMORANDUM

To the Shareholders

Dear Sir/Madam:

Explanatory Statement and Memorandum in relation to the
Buyback Mandate (as hereinafter defined)

This is an explanatory statement and memorandum of the terms of the
proposed repurchases given to all the shareholders of the Company relating to
a resolution to approve the Company repurchasing its own shares (“Buyback
Mandate™) to be proposed at the anmual general meeting of the Company to
be held on 10 May 2004.

This explanatory statement contains the information required under rule
10.06(1)(b) of the Rules governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange™). Its
purpose is to provide shareholders with all the information reasonably
necessary for them to make an informed decision as to whether or not to vote
in favour of the resolution approving the Buyback Mandate and it also forms
the memorandum of the terms of the proposed repurchases given under
Section 49BA(3}(b) of the Companies Ordinance.

i. SHARE CAPITAL

As at 18 March 2004, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of
this document, the issued share capital of the Company was 2,190,110,160
shares of HK$0.40 each (“Shares™).

Subject to the passing of the resolution approving the Buyback Mandate
and on the basis that no further Shares are issued or repurchased prior to the
annual general meeting, the Company would be allowed under the Buyback

Mandate to repurchase 219,011,016 Shares.

ii. SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL/TRADING RESTRICTIONS
The Listing Rules provide that all proposed repurchases of securities by a
company with a primary listing on the Stock Exchange must be approved in
advance by an ordinary resolution, either by way of a general mandate or by
a specific approval of a particular transaction.

iii. REASONS FOR REPURCHASES

The Directors believe that it is in the best interests of the Company and the
shareholders to seek a general authority from shareholders to enable the
Directors to repurchase the Shares of the Company on the market.
Repurchases of Shares will only be made when the Directors believe that such

a repurchase will benefit the Company and its shareholders. Such repurchases
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may, depending on market conditions and funding arrangements at the time,
lead to an enhancement of the value of the net assets and/or earnings and/or
dividend per share.

iv. FUNDING OF REPURCHASES

Repurchases must be funded out of the funds legally available for the purpose
in accordance with Hong Kong law, being profits available for distribution
and the proceeds of a fresh issue of shares made for the purpose of the
repurchases. It is envisaged that the funds required for any repurchase would
be derived from profits available for distribution.

The Directors do not propose to exercise the Buyback Mandate to such an
extent as would, in the circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the
working capital requirements of the Company or the gearing levels w.hich in
the opinion of the Directors are from time to time appropriate for the
Company. However, there might be an adverse impact on the working capital
or gearing position of the Company (as compared with the position disclosed
m the audited financial statements as at 31 December 2003) in the event that
the Buyback Mandate was exercised in full.

v. SHARE PRICES
The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares were traded on the Stock
Exchange during each of the previous 12 months from 1 March 2003 to 29

February 2004 were as follows:
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AND MEMORANDUM

vi. GENERAL

None .of the Directors, or to the best of their knowledge, having made all
reasonable enquiries, their associates, have any present intention if the
Buyback Mandate is exercised to sell any Shares to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that they will
exercise the power of the Company to make repurchases pursuant to the
Buyback Mandate in accordance with the Listing Rules and the laws of
Hong Kong.

If as the result of a repurchase of shares a shareholder’s proportionate
interest in the voting rights of the Company increases, such increase will be
treated as an acquisition for purposes of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Repurchases (“Takeover Code™). As a result, a
shareholder, or group of shareholders acting in concert depending on the level
of increase of shareholders’ interest, could obtain or consolidate control of the
Company and become obliged to make a-mandatory offer in accordance with
Rule 26 of the Takeover Code. As at 18 March 2004, the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this document, CITIC Hong Kong (Holdings)
Limited (“CITIC HK") together with its directors as parties acting in concert
held approximately 49% of the issued share capital of the Company. In the
event of full exercise of the Buyback Mandate and the maintenance by CITIC
HK and its concert parties of their present shareholding, the percentage of the
issued share capital of the Company held by CITIC HK and parties acting in
concert would increase by more than 5%. An obligation to make a general
offer to shareholders under Rules 26 and 32 of the Takeover Code may
accordingly arise. The Directors have no present intention to exercise the
Buyback Mandate to such an extent as would result in such takeover
obligation arising. CITIC HK is a wholly owned subsidiary of CITIC Group
(“CITIC Beijing”) and thus beth CITIC HK and CITIC Beijing are substantial

shareholders of the Company.
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There have been no repurchases of any securities of the Company made in
the previous six months (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise).

The Listing Rules prohibit the Company from knowingly repurchasing
Shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange from a “connected person”
(as defined in the Listing Rules) and a connected person is prohibited from
knowingly selling his/her Shares to the Company.

No connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
have notified the Company that they have a present intention to sell Shares to
the Company, or have undertaken not to do so, in the event that the

Company is authorized to make repurchases of Shares.

Yours faithfully

By Order of the Board

Henry Fan Hung Ling Managing Director
18 March 2004
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the
Company will be held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hotel,
Two Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Hong Kong on Monday, 10 May
2004 at 10:30 a.m. for the following purposes:

1 To receive and consider the audited accounts and the Reports of the
Directors and the Auditors for the vear ended 31 December 2003.

2 To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2003.

8 To re-elect retiring Directors.

4 To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Board of Directors to fix their

remuneration.

8§ To consider as Special Business, and if thought fit, pass with or without
amendments the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT with effect from the financial year ending 31 December 2004,
a. the director’s fee of each of the Directors of the Company be fixed at

HK$150,000 per anmun, until the Company in general meeting otherwise

determines; and

b. additional remuneration be payable to each of the Non-executive Directors

who serve on the Board Committees of the Company at the levels as shown

below, until the Company in general meeting otherwise determines:
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6 To consider as Special Business and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolution as a Special Resolution:
“THAT the New Articles of Association of the Company be altered by:
A. amending Article 2 as follows:

1. deleting the definition of “associate™ and substituting the following:

“associate” in relation to any Director, shall mean:
(1) his spouse;

(i1} any child or step-child, natural or adopted, under the age of 18 vears of

the Director or of his spouse {together with (i) above, the “family interests”);

(iii) the trustees, acting in their capacity as such trustees, of any trust of
which he or any of his family interests is a beneficiary or, in the case of a
discretionary trust, is (to his knowledge) a discretionary object and any
company (“trustee-controlled company™) in the equity capital of which the
trustees, acting in their capacity as such trustees, are directly or indirectly
interested so as to exercise or control the exercise of 30% (or such other
amount as may from time to time be specified in the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers as being the level for triggering a mandatory general
offer) or more of the voting power at general meetings, or to control the
composition of a majority of the board of directors and any other company

which is its subsidiary (together, the “trustee interests”);

(iv) a holding company of a trustee-controlled company or a subsidiary of

any such holding company; and

(¥) any company in the equity capital of which he, his family interests, any
of the trustees referred to in (iii) above, acting in their capacity as such
trustees, and/or any trustee interests taken together are directly or indirectly
interested so as to exercise or control the exercise of 30% (or such other
amount as may from time to time be specified in the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers as being the level for wiggering a mandatory general
offer) or more of the voting power at general meetings. or to control the
conposition of a majority of the board of directors and any other company
which is its subsidiary or holding company or a fellow subsidiary of any such

holding company.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

2. adding a definition of “business day”, as follows:

“business day” shall mean any day on which the Stock Exchange is open for

the business of dealing in securities;

3. deleting the definition of “Hong Kong” and substituting ““Hong Kong”
shall mean the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China”;

4. deleting in the definition of “newspaper” the words “the Chief Secretary”
and substituting “the Chief Secretary for Administration”;

5. deleting from the definition of “Secretary” the words “or corporation”;
B. deleting Article 17 and substituting the following:

“Everv person whose name is entered as a member in the register shall be
entitled (except in relation to replacement certificates) without payment to
receive within ten business days after allotment or lodgment of a transfer (or
within such other period as the conditions of issue shall provide) one
certificate for all his shares or, if he shall so request, in a case where the
allotment or transfer is of a number of shares in excess of the number for the
time being forming a stock exchange board lot, upon payment, in the case of
a transfer, of such sum as may from time to time be permitted under the
rules prescribed by the Stock Exchange for every certificate after the first,
such number of certificates for shares in stock exchange board lots or
multiples thereof as he shall request and one for the balance (if any) of the
shares in question, provided that in respect of a share or shares held jointly
by several persons the Company shall not be bound to issue a certificate or
certificates to each such person, and the issue and delivery of a certificate or
certificates to one of several joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all
such holders.” :

C. deleting Article 21 and substituting the following:

“If a share certificate is defaced, lost or destroyed, it may be replaced on
payment of such sum as may from time to time be permitted under the rules
prescribed by the Stock Exchange, and on such terms and conditions, if any,
as to the publication of notices, evidence and indemnity as the Board thinks
fit and in the case of wearing out or defacement, after delivery up of the old
certificate. In the case of destruction or loss, the person to whom such
replacement certificate is given shall also bear and pay to the Company any
exceptional costs and the reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incidental to the
mvestigation by the Company of the evidence of such destruction or loss and

of such indemnity.”
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D. amending Article 81 as follows:

1. deleting the words “the Securities and Futures (Clearing Houses)
Ordinance (Chapter 420 of the Laws of Hong Kong)”, and substituting “the
Securities and Futures Ordinance {Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)”;
and

2. adding at the end of Article 81,

“Where any shareholder is, under the Listing Rules, required to abstain from
voting on any particular resolution or restricted to voting only for or only
against any particular resolution, any votes cast by or on behalf of such
shareholder in contravention of such requirement or restriction shall not be

counted.”

E. deleting in Article 102(A)(viii) the words “special resolution” and
substituting “ordinary resolution”;

F. deleting the existing paragraph (H) of Article 103 and substituting the
following new paragraph (H):

“(H) A Director shall not vote or be counted in the quorum present at the
meeting in respect of any contract or arrangement or proposal in which he or
his associate(s) is/are materially interested, and if he shall do so his vote shall
not be counted, but this prohibition shall not apply to:

(i) the giving of any security or indemnity either:

{a) to the Director or his associate(s) in respect of money lent or obligations
incurred or undertaken by him or any of them at the request of or for the
benefit of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; or

(b) to a third party in respect of a deht or obligation of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries for which the Director or his associate(s) has himself/
themselves assumed responsibility in whole or in part and whether alone or

jointly under a guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of security;

(ii) any proposal concerning an offer of shares or debentures or other
securities of or by the Company or any other company which the Company
may promote or be interested in for subscription or purchase where the
Director or his associate(s) is/are or is/are to be interested as a participant in
the underwriting or sub-underwriting of the offer;
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(iii) any proposal concerning any other company in which the Director or his
associate(s) is/are interested only, whether directly or indirectly, as an officer
or executive or shareholder or in which the Director or his associate(s) is/are
beneficially interested in shares of that company, provided that the Director
and any of his associates are not in aggregate beneficially interested in 5% or
more of the issued shares of any class of such company (or of any third
company through which his interest or that of his associates is derived) or of

the voting rights;

(iv) any proposal or arrangement concerning the benefit of employees of the

Company or its subsidiaries including:
) g

(a) the adoption, modification or operation of any emplovees’ share scheme
or any share incentive or share option scheme under which the Director or his

associate(s) may benefit; or

(b) the adoption, modification or operation of a pension fund or retirement,

~ death or disability benefits scheme which relates both to Directors, his
associates and emplovees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and does
not provide in respect of any director, or his associate(s), as such any
privilege or advantage not generally accorded w the class of persons to which

such scheme or fund relates; and

(v) any contract or arrangement in which the Director or his associate(s) is/
are interested in the same manner as other holders of shares or debentures or
other securities of the Company by virtue only of his/their interest in shares

or debentures or other securities of the Company.”

G. deleting Article 108 and substituting the following:

“No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the
Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been given to the Company in the period
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
meeting appointed for such election and ending no later than seven days prior
to the date of such meeting, provided that such peried shall be ar least seven

days.”
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H. deleting in Article 110 the words “special resolution” and substituting

“ordinary resolution”;

[ deleting Article 184(A) and (B) and substituting the following:

“(A) Every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his
office or otherwise in relation thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be
liable for any loss or damages which may happen to or be incurred by the
Company in the execution of the duties of his office or in relation thereto,
provided that this Article shall only have effect in so far as its provisions are

not avoided by the Companies Ordinance.

(B) The Company may indemnify any Director or other officer of the

Company, against any lability incurred by him:

(a) in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which

judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted; or

(b) in conmection with any application under Section 358 of the Companies
Ordinance in which relief is granted to him by the court.

{C)The Company may purchase and maintain for any Director or officer of

the Company:

(a) insurance against any liability to the Company, a related company or any

other party in respect of any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of

trust (save for fraud) of which he may be guilty in relation to the Company or

a related company; and

b) insurance against any liability incurred by him in defending anv

] v o Bi (=} v
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, taken against him for any negligence,
default, breach of duty or breach of trust (including fraud) of which he may

be guilty in relation to the Company or a related company.

(D)In this Article, “related company”, in reladion to the Company, means any
company that is the Company’s subsidiary or holding company or a

subsidiary of the Company’s holding company.”
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

7 To consider as Special Business the following resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution:
“THAT:

A. subject to paragraph (C), a general mandate be and is hereby
unconditionally granted to the Directors of the Company to exercise during
the Relevant Period all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and dispose
of additional shares in the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements

and options which would or might require the exercise of such powers;

B. the mandate in paragraph (A) shall authorise the Directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements and
options which would or might require the exercise of such powers after the
end of the Relevant Period;

C. the aggregate nominal value of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option
or otherwise) by the Directors of the Company pursuant to the mandate in
paragraph (A), otherwise than pursuant to {i) Rights Issue or (ii) any option
scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or
issue to the officers and/or employees of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries of shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company or (iii) the
exercise of rights of subscription or conversion under the terms of any
warrants issued by the Company or any securities which are convertible into
shares of the Company or (iv) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend
on shares of the Company pursuant to the New Articles of Association of the
Company from time to time, shall not exceed twenty per cent of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of

this Resolution and the said mandate shall be limited accordingly;

D. for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until

whichever is the earlier of:
i. the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company; or

ii. the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held; or

iii. the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or

varied by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting.
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“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the
Directors of the Company to holders of shares of the Company on the register
on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares
(subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors of the
Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlernents or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock

d

exchange in, any territory outside Hong Kong)

8 To consider as Special Business the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“THAT:

A. a general mandate be and is hereby unconditionally given to the Directors
of the Company to exercise during the Relevant Period all the powers of the
Company to purchase or otherwise acquire shares of the Company in
accordance with all applicable laws and the requivements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, provided that the aggregate nominal amount of shares so purchased
or otherwise acquired shall not exceed ten per cent of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of this

Resolution;
B. for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period {rom the passing of this Resolution until

whichever is the earlier of:
i. the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company; or

ii. the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held; or

ii. the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or

”

varied by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

9 To consider as Special Business the following resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution:

“THAT conditional upon the passing of Resolutions (7) and (8) set out in the
Notice convening this Meeting, the aggregate nominal amount of the shares
which are purchased or otherwise acquired by the Company pursuant to
Resolution (8) shall be added to the aggregate nominal amount of the shares

which may be issued pursuant to Resolution (7).”

By Order of the Board
Alice Tso Mun Wai Company Secretary
Hong Kong, 18 March 2004

Registered Office:

32nd Floor, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

Notes:

(i) The Register of Members will be closed from Tuescday, 4 May 2004 to Monday, 10 May
2004, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.

(it} Arg: member entitled to atiend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy need not be « member of the Company.

(ii} To be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy and the power of altorney or other authority,

if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or autherity must be
depostted at the registered office of the Company: not less than forty-eight hours before the time
Sor holding the meeting or adjourned meeting or poll (as the case may be) at which the person
named in such instrument proposes to vote.

{iv) Pursuant to Article 75 of the New Articles of Association of the Company, at any general
meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands unless a
poll is (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of
any other demand for a poll) demanded:

(a) by the Chairman of the meeting; or

(b) by at least three members present in person or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at
the meeting; or

(¢} by any member or members present in person or by proxy and representing not less than
one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the members having the right to vote at the meeting; or
(d) by a member or members present in person or by proxy and holding shares in the Company
conferring a right to vote at the meeting being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid
up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the shares conferring that
right.

The results of the poll will be published in the local newspapers and on the websites of the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the business day following the
above meeting. .

() Concerning item 3 above, Messrs Larry Yung Chi Kin, Peter Lee Chung Hing, Norman Yuen
Kee Tong, Liu Jifu and Willie Chang shall retire by rotation in the Annual General Meeting
pursuant to Article 104{A) of the New Articles of Association of the Company and they, all being
eligible, shall offer themselues for re-election. The bilographical details and interests in the
securities of the Company of all the Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors to be
re-elected at the above meeting are provided in the sections of “Directors and Senior Managers”
and “Directors’ Report™ respectively in the 2003 Annual Report of the Company.
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(i) Concerning item 5 above, in view of the directors’ workload and responsibilities, it is
proposed to increase the dircctors’ fees from HK$120,000 per annum for Chairman and
HK$100,000 per anrun for the other Directors to HK$150,000 per annwn for each of the
Directors of the Company.

In addition, as a result of the increasing part non-executive directors play in the good governance
of listed companies, the Company proposes to move towards adopting a more transparent
approach for determining the remuneration of Board Commitiee members. Thus, the levels of
remuneration payable (o Non-executive Directors serving on the Board Conunittees of the
Company are proposed to members for approval.

(vit) The Companies (Amendment) Ordinance 2003 (the “Amendment Ordinance”} has come into
operation on 13 February 2004 and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has announced
amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Siock Exchange of Hong
Kong Lunited (“the Listing Rules™) which include, among other things, amendments to Appendix
3 of the Listing Rules that will come info effect on 37 March 2004. Appendix 3 of the Listing
Rules sets out the provisions with which a listed company’s articles of association should conform.
In order to make the Company’s New: Articles of Association consistent with the Amendiment
Ordinance and the amended Appendix 3 of the Listing Rides, a special resolution o modify
varionus Articles in the Company’s New Articles of Association is proposed under item 6.

fuiit) Concerning item 7 above, the approval is being sought from members for a general mandate
to authorise allotment of shares under Section 57B of the Companies Ordinance and the Listing
Rules, in order to ensure flexibility and discretion to the Directors in the event that it becomes
desirable to issue any shares of the Company up to twenty per cent of the issued share capital of
the Company. The Directors wish to state that they have no inunediate plans to issue shares in
the Company.

{1z} Concerning item 8 above, the approval is being sought from members for a gencral mandate
io repurchase shares in the Company, in order to ensure flexibility and discretion to the Directors
in the event that it becomes desirable to repurchase any shares in the Company up to ten per
cent of the issued share capital of the Company.

fx) Concerning item 9 above, the approval is being sought from members to extend the general
mandate to allot shares by adding repurchased securitics to the tiwenty per cent general

mandate.
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Form of Proxy for Annual General Meeting

UWe,'»

of

being the registered holder(s) of shares®® of HK$0.40
each in the capital of CITIC Pacific Ltd (the “Company’’), HEREBY APPOINT

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING or*?

of

Resolutions

as my/our proxy to vote and act for me/us at the Annual General Meeting (and
at any adjournment thereof) of the Company to be held at the Island Ballroom,
Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hotel, Two Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road,
Hong Kong on Monday, 10 May 2004 at 10:30 a.m. for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, passing the Resolutions set out in the Notice
convening the said meeting and at such meeting (and at any adjournment
thereof) to vote for me/us and in my/our name(s) in respect of the Resolutions

as indicated below.®

ORDINARY BUSINESS FOR  AGAINST

1 To adopt the audited accounts and the
Reports of the Directors and the Auditors
for the year ended 31 December 2003 O O

2 To declare a final dividend for the year ended

31 December 2003 0 0
3 To re-elect the following retiring Directors:
a)  Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin O a
b)  Mr Peter Lee Chung Hing 0 O
c) Mr Norman Yuen Kee Tong 0 O
d) Mr Liu Jifu 0 0O
e) Mr Willie Chang O O
4 To re-appoint Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers
as Auditors and authorise the Board of Directors
to fix their remuneration ] O
SPECIAL BUSINESS
5 a) To fix the director’s fee at HK$150,000
per annum O a
b) e To pay additional remuneration of
HK$100,000 per annum to each Audit
Committee member [ O
¢ To pay additional remuneration of
HK$50,000 per annum to each
Remuneration Committee member O [}

Notes

FOR  AGAINST

6 To amend the New Articles of Association
of the Company O )

7 To grant a general mandate to the
Directors to issue and dispose of additional
shares not exceeding 20% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date
of this resolution a O

8 To grant a general mandate to the Directors to
purchase or otherwise acquire shares in the
capital of the Company not exceeding 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this resolution ] ]

9 To add the aggregate nominal amount of the
shares which are purchased or otherwise
acquired under the general mandate in
Resolution (8) to the aggregate nominal
amount of the shares which may be issued

under the general mandate in Resolution (7) a0 a
Dated this day of 2004
Signed

1 Full name(s) and address(es) to be inserted in BLOCK CAPITALS.

2 Please insert the number of shares registered in your name(s). If no number is inserted.
this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all the shares in the Company registered in
your name(s).

3 Ifany proxy other than the Chairman is preferred, strike out “the Chairman of the
Meeting or” herein inserted and insert the name and address of the proxy desired in the
space provided. ANY ALTERATION MADE TO THIS FORM OF PROXY MUST
BE INITIALLED BY THE PERSON WHO SIGNS IT.

4 IMPORTANT: IF YOU WISH TO VOTE FOR ANY RESOLUTIONS, TICK THE
APPROPRIATE BOXES MARKED “FOR”. IF YOU WISH TO VOTE AGAINST
ANY RESOLUTIONS. TICK THE APPROPRIATE BOXES MARKED “AGAINST”.
Failure 10 complete any or all the boxes will entitle your proxy 1o cast his votes at his
discretion. Your proxy will also be entitled 1o vote at his discretion on any resolution
properly put to the Meeting other than those referred 10 in the Notice convening the
Meeting.

5 This form of proxy must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing
or, in the case of a corporation, must be either under its common seal or under the
hand of an officer or atiorney duly authorised.

6 In the case of joint holders the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in
person or by proxy, will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint
holder(s), and for this purpose senioriry will be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the Register of Members.

7 To be valid, this form of proxy, together with the power of atiorney (if any) or other
awthority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof, must
be deposited at the Company's registered office at 32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, I Tim
Mei Avenue, Ceniral, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time for the
holding of the Meeting.

8  The proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the Meeting in
person to represent you.

9 Completion and delivery of the form of proxy will not preclude you from anending
and voting at the Annual General Meeting if you so wish.



I S R I

BHRBERGZRIRERE

ENE% (iE—)
Btk &

BEGEREARLHE (AL ZBRAPEREEEK040TZ

BENES AR REANEFREARARTTEERL A
Bf— EA TRt BREFEERERSEER MBS FHEEN
BELRESRETZANARREFRGFHEMES)  #EUEHE
WEHEREH LR Rg 2 BEFH RER - REZXGREEM

B BT ZEESEHAEA BREKGER HE) FRTIIRBRUANBEL LR AEANBELENTHRRE
®(#=) (FE0) -
Hoft B
RER
EEEE 28 RY 25 RY
1 BRBE-ZE=F+-A=+—HiL#E 6 BIAATZ FABERMN 0 O
ErEEYEE  EEQREREEME
& o = o 7 BTEEG— MR AREBREE
FZRBRE . 0 0 B - O O
3 TRTHBEESE 8 BFEEE—RARUBES UG
2) AEfEA m m W R RBA AT EARKEZ ADET
b) FMERE O O A 10%2 20 TR - c O
) BEEE4 O O
g %gﬁ%i c Do ATHRBEEBERRRFMHALILS
: RN B GBESE > S AREEDE
4 BREEERRGEIHEET AR RRRTHEERGOREHN - O O
fi> WIEEEECEEAMS - O O
KRIEE
52 NEELEEZEEWEHEEEY
150,0007C O 0O
B#: —EENE A A
b) o FAHEEH¥100,000T 2 NS
FTRLENEARER 0 0
o g 50,0007 Z B SNBN &
FELTMEEEEE O 0 %%
il
1 FHREBARSERAH - 5 FEBLEHBTEBTFTZEXEEREZALHEZE  WALA A1

2

FREUETERELIROYE - Wl EELEE  WERBEHEELER
KEFUBMTEEBLCZIELARY -

WEERAGEFLUNZ AL BAE FHAGEE  RIFHEYE HEE
FAEL BTHREERARZELER B - REFUERBSHHER » A
HEFEAMBERT -

BERT: WTFTORRFBRABE  HEBRIWAMI /I8 - BTk
REZHRBE SR IWARL /B - EEESETRET  BZEMR
RIFTRRET - BFZAETHEHEARGEETRLUSMEN & LIKTE
BERTREAGZREER  BITHBRE -

BUBELAFRGE REHENFREANREXRTBEAEE -

6 BEKFATE > WHEFUZBFAERE  THEBHEREZRAFZR
F o AMBERTAERGRE - BEACHRBEFLARKAERAAERE
BHEAZHERFTE -

7 KESBABRAZEHD 0F) REGEEE 0E) RE LGRS
P2 S RETARBLMAE AR BUXG R D RSPFHX B L A2
ARREE MABERFRFEE-YPEAL=AH THFEH -

8 REBABFNGRE BUOEHALEGHEULKHT -

9 BTHRERXEARBEELE GUIHALFRREFAGUNGLRE -




CITIC PACIFIC
CITIC Pacific Limited
PREEEARA
13 April 2004
To the Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

CITIC PACIFIC LIMITED ( THE “COMPANY”)

(i) SUMMARY FINANCIAL REPORT

(ii) WEBSITE VERSION OPTION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS,
SUMMARY FINANCIAL REPORT AND INTERIM REPORT

OPTIONS OF CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE COMPANY

We would like to bring your attention to two important options which you may choose for corporate
communications from the Company.

Legislation and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the Articles of Association of the Company enable the Company to offer shareholders (i) the
choice to receive a summary financial report (the “Swmnmary Financial Report™) in place of the Annual
Report and Accounts (the “Full Annual Report”) and (ii) the choice to rely on the versions of the Summary
Financial Report and the Full Annual Report and interim report of the Company that will be published on
the website of the Company rather than receiving a printed copy of either document.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL REPORT
You may choose the level of information that suits you from options (a} or (b) below:~
{(a)  the Full Annual Report containing all the statutory information required by legislation; or

(b)  the Summary Financial Report containing all the information and particulars contained on the face
of the balance sheet and profit and loss account of the Group, together with key information from
the Full Annual Report. The Summary Financial Report only gives a summary of the information
and particulars contained in the Full Annual Report from which it is derived.

Under the legislation, you may send a notice to the Company in the form of the enclosed reply slip
indicating whet'ner you wish and agree to select one of the options given to you in the reply slip.

If you take no action, we will send you the Summary Financial Report instead of the Full Annual
Report for the purposes of the 2005 annual general meeting and subsequent general meetings of
the Company. However, if you so wish, you can still obtain the Full Annual Report of the Company by

writing to the Coompany’s Share Registrars.
! 1
CITIC Pacific Ij;td. 32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong.

Tel: 28202111 Fax: 2877 2771  Email: contact@citicpacific.com  Website: www.citicpacific.com
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WEBSITE VERSION OPTION OF THE FULL ANNUAL REPORT, SUMMARY FINANCIAL
REPORT AND INTERIM REPORT

In addition, the Summary Financial Report, Full Annual Report and interim report of the Company would
be posted to the Company’s website (http://www.citicpacific.com) on or before their respective date of
dispatch.

You may choose to rely on the versions posted on the website of the Company instead of being sent a
printed copy of either document (the “Website Version Option”). If you choose this option, and provide us
with your email address by completing the enclosed reply slip, vou will be notified by email on the day the
aforesaid documents are published on our website. Please note that if you choose this option but do not
provide us with your email address, the aforesaid documents will be accessible by you through our website,
but you will not be expressly notified as and when they are published.

We encourage vou to take advantage of the Website Version Option as we believe for many shareholders it
is a more convenient and prompt method of communication. The Company wishes to be more environmental
friendly in conducting its businesses and believes that the website option to the shareholders will help o
reduce consumption of the world’s natural resources and save printing and mailing costs for the Company.

The Website Version Option is entirely voluntary. If you wish to continue receiving the Company’s
Summary Financial Report/Full Annual Report and interim report in printed form, you need not
complete the section headed “Website Version Option” in the reply slip enclosed.

HOW TO COMPLETE AND RETURN YOUR REPLY SLIP

Please tick the appropriate box and sign and return the reply slip in the envelope provided to the Share
Registrars of CITIC Pacific Limited, Tengis Limited, Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View
Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong by 30 May 2004. You may return the reply slip to
Tengis Limited by post or hand delivery. If your registered address is in Hong Kong, the enclosed envelope
will be postage prepaid and you will not need to affix a stamp when returning your reply slip. Otherwise,
please affix an appropriate stamp.

Unless and until you inform the Company otherwise in accordance with legislation, your reply slip will
apply to documents to be sent to vou for the purposes of the 2005 annual general meeting and subsequent
general meetings of the Company and future interim reports. If you take no action, we will send you the
Summary Financial Report instead of the Full Annual Report.

Please note that you have the right to change your choice, at any time by reasonable notice in writing
served on Tengis Limited, as to whether you wish to receive the Summary Financial Report or the Full
Annual Report and to receive such report(s) and accounts in printed form or to rely on the versions of such
document(s) posted to the Company’s website.

In addition, if you choose the Website Version Option but for any reason have difficulty in receiving or
gaining access to the document, you will promptly upon request be sent the printed forms of the Summary
Financial Report/Full Annual Report or interim report, as the case may be, free of charge.

If you have any queries relating to this letter, please call the enquiry hotline at 2980 1333.

Yours faithfully |
For and on behalf of

CITIC Pacific Limited

Alice Tso Mun Wai

Company Secretary

Encl. \

\}
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CITIC Pacific Limited
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REPLY SLIP

To:  CITIC Pacific Limited (the “Company”)
c¢/o Tengis Limited
Ground Floor
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Cente
56 Gloucester Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong
1. SUMMARY FINANCIAL REPORT AND FULL ANNUAL REPORT
Please tick one hox under this section.

] I/We would like to receive the Summary Financial Report instead of the Full Annual Report

for the financial vear ending 31 December 2004 and future years.

0 I/We would like to receive the Full Annual Report for the financial year ending 31 December

2004 and future vears.
2. 'WEBSITE VERSION OPTION

If you wish to continue receiving the Company’s Summary Financial Report/Full Annual

Report and interim report in printed form, you need not complete this section.

If you wish to rely on the website version, please tick one box under this section.

O I/We would like to rely on versions posted on the wehsite of the Company in lieu of the
printed copies of the Full Annual Report/Summary Financial Report and Interim Report and
to receive notification by email of the publication of those documents on the website and

other related matters.

Email Address :

OJ I/We would like to rely on versions posted on the website of the Company in lieu of the
printed copies of the Full Anmual Report/Summary Financial Report and Interim Report and
I/we do not wish to be notified of the publication of the documents on the website and other

related matters.

Name of Registered Shareholder:

Signature:

Date:

Contact telephone number:
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